/——*f’_‘
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
(CUSTOMERS AND PARTNERSHIPS) will be held in CIVIC SUITE,
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29
3TN on THURSDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2021 at 7:00 PM and you are
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:-

AGENDA

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 5 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Customers and Partnerships) meeting held on 7th October 2021.

Contact Officer: B Buddle
01223 752549

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary and other
interests in relation to any Agenda item.

Contact Officer: B Buddle
01223 752549

NOTICE OF KEY EXECUTIVE DECISIONS (Pages 9 - 18)
A copy of the current Notice of Key Executive Decisions is attached. Members are
invited to note the Plan and to comment as appropriate on any items contained

therein.

Contact Officer: H Peacey
01480 388169

LITTER MINIMISATION STRATEGY (Pages 19 - 36)
The Panel is invited to comment on the Litter Minimisation Strategy.

Contact Officer: M Chudley
01480 388843



COVID 19 DISTRICT IMPACT ASSESSMENT (Pages 37 - 202)
The Panel is invited to comment on the COVID-19 District Impact Assessment.

Contact Officer: N Sloper
01480 388301

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 203 - 210)
The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is to be presented to the Panel.

Contact Officer: B Buddle
01223 752549

24 day of November 2021
- }xxuumu\\j&) (

Head of Paid Service
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests

Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non - Statutory
Disclosable Interests is available in the Council’s Constitution

Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

The District Council permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its
meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social networking
and micro-blogging websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with
people about what is happening at meetings.

Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with guidelines
agreed by the Council.

Please contact Mrs Beccy Buddle, Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny),
Tel No. 01223 752549/e-mail Beccy.Buddle@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you
have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for
absence from the meeting, or would like information on any decision taken
by the Committee/Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards
the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.



https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

18.

19.

20.

21.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
(CUSTOMERS AND PARTNERSHIPS) held in the Countryside
Centre, Hinchingbrooke Country Park, Brampton Road, Huntingdon
PE29 6DB on Thursday, 7 October 2021.

PRESENT: Councillor D M Tysoe — Chairman.

Councillors T D Alban, B S Banks,
S J Criswell, Miss R D'Souza, | D Gardener,
Mrs M Kadewere, H V Masson, C Smith,
Mrs S Smith and Mrs S R Wilson.

APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting
was submitted on behalf of Councillor
D A Giles.

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors S Bywater and R Fuller.

MINUTES

In relation to Minute point 15, Councillor Wilson had expressed her
disappointment in the meeting that preventative works had been slow
in commencing and requested for this be recorded.

With this amendment, the Minutes of the meeting held on 8th July
2021 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS
No declarations were received.
NOTICE OF KEY EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

The Panel received and noted the current Notice of Key Executive
Decisions (a copy of which has been appended in the Minute Book)
which has been prepared by the Executive Leader for the period 1st
October 2021 to 31st January 2022.

OXCAM ENVIRONMENTAL PRINCIPLES

By means of a report by the Managing Director, (a copy of which is
appended in the Minute Book) the OxCam Environmental Principles
report was presented to the Panel.

Councillor Alban expressed that he was thrilled and enthused with the
target end date of 2040 for the implementation of these principles, the
date instils confidence that the Council is looking to achieve these
targets with a sense of urgency and also that the Council can play a
part in enabling these principles across the community.

Councillor Wilson seconded this enthusiasm and questioned where
resources would be diverted from as mentioned in 7.1 of the report. It

Page 3 of 210



22.

was assured by Councillor Fuller that this would be taken from
underspends from other budget areas.

The report was praised by Councillor Criswell who observed that it
built upon and formed a progression from previous green initiatives
implemented by the Council. Councillor Criswell also observed that
whilst a green environment is welcomed, commuting and local
transport should also be considered including an aspiration for
everything to be available for residents within a 15-minute radius of
their homes. A joined-up approach to development would help to
achieve a sustainable future.

Councillor Wilson suggested that the environmental principles be
included in every new policy and plan adopted across the Council to
ensure targets are met.

Councillor D’Souza commented on an exciting and ambitious paper
and endorsed that the Council should influence the local community
and help to educate local groups, enabling them to implement and
adopt the principles in the community.

The Panel heard that a draft strategy was anticipated in Autumn 2022
to allow progression and implementation of the principles with
sufficient rigor.

Having welcomed the report, the Panel thereupon
RESOLVED

that the Cabinet be encouraged to endorse the recommendations
contained within the report.

COMMUNITY TRANSITION STRATEGY 2021/23

By means of a report and presentation by the Corporate Director
(People), (copies of which are appended in the Minute Book) the
Community Transition Strategy was presented to the Panel.

The Panel heard from Julie Farrow (the Hunts Forum) and Anna
Bradley-Dorman, (The Ramsey Neighbourhoods Trust) on the strong
bonds and co-operation that had been developed between the
Council and local community groups during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Councillor Criswell noted that Huntingdonshire District Council and
the voluntary sector had worked well together to form a cohesive and
swift response to the Covid-19 crisis. He observed that the
relationship with town and parish councils was not always as robust
but was hopeful that the proposed strategy would address this and
create stronger partnerships for the future.

This sentiment was seconded by Councillor Banks, who stated how
impressed he had been with the involvement of the volunteer
organisations and that the strategy had provided an opportunity to
form closer working relationships with parish and town councils to
provide more resilience for the future.

Councillor Alban echoed this and was impressed at the rapid growth

Page 4 of 210



23.

24.

in community resilience across the district over recent years, he
hoped that this would now be harnessed and developed to allow for
stronger communities in the future.

Councillor Tysoe observed that whilst local government
responsibilities and functions can be complicated, residents aren’t
interested in the bureaucracy, they are more focused on achieving the
end result, and noted that the strategy should help to achieve this.

Following a comment from Councillor D’Souza on data usage, the
Corporate Director (People) reassured that the value of human
contact can't be replaced but there are some who prefer the
anonymity of digital. It was also noted that core to the strategy is the
better use of data and technology enabling ongoing engagement and
dialogue with residents which will result in the kind of common-sense
service delivery for residents aspired to in the strategy.

Having welcomed the report, the Panel thereupon
RESOLVED

that the Cabinet be encouraged to endorse the recommendations
contained within the report.

CABINET FEEDBACK: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY FLOODING
TASK AND FINISH STUDY

By means of a report by the Cabinet (a copy of which is appended in
the Minute Book), the Cabinet’'s feedback to the Overview and
Scrutiny Flooding Task and Finish Study was presented to the Panel.

The Panel heard that local communities had been contacted and
encouraged to make contact with Cambridgeshire County Council for
assistance in developing community resilience against future flooding.

In response to a question from Councillor Wilson regarding the slow
progress of action in regards to flood prevention, the Panel were
advised to lobby their relevant County Councillor to aid progress.

It was noted by the Executive leader that although the council are not
the lead authority in regards to flood response, the theme of
community leadership had been prevalent across the agenda. The
council will continue to lobby Cambridgeshire County Council, Anglian
Water and the Environment Agency to ensure they are held to
account and the residents of Huntingdonshire are supported.

The Panel heard that riparian rights should be considered by
residents and that ownership needed to be taken of those issues
which occur along property boundaries where the responsible falls
upon the resident or land owner.

CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH COMMITTEE
The appointment of Councillor S Smith as a non-voting co-opted

substitute Member to the Cambridgeshire County Council Health
Committee was noted.

Page 5 of 210



25.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

With the aid of a report by the Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny)
(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Overview and
Scrutiny Work Programme was presented to the Panel.

Chairman

Page 6 of 210



~Huntingdonshire

DI STRICT COUNZC CIL

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE KEY DECISIONS INCLUDING THOSE TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE

Prepared by: Councillor R Fuller, Executive Leader of the Council
Date of Publication: 10 November 2021
For Period: 1 December 2021 to 31 March 2022

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:-

Councillor Details Councillor Contact Details

Councillor Mrs M L Beuttell ~ Executive Councillor for Operations | Care of Huntingdonshire District Council
and Environment Pathfinder House

St Mary’s Street

Huntingdon PE29 3TN

d

Tel: 01480 388388
E-mail: Marge.Beuttell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Q
Q
)
\l
o
—.q
~
©ouncillor S Bywater Executive Councillor for Community | 9 Crabapple Close
Resilience and Well-Being Sawtry

Huntingdon PE28 5QG

Tel: 07984 637553
E-mail: Simon.Bywater@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Councillor S J Criswell Executive Councillor for Recovery 23 The Bank
Somersham
Huntingdon PE28 3DJ

Tel: 01487 740745
E-mail: Steve.Criswell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 1 of 9

¢ Wi9)| epuaby


mailto:Marge.Beuttell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Simon.Bywater@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Steve.Criswell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Councillor R Fuller

Executive Leader of the Council and
Executive Councillor for Housing
and Economic Development

8 Sarah Grace Court
New Road

St lves

Huntingdon PE27 5DS

Tel: 01480 388311
E-mail: Ryan.Fuller@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Councillor J A Gray

Executive Councillor for Strategic
Finance

Vine Cottage

2 Station Road
Catworth

Huntingdon PE28 OPE

Tel: 01832 710799
E-mail: Jonathan.Gray@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Councillor D Keane

T
Q

Q
@D
co
o
—
N
=
Q

Executive Councillor for Corporate
Services

1 Bells Villas

Mill Street

Houghton

Cambridgeshire PE28 2BA

Tel: 01480 467147
E-mail: David.Keane@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Councillor J Neish

Deputy Executive Leader and
Executive Councillor for Strategic
Planning

7 Willow Green
Needingworth

St lves

Cambridgeshire PE27 4SW

Tel: 01480 466110
E-mail: Jon.Neish@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 2 of 9



mailto:Ryan.Fuller@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jonathan.Gray@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:David.Keane@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jon.Neish@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Councillor K Prentice Executive Councillor for Leisure and | 2 Ushers Court
Regulatory Services 89 Great North Road

Eaton Socon

St Neots

PE19 8EL

Tel: 01480 214838
E-mail: Keith.Prentice@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Notice is hereby given of:

e Key decisions that will be taken by the Cabinet (or other decision maker)
e Confidential or exempt executive decisions that will be taken in a meeting from which the public will be excluded (for whole or part).

A notice/agenda together with reports and supporting documents for each meeting will be published at least five working days before the date of
e meeting. In order to enquire about the availability of documents and subject to any restrictions on their disclosure, copies may be requested by
gontacting the Democratic Services Team on 01480 388169 or E-mail Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk.
Q

) . L . .
Agendas may be accessed electronically at the District Council’s website.

%ormal notice is hereby given under The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations

12 that, where indicated part of the meetings listed in this notice will be held in private because the agenda and reports for the meeting will
@ontain confidential or exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. See the relevant paragraphs below.

Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made or wishes to object to an item being
considered in private may do so by emailing Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk.or by contacting the Democratic Services Team. If
representations are received at least eight working days before the date of the meeting, they will be published with the agenda together with a
statement of the District Council’s response. Any representations received after this time will be verbally reported and considered at the meeting.

Paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) (Reason for the report to
be considered in private)

Information relating to any individual

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual

Information relating to the Financial and Business Affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information)

Information relating to any consultations or negotiations or contemplated consultations or negotiations in connection with any labour relations
that are arising between the Authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of or office holders under the Authority

PowbdPE

Page 3 of 9


mailto:Keith.Prentice@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democratic.Services@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings

Information which reveals that the Authority proposes:-

(a)To give under any announcement a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or

(b)To make an Order or Direction under any enactment

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

oo

Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary's Street

Huntingdon PE29 3TN.

Notes:- (i) Additions changes from the previous Forward Plan are annotated ***
(i) Part 1l confidential items which will be considered in private are annotated ## and shown in italic.

0TZ Jo 0T abed

Page 4 of 9



Subject/Matter Decision/ Date Documents How relevant Officer Reasons Relevant Relevant
for Decision |recommendation | decision | Available can be contacted for the Executive | Overview &
to be made by to be report to be | Councillor Scrutiny
taken considered Panel
in private
(paragraph
no.)
Community Grants Panel Claudia Deeth, Community S Bywater | Customers &
Chest Grant Aid Resilience Manager Tel No: 01480 &SJ Partnerships
Awards 2021/22 388233 or email: Criswell
Claudia.Deeth@huntingdonshire.go
v.uk
T
Q
%pproval of Chairman of 7 Dec Amanda Burns, Revenues and J Gray Performance
Souncil Tax Corporate 2021 Benefits Manager Tel No: 01480 & Growth
Base 2022/23 Governance and 388122 or email:
<A Section 151 Amanda.Burns@huntingdonshire.go
N Officer v.uk
o
Infrastructure Cabinet 9 Dec Claire Burton, Implementation Team J Neish Performance
Funding 2021 Leader Tel No: 01480 388274 or & Growth
Statement email:

Claire.Burton@huntingdonshire.gov.
uk

Page 5 of 9




Matthew.Chudley@huntingdonshire.

gov.uk

Subject/Matter Decision/ Date Documents How relevant Officer Reasons Relevant Relevant
for Decision |recommendation | decision | Available can be contacted for the Executive | Overview &
to be made by to be report to be | Councillor Scrutiny
taken considered Panel
in private
(paragraph
no.)
Housing Cabinet 9 Dec Pamela Scott, Housing Strategy and R Fuller Performance
Strategy Action 2021 Delivery Manager Tel No: 07874 & Growth
Plan Update 887465 or email:
Pamela.Scott@huntingdonshire.gov
.uk
&
‘%enancy Cabinet 9 Dec Pamela Scott, Housing Strategy and R Fuller Performance
trategy 2021 Delivery Manager Tel No: 07874 & Growth
— o
N 887465 or email:
o Pamela.Scott@huntingdonshire.gov
[_\)h .uk
|_\
O
Litter Cabinet 9 Dec Matthew Chudley, Operations Mrs M L Customers &
Minimisation 2021 Manager - Environmental Services Beulttell Partnerships
Strategy Tel No: 01480 388648 or email:

Page 6 of 9




Subject/Matter Decision/ Date Documents How relevant Officer Reasons Relevant Relevant
for Decision |recommendation | decision | Available can be contacted for the Executive | Overview &
to be made by to be report to be | Councillor Scrutiny
taken considered Panel
in private
(paragraph
no.)

Hinchingbrooke | Cabinet 9 Dec Jacqueline Cadogan-Poole, Project | 3 Mrs M L Customers &
Country Park 2021 Support Officer Tel No: 07732 Beuttell Partnerships
Development*** 404780 or email:

## Jacqueline.Cadogan-

Poole@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

T
D
®

[=nal 2022/23 Cabinet 10 Feb Eric Symons, Interim Chief Financial J Gray Performance
®udget and 2022 Officer Tel No: 01480 388388 or & Growth
®edium-Term email:

fnancial Eric.Symons@huntingdonshire.gov.

ISrategy uk

2023/24 to

2026/27 for

February 2022

Page 7 of 9




Subject/Matter Decision/ Date Documents How relevant Officer Reasons Relevant Relevant
for Decision |recommendation | decision | Available can be contacted for the Executive | Overview &
to be made by to be report to be | Councillor Scrutiny
taken considered Panel
in private
(paragraph
no.)
2022/23 Cabinet 10 Feb Eric Symons, Interim Chief Financial J Gray Performance
Treasury 2022 Officer Tel No: 01480 388388 or and Growth
Management, email:
Capital and Eric.Symons@huntingdonshire.gov.
Investment uk
Strategies
3
Q
Q
D
i;
&ommunity Cabinet 17 Mar Claire Burton, Implementation Team J Neish Performance
,_@frastructure 2022 Leader Tel No: 01480 388274 or & Growth
=evy email:
Sovernance*** Claire.Burton@huntingdonshire.gov.

uk

Page 8 of 9




Subject/Matter Decision/ Date Documents How relevant Officer Reasons Relevant Relevant
for Decision |recommendation | decision | Available can be contacted for the Executive | Overview &
to be made by to be report to be | Councillor Scrutiny
taken considered Panel
in private
(paragraph
no.)
Parking: Agency | Cabinet 17 Mar George McDowell, Parking Services Mrs M L Customers &
Agreement for 2022 Officer Tel No: 01480 388386 or Beulttell Partnerships

Civil Parking
Enforcement in
Huntingdonshire

*

email:
George.McDowell@huntingdonshire
.gov.uk

0TZ Jo GT abeq

Page 9 of 9




This page is intentionally left blank



Anaeanda ltam A
I‘\HCI IUQL TLCU T =T
Public
Key Decision - Yes
HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Title/Subject Matter: LITTER MINIMISATION STRATEGY
Meeting/Date: Overview & Scrutiny CUSTOMERS &

PARTNERSHIPS - Date 2NP DECEMBER 2021

Executive Portfolio: ~ COUNCILLOR MARGE BEUTTELL

Report by: OPERATIONS MANAGER ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES MATT CHUDLEY

Ward(s) affected: All Wards

RECOMMENDATION

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel is invited to comment on the proposed Litter
minimisation Strategy in particular the action plan from the Cabinet report
attached at Appendix A.

Page 17 of 210




This page is intentionally left blank



Public
Key Decision - Yes

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter: Litter Minimisation Strategy 2021 - 2025
Meeting/Date: Overview and  Scrutiny Panel
(Customers  and Partnerships) —
2nd December
Cabinet — 9th December

Executive Portfolio: Executive Councillor for Operations and Environment,
Councillor Marge Beuttell

Report by: Matthew Chudley, Operations Manager for Environmental Services

Ward(s) affected: All

Executive Summary:

The Litter Strategy responds to the main challenges faced by the Council Street
Cleansing and Litter Minimisation service. The Vision for the Street Cleansing service is
set out in the Councils own vision and ambition of ensuring our streets and open spaces
are kept clean and safe as well as our commitment to good environmental stewardship
and long-term sustainability.

We must also respond to the challenges presented by Huntingdonshire being an area
that is growing quickly, and where the street cleansing service must grow or adapt to
absorb this growth.

This strategy lays out the principles for where we intend to take litter minimisation over
the next four years and appendix 1 provides an overview of the strategy highlighting the
key themes we will be working on.

These include:
e Reduce litter
Being innovative
Reduce our environmental impact
Leading by example
Engagement
Enforcement

The action plan (Appendix 2) explores the projects we will be focusing on to support our
key objectives and themes.

Page 19 of 210




Our Vision

This strategy aims to tie in with the wider Government strategy (Litter Strategy for
England 2018) and provide a broad framework for managing litter in our district over the
coming months and years.

It is not only cost which is an issue. Litter blights the local environment, reduces overall
quality of life, influences people’s choice of where to live, discourages investment and
visitors to our area and can be damaging to wildlife and habitats. We want
Huntingdonshire to be a place that people want to live and visit to enjoy our towns,
villages and beautiful countryside.

Our nation’s future prosperity will greatly depend on how well we manage our
environment and therefore it is important that we all play our part in reducing litter and
stopping people from dropping litter in the first place.

e Change the behaviour of people who feel it is acceptable to drop litter through
enhanced education and consistent messaging

e Make it easy to dispose of litter, provide the appropriate facilities in the right
places, and provide an efficient and effective street cleansing service

e Improve enforcement by exercising council powers to deal with anyone who
drops litter

e Engage with, support, and celebrate those who are doing the right thing
Recommendation(s):

To endorse the Litter Strategy and Litter Minimisation Action Plan

Page 20 of 210




1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

11

To seek the endorsement of the council's new Litter Strategy and Litter
Minimisation Action Plan.

2. BACKGROUND

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

Rising demand for local government services, the growth of our district, and
continued pressure on the resources available, ensure that efficiency and
productivity must be cornerstones of our Street Cleansing Service.

In addition, over recent years, climate change has been increasingly identified as
a major global threat. Good management of litter - preventing or minimising the
amount of litter generated and maximising the repair, re-use and recycling of
litter/waste materials, are some of the most immediate things that we can do as
individuals to contribute to a reduction in carbon emissions.

Litter is both a global and local issue and communities need to become more
responsible about the litter they generate. We all have a part to play - as
individuals, employers or employees, governments, and consumers.

In future, we must prevent litter from being generated. Where we cannot prevent,
we must work to reduce, re-use and recycle as much as we can. We must think of
litter as being a resource from which as much value as possible should be
recovered.

Recycling of glass bottles & cans within town centre locations has already started
but we cannot become complacent. We know from litter analysis that there is more
material that can be captured and recycled.

Through working with residents, we have seen a 70% recyclable material rate
within the town centre locations. Further work is underway to ensure this level is
increased and only through continued resident engagement can this be achieved.

As it stands, over the last 3 years the service has seen a significant improvement
in performance and value for money. Over this time period the Council has
delivered a reduction on cost per household, marking us amongst the best of our
comparable local government group (APSE Benchmarking) despite diesel hitting
an all-time high during parts of this period and increased housing of around 1500
new properties peryeatr.

At the same time, we have seen the number of litter complaints fall and attain a
customer satisfaction rating of 88.6% (either average or above satisfaction with the
service) in addition we have also managed to keep the full Street Cleansing service
running throughout the Covid-19 pandemic.

Page 21 of 210



29 However, we are not complacent or content. This strategy lays out the principles
for where we intend to take litter minimisation over coming years.

2.10 Where we are now

The council currently provide a Street Cleansing service whose services cover the adopted
Highways, Town Centres, and Parks and Open Spaces.

The service is predominantly focussed on high footfall sites, with three dedicated Town
Centre Operatives across Huntingdon, St Ives and St Neots (Ramsey is covered within a
rural round). In addition to this the team operates a rural round, parks round and ad-hoc
street cleansing team, due to the nature of the District having dispersed towns of high
density and rural villages intercepted with major A-Roads.

Each town centre is cleansed a minimum of once a day, 6 days a week

The Street Cleansing Service has already run the below innovative pilot projects:
On Street Recycling in St Neots, Huntingdon & St lves

Smart Bin Sensors within Town Centre locations

Business Community Pledge
Community Litter Pick — Easier to arrange

Street Cleansing will continue to pilot new ways of working to combat litter

2101 Litter Generation 2016/17 to 2019/20

The main sources of litter generation within Huntingdonshire are:

e Litter dropped or placed in places other than litter bins
e Dog waste that has not been removed by the dog’s owner

Commercial or domestic waste incorrectly presented. With large amounts of side
waste and overfilled bins.

Waste that has been ‘carefully littered’ on ledges, walls and street furniture
Litter from ‘food on the go’

Litter on school routes

Smoking related litter

Drug related litter

Litter from moving vehicles

Litter around parked vehicles

Litter from open spaces & private property

Chewing gum

Fly tipping

Page 22 of 210 4



The table below shows the amount of litter, in tonnes, collected from all litter sources
along with tonnage of litter/detritus from Street Sweeping machines. These figures have
remained constant over the last four years even with growth in housing within the area

Street

Litter Sweeping Total Litter/Detritus
Year (Tonnes) (Tonnes) (Tonnes)
2018 56 1386.9 1443
2019 86 1148 1204
2020 116 1014 1130
2021 41 810 852
YTD

The impact of COVID 19 on littering has been significant, in 2020 HDCs Street Cleansing
Service reported a 34% increase in littering across the district. Parks and Open Spaces
recorded record numbers of footfall and areas which the public visited were more
widespread, resulting in higher volumes and more distributed littering.

2102 Enforcement

The Council recognises the importance of achieving and maintaining consistency in its
approach to enforcement. For many areas of its enforcement activity, government
guidance already exists in the form of Codes of Practice, Planning Policy Guidance, and
Government Circulars. When considering what action should be taken, the Council will
look to:

Be proportionate to the nature of the offence and the harm caused

Change the behaviour of the offender

Eliminate any financial gain or benefit from non-compliance

Address the harm caused by regulatory non-compliance, where appropriate
Deter future non-compliance

Be responsive and consider what is appropriate for the particular offender and
regulatory issue.

The Council’s position is that the first step in enforcement is to promote good practice,
ensure policy compliance and prevent contravention of the law by raising awareness.
However, in order to change behaviour effectively we also need to back up this social
message with appropriate and proportionate enforcement.

This table shows enforcement action taken for littering and fly tips over the last 4 years.

It is important to recognise that during the Covid pandemic (2020) there has been a huge
increase nationally in fly tipping. Along with other pressures on Council officers’ resources
at this time from working in a challenging environment it has proved difficult to gather
evidence for successful prosecutions.

Year Littering FPNs Fly Tips Fly Tip
Prosecutions
2018 10 971 4

Page 23 of 210 5



2019 14 752 8
2020 11 1976 4
2021 4 902 5
YTD

2.10.3 Cost of the Street Cleansing service

Despite an increase in the number of properties the cost per household has decreased
through absorption of growth achieved through innovative service changes. We continue
to benchmark the service through APSE (Association For Public Service Excellence)

Benchmarking

We are consistently below the average cost per household whilst achieving award
nominations for improved service delivery.

Cost of Cost per household Apse Avg Cost Per

service household
16/17 £ 829,933 £12.24 £26.93
17/18 £ 793,949 £12.18 £23.11
18/19 £ 772,646 £11.56 £26.02
19/20 £721,433 £10.42 £21.64

*Cost per household does not include Central Establishment Cost

Page 24 of 210




2104 Satisfaction Survey (Appendix 3)

The latest customer satisfaction survey took place in June 2019 and gave us an
opportunity to gather residents’ opinions on communication methods as well as more
insight in to how they dispose of their litter/waste

e Overall, 88.6% were satisfied or very satisfied with the Street
Cleansing service

e 74.5% of respondents were satisfied with the frequency that the litter and
dog waste bins were emptied

e 61.5% of respondents believe that enforcement was the best way to tackle
littering

e Residents on average rated the cleanliness of Huntingdonshire 3.6 out of 5
(5 being excellent)

The below table shows cleanliness scores of key locations based on survey scoring:

Location Percentage Average, Good or Very
Good
Town Centres 94.8
Main Roads 83.16
School routes 86.17
Public Footpaths 83.33
Parks and Playgrounds 92.63
Playing fields 87.24
Other open spaces (e.g. Verges) 66.31

3. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

31 The comments of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel will be included in
this section prior to its consideration by the Cabinet.

4. KEY IMPACTS/ RISKS

41 Population/housing growth

This will increase litter production therefore there will be a need for more resources to
service the areas of growth. In its current format, the service will continue to grow as the
District does, this will continue to increase the revenue budget of the service by around
£71K for every additional new crew that goes into service.

Although the proposed Litter Minimisation Strategy does not require or suggest any

changes to the current bin collection model, we will need to be open minded and examine
all possible service delivery options moving forward if we are to mitigate

Page 25 of 210



the growing financial pressures of operating the service. These could include — investment
in Smart Bins and re rationalising litter bins and locations.

Despite continued service innovations and efficiencies, it is not envisaged that these will
be significant enough to absorb the population growth in the future.

42 Financial environment

We are working in an environment of continued and sustained financial pressure which
may result in difficult decisions having to be made on what we prioritise, including reduced
budgets and less resource.

The clearance of litter is an avoidable cost but to reduce this requires significant culture
change alongside well designed and planned infrastructure and services to meet current
and future needs. Changing culture is challenging and requires ongoing investment in
education, engagement and, occasionally, enforcement. Given that much of our
infrastructure is old and designed and planned for a different time, updating this to meet
current and predicted need in the current economic environment will be a challenge and
new and innovative ways to deal with this will be necessary.

In addition to council staff, the council engages with the prison service and probation
service to support work across the district, as part of community service programme.
Furthermore, many volunteer groups and individual volunteers regularly litter pick in the
areas where they live, some of whom will also separate materials into recyclables and
waste. Volunteers, parish and town councils in rural areas carry out cleansing where it is
difficult for the council to do so due to a lack of resources. Volunteers are often able to
undertake additional regular deep cleans of their local area. The council provide
volunteers with equipment and collect bagged litter from these activities.

Through improvements to the application process, guidance notes and social media
campaigns and community engagement we have achieved a large rise in the number of
volunteer’s litter picking. This is reflected in the table below.

We regularly publicise the success of these groups and their comments of how rewarding
they find voluntary in their community on social media.

This has resulted in many more people volunteering in their community.

2019 2020 2021 YTD
Litter Pick 350 596 1482
Volunteers

43 Litter Strategy for England

Our Litter Minimisation Strategy is in line with the governments litter strategy for England
(Appendix 4)

The Litter Strategy For England sets out, in detail, how the government will work with
communities and businesses to reduce litter.

44 National Pandemic
We have seen more litter being produced due to changing habits and working

arrangements. Over the course of the pandemic, we have seen on a 34% increasing
in litter tonnages collected

Page 26 of 210 8



5. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND/OR
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

51 Local Framework
511 Corporate Plan 2018-2022

The corporate plan sets out a programme identifying areas which working together to
meet the council’s vision:

We want to support a safe and healthy environment, deliver economic growth,
provide value for money services, and create opportunities for the people of
Huntingdonshire

We want Huntingdonshire to be a good place and we work to Create, protect, and
enhance our safe and clean built and green environment

Ruling administration manifesto - We will provide district-wide verge-side clearance
during winter months

52 National Framework

Litter is controlled under the legislative framework of the Environmental Protection Act
1990, which was amended by the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005.
6. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS

6.1 The Council set a target to reduce litter and fly tipping which we are working
towards achieving. This reflects the importance of litter Minimisation and its activities.

Minimising litter is a key component of the Council's commitment to Climate Change
ensuring Huntingdonshire is a clean place to live

Litter minimisation also makes financial sense, minimising costs of collection
This strategy continues to re-affirm our commitment to the environment, the impact

of Huntingdonshire’s litter/waste on our climate and focus to strive further whilst
accommaodating the challenges of COVID19 and Housing Growth.

Page 27 of 210



7. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED

Appendix 1 — Litter Minimisation Strategy at a glance
Appendix 2 — Litter Minimisation Action Plan
Appendix 3 - Litter Strategy For England

Appendix 4 — National Framework

CONTACT OFFICER

Name/Job Title: Matt Chudley Operations Manager
Environmental Services

Officer Tel No: 01480 388843
Email; matthew.chudley@huntingdonshire.qgov.uk

Page 28 of 210


mailto:matthew.chudley@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Appendix 1 — Litter Minimisation Strategy at a Glance

Litter Minimisation
Strategy

The Litter Minimisation Strategy is
designed to respond to the main
challenges faced by the Street
Cleansing service. We want to
provide a high-quality service for the
increasing population of
Huntingdonshire and to make the
service more cost efficient

Grabber

Collect &
Drop
Point

Our Vislon Measuring Our Success
To make littering unacceptable behaviour and to seek new and We will be measuring our progress. against the following criteria:
Innevative ways to reduce littering and o clear it promptly where |t

turns Up. The fallowing key obgectives will deliver recegnisable

Improvements withing Huntingdonshire:

»  Measuring the cost of the Sireet Cleansing service against budget

> Tohave @ strategy hat provides @ framework for action »  Increase the number of recycling litter bins across the district

> Toreduce litter and fly lipping within Huntingdonshire »  APSE benchmarking against sther comparable kcal autherities
Caollaberative working between litter minimisation and enforcement
will ensure the same messages and policies are being followed

»  Todevelop an effective c ication plan for the prevenfion of threugheut the district

fitter anl iy tipping »  Community engagement to spread the message will be measured

»  To have an improved understanding within the lacal community from the social media insights
of the issues around litter and fly tipping

= To buld on the success of our community engagement and build
an even stronger connection within the local communities

»  Listening to the vaice of residents through annual customer
»  Toprovide effective and efficient council senvices that make best salisfaction survey

use of the rescurces available to tackle litter and fly tpping, ) N . g
ac) . = Carbon moedeling of service = working with the energy saving frus
ing enforcement and other consultants

= Toencourage the public and business to take responsibility and
owmnership of their lifter

Page 29 of 210 1



Reduce Litter

.

Re rationalise litter bin locations

+  |dentify litter hotspots

Being Innovative

+ Toimp both litter minimisation as a service at a
local level and to encourage neighbourhoods and
communities to litter more inabl

Active volunteer programme, work with DWP and the
probation service

Local ambassadors p ing litter minimisation in
their communities

ity proj to ise litter
Partnership working with RECAP, Keep Britain Tidy
Enf to take appropriate action on littering &
fly tipping.

Reduce our environmental impact

.

To develop a long-term sustainable approach that limits
the environmental impact of the collection service that
we run

Reduce the carbon footprint of the service where
possible

Leading by example

*  Reducing litter produced by the council
+  Getting our own house in order
+  Be the first

Engagement
+  Maximise the use of social media
+  Communications planning

+  Linking to lecal and national campaigns including
‘Great British Spring Clean

Page 30 of 210




Appendix 2 — Litter Minimisation Action Plan

Project Objective How Measure Review Timescale
Cover entire litter bin % Total bins covered by smart
infrastructure with Smart Bin Reduce the amount of litter Procure additional sensors technology Annually 22/25
Sensors collected across Publish real time data on litter
Huntingdonshire bin fill levels on HDC website Website live Annually 22/24
Using data from bin sensors to
Reduce the number of litter re rationalise bin locations No of litter bins across the
Right Bin Right Place bins across the district across the district district Quarterly 21/22 - Ongoing
research and publish a litter bin
To adopt a litter bin policy policy Policy agreed by members n/a 21/22
Increase the number of Increased no of customers by
Sustainable Business Pledge business signed up to the 50% - Inc HDC run premises
pledge Active comms and promotion (Lead by example) Quarterly 22/25
To improve accessibility for Support local events with litter | No of litter picks carried out
community litter picks pick equipment across the year Annually 22/25
Community Litter Picks Provide a document as part of
U To Improve data collection from | the litter pick pack to record Quarterly report on waste
g community litter picks waste collected collected from litter picks Quarterly 22/25
D Enforcement team to evaluate
w current policy and report back
i options to improve the current
9n-. policy to increase effective New policy to be adopted by
IIE Enforcement enforcement the Council Quarterly 22/23
o To evaluate and improve No of FPN's handed out
current litter enforcement LAMS inspections
policy across Huntingdonshire Public awareness 6 Month 22/25
Set up a 'Love Huntingdonshire'
To provide a single point of Stand alone website. Dedicated
access for community and to serving our communities and
Communications/Accessibility voluntary groups volunteers Website live Annually 22/24
Feasibility study on how to
Promote 'Schools Environment | make 'Schools Environment Decision based on feasibility
Week' Week' into an annual event study Annually 21/23
Benchmark annually against To provide annual data to APSE | Performance Network League
. Annually 21/22
other comparable councils performance networks Tables
Performance To introduce the ’La'nd Asset Training on‘ the system to'be
Management System’ LAMS to | arranged via APSE. Technical Scorecards Monthly 21/22

carry out performance
inspections

support to be arranged via HDC
IMD

13



Appendix 3 - Litter Strategy For England
The below is a summary of the Litter Strategy for England that can be found using the below link:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/litter-strategy-for-england

Send a clear and consistent anti-litter message:

developing, seeking funding for, and delivering a world class national anti-littering campaign
developing an anti-littering culture which aims to educate young people not to litter

inspiring and engaging local communities, and empowering them to take action, including
introducing a new ‘litter innovation fund’ to pilot, implement and evaluate small scale local
research projects that could be replicated more widely

Summary:

making a compelling business case for businesses of all kinds to invest in anti-litter activity
exploring voluntary and regulatory measures that aim to increase recycling and reduce litter
working with stakeholders to look at innovative ‘nudge’ techniques’ to tackle littering behaviour

Improve enforcement against offenders, including:

delivering on our Manifesto commitment to review the case for increasing fixed penalties for
littering and related offences

introducing new regulations to help councils tackle littering from vehicles —

providing improved guidance for councils on how to use their enforcement powers
proportionately and appropriately, and

raising councils’ and magistrates’ awareness of the range of sanctions available to tackle
littering and fly-tipping.

Clean up the country, including:

supporting national clean-up days

working with Highways England to put in place measures to deliver a lasting improvement in
cleanliness at 25 priority litter hotspots on the Strategic Road Network, including updating the
Code of Practice on Litter and Refuse to clarify the expected standards of cleanliness on the
Network

producing new guidance on “binfrastructure” (the design, number and location of public litter
bins and other items of street furniture) for local areas to help them reduce levels of litter
working with the relevant industries to tackle certain types of particularly problematic litter,
including fast-food packaging, smoking-related litter and chewing gum

exploring the ways in which packaging and packaging design can contribute to reducing litter

Page 32 of 210



Appendix 4 — National Framework

It is an offence to drop or leave litter and not pick it up. It applies to all land that is open to the air,
including land covered with water and privately owned land. A person found guilty of dropping litter
can be fined up to £2500 in a magistrate’s court.

Most offences can be dealt with through serving a Fixed Penalty Notice on the perpetrator by an
authorised body such as a local authority or police force. Fixed Penalty Notice charges are set locally
at between £75 and £150.

Litter is generally accepted to be anything below the size of a sack of household waste and is mostly
understood as items related to smoking, chewing gum or eating and drinking on the move where
unwanted items have not been properly disposed of or have been dropped inadvertently.

Section 89 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (EPA 1990) places a legal responsibility (a
‘duty’) on certain organisations to ensure that land, as far as is practicable, is kept clear of litter.

Section 91 of the EPA 1990 goes on to state that a person who is fed up with a long-standing litter
problem can use a Litter Abatement Order against those organisations listed under Section 89 (the
‘duty bodies’) if they are failing in their duty to keep that land clean.

There are six ‘Duty Bodies’ — local authorities, statutory undertakers such as rail and road agencies,

Crown Estate, colleges, schools and universities. Privately owned land not open to public access
does not qualify for a Litter Abatement Order.

Page 33 of 210



This page is intentionally left blank



Cl

gD

(Q

Public
Key Decision - No

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Title/Subject Matter:  COVID-19 District Impact Assessment

Meeting/Date: Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Customers and
Partnerships) — 2" December 2021

Executive Portfolio: Recovery - Councillor Steve Criswell

Report by: Assistant Director Recovery and
Recovery Programme Manager

Ward(s) affected: All

Executive Summary:

Huntingdonshire District Council established an 18 month recovery programme to ensure there
is a focus on supporting and enabling resilience amongst our communities and businesses to
recover from the impacts arising from the Covid -19 pandemic.

At the start of the pandemic the Council undertook a community impact assessment (July 2020)
to consider the key risks and issues as the basis for a set of projects that supported recovery and
the Council’'s emergency response during the pandemic.

The refreshed impact assessment sets out the key issues arising from the Covid-19 pandemic.
The evidence based process is presented against the four key goals of the Corporate Strategic
Plan: Good Start, Good Health, Good Work and Good Place.

The impact assessment underpins the focus of the Council, its communities and partners in
achieving an environment within which Huntingdonshire and its people can thrive, protecting
and enhancing the natural beauty of the area and ensuring the creation of sustainable places
where people want to live. We cannot address many of the issues identified on our own, some
are the responsibility of our partners. This impact assessment allows the Council to take a lead
with partners and our communities with an evidence base to support a safe and healthy
environment, deliver economic growth and create opportunities for the people of
Huntingdonshire.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The panel is requested to:
a) Consider and comment on the impact assessment and the key issues identified
b) Support the use of the evidence base and priorities to engage our partners and

communities in supporting Huntingdonshire to recover from the effects of COVID-19,
securing resources and commitment to the district and its people.

Page 35 of 210

(.)"I




1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the report is to provide Members with the findings of the second Impact
Assessment (which sets out the significant impacts on Huntingdonshire and its
communities) arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. This was concluded at the end of
October 2021.

The report sets out the key impacts set against the key challenges the Council adopted
in its Corporate Strategic Plan of Good Start, Good Health, Good Work and Good
Place. These are the evidenced based impacts that will inform the outcomes we seek
to achieve through service and project activities to promote a strong recovery, growing
resilience in Huntingdonshire, for our communities and businesses in a better position
to absorb and navigate unknown challenges in the future.

It is recognised that resilience can only be successful achieved when delivered in
partnership with other statutory, voluntary and community organisations. The objective
of the COVID Recovery programme is to work collaboratively, enabling all services to
engage with other responsible organisations to work towards common outcomes and
objectives whilst identifying the role HDC officers can contribute to key areas of work;
through direct delivery, preventative initiatives or leveraging/ lobbying other key delivery
partners.

The impact assessment supports all those working for a resilient Huntingdonshire and
focused on achieving our vision of a safe and healthy environment, deliver economic
growth and create opportunities for the people of Huntingdonshire. In doing so it will be
used as the basis for the Council’s on-going approach to achieving recovery outcomes
‘We are Huntingdonshire’ which will be presented in March 2022.

BACKGROUND

The COVID Recovery Programme (see Appendix 1 — Scope) was initiated from the
priority impacts identified through a Community Impact Assessment that Members
considered at Overview and Scrutiny panel on 8 July 2020.

This initial Impact Assessment was presented and approved by Members at Overview
and Scrutiny Panel on 25 January 2021 (Appendix 5).

The COVID Recovery programme continues to ensure the successful delivery of
projects delivered by HDC officers whilst retaining a monitoring function on those BAU
activities and projects delivered by partners. The COVID Recovery programme also
remains aligned to the workstreams within the Market Towns Programme through
monthly progress updates between programme managers.

The current scope of projects within the Recovery Programme are as follows:

¢ Food Network; to establish Food Banks and develop a Huntingdonshire Food
Poverty Action Plan.

e Early Intervention; to develop a diagnostic signposting tool (app).

e Business Digitisation; to register 100 stores registered with Click It Local (local
online shopping platform) and improve digitalisation for local businesses.

¢ Kickstart; to provide and fill 50 HDC placements and 50 Gateway (hon-HDC)
placements.

e Job Clubs; to establish 6 job clubs.

e Young Entrepreneurs; to support young people in the development of a viable
business.

e Healthy Living; to increase physical activity for inactive residents.

Page 36 of 210



2.5

3.1

3.2.

e Area Connectivity; to map walking & cycling routes and develop an HDC walking &
cycling strategy.

¢ Welcome Back; to support local businesses and increase footfall in the High
Streets of our four market towns.

The Council has recently adopted it Community (Transition) Strategy which sets out
how Huntingdonshire District Council will work with residents and community groups to
support the best possible outcomes for Huntingdonshire, its residents and businesses.
This approach is critical to recovery and embedding the capability and capacity for
prevention as well as response in relation to the key impacts on our communities that
have arisen from COVID-19.

APPROACH

To accurately assess the impacts of COVID over the duration of the pandemic (March
20- Sept 21) a further Impact Assessment was conducted. Unlike the initial Community
Impact Assessment 2020, where the objective was to identify the likely impacts of
COVID over the forthcoming months (a forward view), the 2021 Impact Assessment
uses data to establish where the impacts of COVID have been most significant
(retrospective view).

The Impact Assessment 2021 follows the framework of the already adopted Grand
Challenges, implemented by the County’s public sector service providers (and detailed
within Huntingdonshire District Council’s Corporate Plan.) These are set out as follows:

People (Good Start/Good Health):
We want to make our district a better place to live, to improve health and well-being
and support people to be the best they can be

Place (Good Place/Good Work):
We want to make Huntingdonshire a better place to work and invest and we want to

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

deliver new and appropriate housing.

The methodology for the Impact Assessment 2021 was derived by acknowledging an

increasing number of headlines on the impact of COVID-19 that emerged in the media.

To establish the relevance of these published national trends on the four Grand

Challenges the approach was:

¢ |dentify national trends for specific subject areas within a Topic

e Identify national datasets to validate the national trend — are these trends correct
and robust or just hype?

¢ |dentify if there was County data to support this national trend — are these trends
apparent in our County?

¢ |dentify if there was District data to support this national trend — are these trends
apparent in our District?

A total of 14 Topic areas were identified and within those, 59 Subject areas were
analysed for impacts because of the COVID pandemic (Appendix 2).

A confidence rating was attributed to each subject area, based on whether the
national trend has been validated at a national, county or district level. An impact
rating was also assigned to each subject area, based on the objective analysis of the
data, along with the subjective knowledge of Subject Matter Experts within the
organisation. A robust process of scoring and moderation was undertaken to ensure the
confidence and impact ratings reflected the current and expected impacts across these
subject areas.

Page 37 of 210



3.6.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

5.1.

Where there was an assumed impact that has not yet been realised e.g., through the
removal of Furlough, commentary was included to substantiate the impact rating.

FINDINGS AND RESULTS

To interpret the results the following analysis was conducted across the Impact

Assessment subject areas scores:

e High confidence = County, District or sub-district level data used

¢ Low confidence = Unreliable or only national data used

¢ High impact = Catastrophic of major impact because of the pandemic

¢ Low impact = Negligible, minor or moderate impact because of the pandemic

The analysis allowed the 59 subject areas to be segmented into a matrix format to
identify the highest known and unknow impacts and the lowest known and unknow
impacts (Appendix 3). NB: There were 6 impacts that were identified as POSITIVE
IMPACTS where the effects of the COVID pandemic had improved outcomes for

residents and/or businesses.

The results of the Impact Assessment (Appendix 4 — Full Impact Assessment) identified
26 high impacts because of the COVID pandemic. The impacts have been
consolidated into 15 priority areas of focus across the 4 Grand Challenges and set out

below:

Good start
PROVIDE life opportunities for residents
<+ SUPPORT our residents in Huntingdonshire to successfully adjust to all
life-changing events they experience from birth to grave
¢ Improve education and support for children 0-16 yrs
Improve further education and apprenticeships for 16+ yrs
Improve personal safety (in the home)
*  Prevent and reduce low income and poverty
Prevent and reduce emergency access to food

Good health

PROVIDE active opportunities for residents

<+ ENCOURAGE our residents in Huntingdonshire to make and take the
right choices to improve or support their health and wellbeing

*  Prevent and reduce obesity

Increase physical activity

* Improve mental health

*  Prevent and reduce adult social care

Good place
STRENGTHEN the local community
< SUPPPORT our residents in Huntingdonshire to remain living in the
area with affordable housing and a manageable cost of living
Create affordable housing for local residents
*  Improve personal safety (outside the home)
ENHANCE the local environment
< TAKE positive action to preserve and protect the natural environment
when making improvements and developments to Huntingdonshire
Increase use of parks and open spaces
Increase use of active travel (walking and cycling)
Increase public transport usage (bus and rail)

’
<

Good work

STRENGTHEN the local economy

SUPPORT our Huntingdonshire businesses if impacts such as COVID vs
Brexit and/or lack of skills and employment emerge over the coming
year

Improve skills and employment

The 15 priority focus areas should not be considered in isolation of each other or as
mutually exclusive. There are several areas of service delivery and project work that
support multiple areas. In addition, the continued work of HDC staff with wider external
partners e.g.: public health, police, voluntary & community sector ensures a wide range
of actions that can contribute to priority focus areas via directly delivered activities
(projects), smaller changes to service delivery (initiatives) and as preventative

measures (early interventions).

SUMMARY CONCLUSIONS

The COVID pandemic has had a significant negative effect on the outcomes of our
residents as demonstrated by the number of significant impacts in both Good Start and
Good Health. There were no positive impacts (significant or otherwise) in either of these

theme areas.

Page 38 of 210




5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

7.1

The COVID pandemic has been less damaging to the place with fewer significant
impacts identified in the community and 2 of the 3 priority focus areas being in relation to
positive impacts on both the environment and the increase in active travel (walking and

cycling).

Businesses across the district have been less negatively affected with only positive
significant impacts being identified in the Good Work theme area. This is predominantly
due to the Government'’s financial initiatives offered across the peak of the lockdown
restrictions to temporarily support the economy; business grants, support for self-
employed, Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (aka Furlough).

It is recognised that some impacts of the COVID pandemic are yet to be realised due to
the following:

e Data was not available when the Impact Assessment 2021 was conducted

¢ Government financial initiatives recently concluded or not yet concluded

¢ Data was not accessible from partner organisations to validate district impact

A full review and retrospective was conducted across the key stakeholders to assess the
guality of the Impacts Assessment 2021 report and the process undertaken to deliver it.
Feedback was positive and constructive to allow for an improved process being
delivered in 2022 (timelines to be confirmed).

Given the cross-cutting nature of the Recovery work, linking a wide range of services, a
dedicated Executive Councillor, Councillor Steve Criswell, was appointed to the Cabinet
in October to oversee the Council’s approach to Recovery.

NEXT STEPS

For significant impacts that have valid local data; to identify activities, initiatives or early
interventions within HDC and partner organisations that mitigate these impacts. A
process of communications and presentation activities will be supporting the
socialisation of the Impacts Assessment findings and further opportunities will be made
available to service areas to consider what/how service delivery needs to accommodate
or reduce these impacts. This will be incorporated with the service planning process
from January.

For significant issues that do not have valid local data; to investigate timelines of
datasets and partners’ access/ sharing of data to confirm whether these are valid
significant impacts in our district that need to be addressed.

For lower impacts that have valid local data; to monitor to ensure these impacts do not
increase in severity.

For lower impacts that do not have valid local data; to discuss with partners to validate
our assumptions. These impacts can be monitored if/when data is available to ensure
severity doesn’t increase.

LINK TO THE CORPORTATE PLAN/STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

The impact assessment underpins the focus of the Council, its communities and
partners in achieving an environment within which Huntingdonshire and its people can
thrive, protecting and enhancing the natural beauty of the area and ensuring the creation
of sustainable places where people want to live. We cannot address many of the issues
identified on our own, some are the responsibility of our partners. This impact
assessment allows the Council to take a lead with partners and our communities with an
evidence base to support the Council’s vision: a safe and healthy environment,

Page 39 of 210



deliver economic growth and create opportunities for the people of
Huntingdonshire.

7.2 The refreshed impact assessment sets out the key issues arising from the Covid-19
pandemic. The evidence based process is presented against the four key goals of the
Corporate Strategic Plan: Good Start, Good Health, Good Work and Good Place.

8. CONSULTATION

8.1 The development of the Impact Assessment has been a collaborative process across
the Council with the information and initial analysis undertaken by the Transformation
team and consultation with assigned theme leads to inform the assessment of
magnitude of impact and degree of certainty regarding the information.

8.2 This report is the start of collaboration with Scrutiny Panel members to discuss the
findings and key impacts identified that will inform the planning of service provision but
also our wider engagement with the community and our partners to maximise the
resources and activities in Huntingdonshire targeted at addressing the impacts identified
as resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic.

8.3 The evidence base will be shared with our partners and the results of this collaboration
and the reporting of key impacts will inform the Council’s on-going approach to recovery,
‘We Are Huntingdonshire’ which will be presented in March 2022.

9. LEGAL IMPICATIONS

9.1 There are no direct legal implications from this report

10. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no additional resource implications arising from this report

11. HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in respect of health have been
highlighted as a key impact and work continues in respect of the specific recovery
project: Healthy Living; to increase physical activity for inactive residents.

12. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1 The recognition of the key issues impacting Huntingdonshire arising from the COVID-19
pandemic supports:

¢ Future service planning informed by the evidenced priorities

o Effective deployment of recovery intervention projects on the main issues

¢ Enables officers and Councillors to make the case with our community and partners
for resources and efforts to tackle the main issues impacting Huntingdonshire to
deliver our Corporate objectives.

LIST OF APPENDICES

APPENDIX 1 (SCOPE OF RECOVERY PROGRAMME JAN 2021)
APPENDIX 2 (TOPIC AND SUBJECT AREAS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 2021)
APPENDIX 3 (MATRIX OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT SCORES)

Page 40 of 210



APPENDIX 4 (FULL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 2021)

APPENDIX 5 (IMPACT ASSESSMENT 2020)
HTTP://APPLICATIONS.HUNTINGDONSHIRE.GOV.UK/MODERNGOV/DOCUMENTS/S10977
7/APPENDIX%201%20-

%20COMMUNITY%20IMPACT%20ASSESSMENT%20ECONOMY %20ENVIRONMENT%20S
OCIAL%20AND%20COMMUNITY%20RECOVERY.PDF

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
Recovery Report - Overview and Scrutiny (Performance and Growth) 8 July 2020

http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=10235&MId=
7756

Recovery Programme — Special Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Performance and Growth) 25
January 2021

http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=10235&MId=
7897

Community (Transition) Strategy 2021-23

https://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s117477/5.%20Community
%20Transition%20Strategy%202021%202023%20Covering%20Report.pdf

Impact Assessment October 2021
To be added

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Name/Job Title: Neil Sloper — Assistant Director Recovery
Tel No: 01480 787635

Email: neil.sloper@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
Name/Job Title: Liz Smith — Recovery Programme Manager
Email: liz.smith@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 41 of 210


http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s109777/Appendix%201%20-%20Community%20Impact%20Assessment%20Economy%20Environment%20Social%20and%20Community%20Recovery.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s109777/Appendix%201%20-%20Community%20Impact%20Assessment%20Economy%20Environment%20Social%20and%20Community%20Recovery.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s109777/Appendix%201%20-%20Community%20Impact%20Assessment%20Economy%20Environment%20Social%20and%20Community%20Recovery.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s109777/Appendix%201%20-%20Community%20Impact%20Assessment%20Economy%20Environment%20Social%20and%20Community%20Recovery.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=10235&MId=7756
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=10235&MId=7756
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=10235&MId=7897
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=10235&MId=7897
https://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s117477/5.%20Community%20Transition%20Strategy%202021%202023%20Covering%20Report.pdf
https://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s117477/5.%20Community%20Transition%20Strategy%202021%202023%20Covering%20Report.pdf

APPENDIX 1 (SCOPE OF RECOVERY PROGRAMME JAN 2021)

Nineteen areas of work were identified to address the impacts of COVID-19 across these key
themes. An organisational programme review, in April 2021, rationalised these areas of work
into projects delivered by HDC officers, projects delivered by partner organisations and
Business as Usual (BAU) activities.

The below was agreed by Corporate Senior Leadership team on 18" May 2021 enabling the
Recovery Programme to proceed as follows:

. Projects — actively managed, reported and outcomes measured through the
recovery programme

. Un-scoped — actively managed to initiate the project work and include as a live
project in the programme

. Partner delivery — BAU resource to maintain role of Subject Matter Expert if/when
required for input by the delivery partner but no further action required

. Business as Usual — regular reporting required to maintain monitoring of activity but

no active management of a live project as part of the programme

1. Food Poverty 9. Young 12. Active Travel 2. Business CRM
Entrepreneurial Schemes
Support
4. MHCLG Early 10. Healthy Living 13. Green Recovery 3. Business
Intervention Challenge Engagement
5. Business 11. Rough Sleepers
Digitisation - Click it
Local
6. Kickstart 16. Reopening of
Leisure Centres
7. Local Job Clubs 17. Car parking
charges
8. Improving Digital 18. Maximising NNDR
Infrastructure and Council Tax
Collection
14. Town and large 19. Maximising rental
employment area income on Estates
connectivity portfolio

15. Town Centre
reopening - Think
Local

Page 42 of 210



APPENDIX 2 (TOPIC AND SUBJECT AREAS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 2021)

GOOD START
Topic: Education & Training (apprenticeships, getting into work)
Subject: Uptake of university places
Subject: GCSE and A Level results
Subject: Apprenticeships
Topic: Personal Safety
Subject: Domestic abuse
Subject: Social Services — Children’s
Subject: Court services and offender management
Topic: Support Network
Subiject: Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisations
Subject: Volunteering rates
Subiject: Local Authority support for vulnerable residents affected by COVID-19
Subject: Loneliness and social isolation
Topic: Financial Hardship
Subject: Benefits
Subject: Free School Meals (FSM)
Subject: Food bank use
Subject: Requests for advice and support regarding debt and low income
GOOD HEALTH
Topic: Health
Subiject: Life expectancy
Subiject: Obesity - adults
Subiject: Obesity - children
Subiject: Physical activity - adults
Subject: Physical activity — older people
Subiject: Physical activity — children and young people
Subject: Mental health
Subject: Impact on other health conditions
Subiject: Behavioural risk factors (alcohol and smoking)
Subject: Adult Social Care
GOOD PLACE
Topic: Waste Services
Subject: Household waste (all types)
Subject: Food waste
Topic: Housing Demand
Subject: Housing repossessions
Subiject: Local Authority housing waiting lists
Subject: Homelessness
Subject: House prices
Subject: Housing rental market
Subject: Housing affordability (house purchases)
Subject: Housing supply
Topic: Environment
Subject: Climate change
Subject: Air quality
Topic: Public Open Spaces
Subject: Use of public parks and spaces

Page 43 of 210



Topic: High Streets
Subject: Local shopping
Subiject: Parking
Subject: Markets
Topic: Crime and Justice
Subject: Crime and anti-social behaviour offences/reports
Topic: Transport and Infrastructure
Subject: Taxi and private hire vehicle usage
Subject: Rail usage
Subject: Road usage — motor vehicles
Subject: Road usage — cycling
Subject: Bus usage
Subject: Broadband connections
GOOD WORK
Topic: Economic Growth
Subject: Economic productivity
Subject: Economic support through business grants
Subject: Key business sectors - Retall
Subject: Key business sectors - Construction
Subject: Key business sectors - Manufacturing
Subject: Business activity
Subject: Wages
Topic: Employment
Subject: Job vacancies
Subject: Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (aka Furlough)
Subject: Redundancy
Subject: Unemployment
Subject: Self-employment
Subject: Support for self-employed residents

Page 44 of 210



APPENDIX 3 (MATRIX OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT SCOREYS)

SUB-DISTRICT
DATA AVAILABLE

0T¢ J0 Gt abed

CONFIDENCE

NO NATIONAL
DATA

NEGLIGIBLE

HIGHEST UNKNOWN IMPACT IN OUR DISTRICT

GCSE results

Court services and offender management

Physical activity — older people

Housing rental market (within district)

Housing affordability/ house purchases (within district)
Road usage — cycling (sport & leisure); POSITIVE IMPACT
Bus usage

IMPACT

CATASTROPHIC

v



This page is intentionally left blank



Version control:

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

—r e

Huntingdonshire

Dsill S TR 1€ T

2021

€@ U N C€I1L

mpact Assessment for
Huntingdonshire District

Version Author/Updates Date Amends

Version 0.1 Dan Buckridge August 2021 Data analysis and
Emma Charter content
James Clayton
Declan Rice
Liz Smith

Version 0.2 Claudia Deeth 22" & 23" September | Commentary
Neil Sloper 2021 Scoring and Moderation
Jayne Wisely for Good Start, Good
Pamela Scott Health, Good Place
Jon Collen

Version 0.3 Nykki Rogers 13 October 2021 Commentary
Paul Gibbons Scoring and Moderation
James Clayton for Good Work

Version 1.0 Jon Collen 25™ October 2021 Theme Owner sign-off
Nykki Rogers for respective sections
Neil Sloper
Jayne Wisely Assistant Director
Claudia Deeth (Recovery) sign-off
Liz Smith

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 47 of 210

Page 1 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Foreword

The COVID-19 pandemic is one of the greatest challenges of our times. We have seen the impact of COVID-
19 in Huntingdonshire over the last year, on our services, on our people and on our businesses. We have
collectively achieved the unimaginable by stepping out of our normal lives in the face of the crisis, and
individually taking responsibility to ensure ourselves, our families and our communities are safe and
protected from this virus. This new and energised community focus has been overwhelming and humbling
to witness and has helped in some way to offset the damaging impact of extended lockdown periods for
our health, our High Streets and other local economies.

Back in June 2020 we recognised the impact of COVID was going to be significant and we undertook a
Community Impact Assessment to identify what the early impacts of the pandemic would be. This
assessment was invaluable in allowing us to plan activities to support our residents and businesses over the
proceeding months. We have been able to support communities with Food Banks and Community Fridges,
provide subsidised exercise classes, proactively contact and support the most vulnerable in our community,
develop employability skills through job clubs and the Government’s Kickstart scheme and provide essential
support for our local businesses via online digital platforms (Click It Local) whilst re-energising the High
Streets in our four market towns. These are just a few examples of the work we have undertaken with our
partners to help during this difficult time, all the while maintaining our core services to residents and
businesses to ensure life can try to continue as normal.

Eighteen months on from the first lockdown the world, and our local environment, is a different place. We
see headlines emerging every day about the new legacy the pandemic has created and are bombarded with
statistics that suggest we will have a long recovery journey back from COVID. This recent Impact
Assessment works to address those headlines and put some objective analysis behind the statements so we
can assess wWhether they are fact or fiction. The approach for the Impact Assessment 2021 looks at whether
the national headlines are substantiated and then goes on further to see if those headlines directly apply to
Huntingdonshire. By taking this approach we can accurately assess not only the state of our district since
the pandemic started, but also identify those impacts that are significant and therefore need to be
addressed immediately.

The Impact Assessment 2021 is a thorough and evidence-based analysis of our district, based on the latest
data available at September 2021, but our journey doesn’t stop there. Things change, situations improve,
challenges emerge that we didn’t expect, and we need to respond to all of these pressures. This report is
the beginning of an ongoing commitment to regularly assess what our district is like for residents and
businesses. It will form the basis of ongoing analysis for key indicators that will provide us with the ‘early
warning signs’ with enough time to prevent significant impacts. The work undertaken to create this report
creates the foundation stones to understand our district better and constantly improve the lives of our
residents and businesses into the future, irrespective of the challenges.

Cllr Ryan Fuller

Executive Leader of Huntingdonshire District Council

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 2 of 154

Page 48 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Table of Contents

FOP@WOIT ...ttt sttt b e s bt e s bt e s st e et e e b e e s bt e sae e s as e e bt e bt e beesbeesaeesmneeateenbeenneenmnenane 2
T (e e [V To1d o] o FORRT OO S U SPTOT PRSP PPUPOPPRPRO 6
Structure of the IMPact ASSESSMENT .. ...viii it e e e s rbee e e s sb e e e e s sabeeesesabeeeeesabeeessnasees 8
V=1 VoY Fo] Lo} oV A SRR 8
HOW £0 USE this dOCUMENT ....eiiiiiiiiee ettt sttt et b e s b e s e st e et e e b e e sbeesaeeeaee 9
Information on the iNstances Of COVID-19 ......ccciiiiiiiiiieieeeree ettt sttt sne e 10
FA oo Uy Al o 0 g Nl Y = [o] g 1] o 11 =SSR 11
About our residents; Good Start, GOod Health ... e 12
GOOD ST ART et s 12
Topic: Education & Training (apprenticeships, getting into Work)........cccoccvveeeeciiei e 12
Subject: Uptake of UNIVEISItY PIACES ..c.uviiiieiee ettt e e e e e e e e s e e e e s eareee e ennnes 12
Subject: GCSE aNd A LEVEI FESUILS ....eeiieiiiiiciiiee ettt sttt e e e e e s e e e s e e e e s aae e e e s nbeaeessreeeesnnsees 13
U] o =Tor Y o] o T =Y g N Tol =T o 1o 1O USSP 18
o) o ToRl =T8T g BT (] 1Y/ 23
N U] oJ=Tor e D o] o g 1T o= o 10 <IN SP 23
Subject: SocCial SErVICES — CHIlAIENS.......uiiieeieee e et e et e e e et e e e e abee e s e ateeeeenreeaeeanees 24
Subject: Court services and offender ManagemMEeNt.........cooviiiiiiiiiiiecree e 27
o] o TR U] o] o Yo o fl 11 1YY/ o PRSP 29
Subject: Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) 0rganisations ..........ccceeeeecieieeiiieeeeecieeeeeeieeeeeeveee e 29
N U] o J=To Y Lo (W] 0l Y= T o = =Y o <1 ST 31
Subject: Local Authority support for vulnerable residents affected by COVID-19........cccccevvreeeenciieeennnen, 34
Subject: Loneliness and sOCial iSOIAtioN .......c.uviiiiiiiiiiciee e e e e e 35
o] (obl T =Yg Yol =Y I o T o ] o PRSP 38
Y] o J=Tor 1T =Y 1 £ 38
Subject: Free SChool IMEaIS (FSIM) ..ottt ettt e et e e et e e e et e e e e ate e e e eabaeeeeateeeeenreeaeennsens 44
U] o =Yoo Yo I o T= o1 QU LY T USSP 44
Subject: Requests for advice and support regarding debt and low inCOmMe ........cccccevevceeeiviiee e, 45
GOOD HEALTH ..ttt ettt ettt ettt st st et e bt e b e s be e she e et e et e e bt e s beesmeesanesane e b e enneenneennees 46
o) o Tobal x I o o PRSP 46
YU o <Tor ML £ = d o T=Tor = Lox Y AU 48
SUDJECE: OBESITY = AUUILS...eiiiiiee it e e e e s e e e e st e e e e s bbeeeessbeeeeestaeeeannteeeeannsees 50
Subject: ODESItY = CHIlAIEN.......iii e e s e e s s e e e e e abe e e e s ataeeesnteeeesneees 53
Subject: Physical actiVity - @dUIES..........uiiiiieei e e e e e e e e e e e rae s 54
Subject: Physical activity — Older PEOPIE c.ceeee e e e 56
Subject: Physical activity — children and young peopIe.........uuevie e e 57
YU o =To a1V F=T oY = W 1= ] 1 o OSSP 58
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 3 of 154

Page 49 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Impact on other health CONAItIONS ......coociiiiiiiec e e 61
Subject: Behavioural risk factors (alcohol and sSmMoKking)........c..ooeeoiiiiiciiiic e 62
U] o =To e LU Yo Lol - | I -1 O SRS 64
About our district; GOOd Place, GOOU WOKK.... ... e 66
GOOD PLACE ... ettt ettt sttt ettt e b e e s bt e s bt e s ae e st e e bt et e e bt e bt e sbe e eae e e ab e et e e bt e nbeesaeesaneeabe e b e e abeenneennees 66
TOPIC: WASTE SEIVICES ....eeiiiiiiieeeiitteee ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e s s aab e et e e e e e s e s st baetaeeesseassssbbaaaeesssasnnneaaaeeesssanannn 66
Subject: HOUSENOId WASTE (Al TYPES) .eviveieiiieeiie ettt ee et et e e rae e st e e rae e sae e e e raeesaseeenees 66
N U] o =Yoo T Lo IV 1) TSRS PSP 67
B oY o) Tobl o [oTU Iy g BT=T o oT- s Vo 1S PRSP 68
YU o =Tor il o [ LU T [T =T o T Ty St [ ] o L SR 70
Subject: Local Authority housing Waiting lIStS......ccuuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 73
U] o =Yoo To T 0 aT] F=T ] o LT USSP 75
N U] o <Tor o [ LU Tyl o o ol Ty SR 76
Subject: HOUSING reNtal MaArKeT........ooi i e e e e e e e e e e e s e are e e e eareeeeennes 78
Subject: Housing affordability (hoUSE PUIChAsEs)......cccuviiiiiiiiieeeee e e 79
U] o =Tor o T YOIy g =Y U] o] ] 1 TSR 81
B o] o1 To =1 5 1Y/1 doT 0] 0 1] o | APPSR PPPPPPPPOE 85
YU oJ<To @ [T g ¥ F (I o F= T oV OSSP 85
N U] o T =Yoo [U = 1 SR 86
o] o Tobl U] o] ol @] o 1= o BT o T- ol PRSP 88
Subject: Use of public parks and SPaces.......c..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 88
o] o Tobl o 1= g T A T PRSP 90
NIV o <Tor sl o Tor: | I e VoY o] o] g V-SSP 90
Y] o =Yoo= T 41 o= USSP 94
N U] o J=To 1V, - T ] A USSP 96
B oY o (ob @l g T s 1= o I TN Ty o o PRSP 98
Subject: Crime and anti-social behaviour offenCes/rEPOItS.......ccveviiiiiiiiieiie ettt 98
Topic: Transport and INFrastrUCTUIE .......ocuiii it et e e et e e e e e te e e e et e e e e e eabae e e eensaeeeenrens 100
Subject: Taxi and private hire VENICIE USAZE .......ccuuieiiiiiie e et 101
U] o J=Tor 2T VT PP 102
Subject: Road Usage — MOtOr VENICIES......cciciiiii it sbr e e e e earee e e e eaees 103
Y] o) [=Tel tfl 2o Y- [o MU LY: T IRl or ol 1 o = PR 105
Y o [Tt gl = TU U 7=V =PRI 107
Subject: Broadband CONNECLIONS..........uuiiiiiii it e e e e e e et e e e e e e e ssnbereeeeeeeeessnsrneeees 108
GOOD WORK ..ttt ettt sttt et ettt s bt st st e bt e bt e b e s bt e saae st e et e e b e e s beesaeesabesab e e bt e beeareesateenreenneens 113
[ o] o] (obl XoleYa Yo T Y [o €1 o 1V o o OSSPSR 113
Y] o [=Te4 9l =t ele Y VoT0 o 1ol o1 o Yo I8 1Y/ 1 4V 2 SRR 114
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 4 of 154

Page 50 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Economic support through business grants .........cccueeeieiiiiiiciie e e 117
Subject: Key business sectors - RETAil........ouiiiiiiiiiiii e e 118
Subject: Key business sectors - CONSEIUCTION .....ocuiiiiiiiiii ettt e e sbee e e sbee e e b 121
Subject: Key business sectors - ManuUfacCtUring.........coccueiiiiiiie i 122
U] o Tor = TU T [ YT Y- [t f AV Y2 SRR 124
YU o J=To N T =PSRRI 127
Lo e ToR 32T o] (o1 1'0T=T o | S SPUPR 130
U] o =Tor i Lo o RV [oF= o Tl 1= PSPPI 131
Subject: Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (aka FUrlough) ......ccoeeeiiiiiiiiie e 134
U] o <Tor fl 2=Te [T Yo = o o USSP 137
U] o =To W Lo T=T o 0T o] Fo )Y 4 1=T | PSPPI 141
U] o =To =1L =T g o] (o 1Y 4 o =T o | APPSR 148
Subject: Support for self-employed reSIdENTS.........ccoiciiiiicciie e e 150
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 5 of 154

Page 51 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Introduction

Since the beginning of 2020 the Coronavirus (COVID-19) has dominated headlines and lives across the
world. It has caused the worst pandemic in a century due to the severity of the respiratory conditions it can
initiate and, due to the absence of pre-existing immunity, is extremely transferrable. As a response to the
emerging pandemic the UK Government introduced unprecedented measures to reduce the population’s
risk of contracting the virus. These were:

Restriction of movement

Restriction of social interaction

Increase in hygiene control measures
Introduction of a vaccination programme

PwnNE

Since March 2020 a number of enforcement activities have been introduced, and subsequently removed, to
support the measures above. These activities are set out in the timeline below

Timeline of UK government coronavirus lockdowns, March 2020 to June 2021

Source: Institute for Government analysis. @ BY-NC

With national policy changing on almost a monthly basis, the nation has had to adopt a very different way
of life for work/education and social interaction. The effects on both people and place has been profound,
as individuals try to continue with their ‘normal’ lives. This has been even more challenging for individuals
and families who have had to help and care for loved ones contracting the COVID-19 virus.

As a public sector organisation, Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) provides services for both residents
and businesses to support them to thrive. The direct impact of contracting the virus along with the control
measures introduced by the Government has had a significant impact on the whole district. As a result,
HDC commissioned a comprehensive assessment of the district in June 2020, to better understand the
emerging risks and impacts of the pandemic. A year we have carried out a similar assessment to see
whether the emerging risks and impacts were realised and whether the scale of the impacts has been as
significant as predicted.

The Impact Assessment 2021 assessed national and local data to identify trends for both residents and
businesses. These trends have been analysed to better understand the general changes to behaviour and

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 6 of 154

Page 52 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

environment along with identifying any specific cohorts that have been disproportionally affected by the
pandemic. As a result of this data-driven evaluation, HDC and wider partners can speculate on the expected
level of need for residents and businesses and therefore work proactively to ensure service provision can
meet those needs for the short and longer term.

Given the significant level of change since the pandemic started the intention is to conduct an Impact
Assessment on an annual basis to provide an ongoing review of impacts and trends. This will support public
sector organisations to meet the emerging and changing needs of the district as the impact of COVID, and
other contributing factors eg: Brexit, becomes embedded into the new way we live our lives.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 7 of 154

Page 53 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Structure of the Impact Assessment

To structure the analytical approach, and ensure the conclusion would be meaningful to a range of internal
and external colleagues, the assessment follows the framework of the already adopted Grand Challenges,
implemented by the County’s public sector service providers (and detailed within Huntingdonshire District
Council’s Corporate Plan.) These are set out as follows:

People (Good Start/Good Health):
We want to make our district a better place to live, to improve health and well-being and
support people to be the best they can be

Place (Good Place/Good Work):
We want to make Huntingdonshire a better place to work and invest and we want to

deliver new and appropriate housing.

Methodology

The methodology for the Impact Assessment 2021 was derived by acknowledging an increasing number of
headlines on the impact of COVID-19 that emerged in the media. This is a different situation compared to
the previous Community Impact Assessment in June 2020, when very little was known about the impacts
and even less could be validated through robust datasets.

To establish the relevance of the published national trends relating to COVID-19 on the four Grand
Challenges the approach was to:

1. Identify national trends for specific subject areas within a Topic
2. Identify national datasets to validate the national trend — are these trends correct and robust or

just hype?

3. ldentify if there was County data to support this national trend — are these trends apparent in our
County?

4. Identify if there was District data to support this national trend — are these trends apparent in our
District?

This approach allowed us to construct a confidence rating based on whether the national trend has been
able to be validated at a national, county or district level. The approach also allows us to construct an
impact rating based on the objective analysis of the data, along with the subjective knowledge of Subject
Matter Experts within the organisation. A robust process of scoring and moderation was undertaken to
ensure the confidence and impact ratings reflected the current and expected impacts across these subject

areas.

NB: where there is an assumed impact that has not yet been realised eg: through the removal of Furlough,
commentary is included to substantiate the impact rating.

Confidence rating scores:

5 HIGH Sub-district level data available
4 MEDIUM/HIGH | Validated at District level
3 MEDIUM Validated at County Level
2 LOW/MEDIUM | Validated at national level only

1 LOW Lack of good quality data

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 8 of 154

Page 54 of 210



https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/council-democracy/council-open-data-and-information/corporate-plan-and-performance/
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/council-democracy/council-open-data-and-information/corporate-plan-and-performance/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Impact rating scores:

5 HIGH Catastrophic impact to affect residents/ businesses in Huntingdonshire
4 MEDIUM/HIGH | Major impact to affect residents/ businesses in Huntingdonshire

3 MEDIUM Moderate impact to affect residents/ businesses in Huntingdonshire

2 LOW/MEDIUM | Minor impact to affect residents/ businesses in Huntingdonshire

1 LOW Negligible impact to affect residents/ businesses in Huntingdonshire

Each Topic area contains an overview table at the start of the section, setting out the national trend that
was identified, the confidence rating and the impact score. Example overview table below:

Topic: Waste services

MATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
@) 3
)
D -
Collected household waste | 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 2 = LOW/MEDIUM
Household has increased since the {District level data (Minimal impact as
waste (all types] | beginning of the available) although level of waste

fluctuated demand has

pandemic/ lockdown
continued to be met)

restrictions

Food waste volumes 2 = LOW/MEDIUM 1=L0W

Food waste temporarily decreased at {National data available) (Negligible POSITIVE
the beginning of the impact as the change
pandemic/ first lockdown noted was only short term)

restrictions

How to use this document

The Table on Contents on page 3 details all the Topic and Subject areas contained within the Impact
Assessment. The page numbers in the Table of Content are hyperlinks and readers can jump to the
required section by clicking the page number in the Table. To return to the Table of Contents click on the
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE link at the bottom left of every page.

LT I T ] 113
QL= T oty T Ty Tl ] o T 113
Subject: ECOnOmMIC ProtUC VIt e rsssssismrs s sriss s ssias s s sras s s srsanassre s sranssnses srnmssases srnsesneasnssnsnsan 114

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 9 of 154

Page 55 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Information on the instances of COVID-19

Over 16,000 positive Covid-19 cases have been reported for Huntingdonshire residents from 13" March
2020 to 2" October 2021. This is equivalent to a cumulative rate of 8,946 per 100,000 residents (or 8.95%
of residents). Ranking all lower tier or unitary local authority areas by their rates per 100,000 shows that
Huntingdonshire had the 256" highest cumulative case rate of all 315 areas in England. The national
average rate to 2" October 2021 is 11,934 per 100,000 residents so Huntingdonshire’s rate is 25% below
average.

However, infection rates can change rapidly with rankings based on the headline 7-day case rate showing
that Huntingdonshire has at times had one of the highest infection rates in the country (peaking at third
highest in England on 14™ May 2020) as well as having one of the lowest infection rates at other times
(falling as low as 4" lowest in England on 27* October 2020). This can be seen in the graph below. At the
time of writing, infection rates for Huntingdonshire are relatively high and rank among the top 50 areas.

7-day Case Rate Ranking for Huntingdonshire (of 315 lower tier or unitary authority areas)

Huntingdosnhire Ranking (1 = highest, 315 = lawest)

g§ B2 B 2 &K B L 2 BEESESEEE S E N LN E Y E S E L E S g B £
2 2 2 2 2 8 2 35 35 88 8855 £ E EE§EE E 8 88 3 & =2 2 8 g 8 &
e S R s R A g B B
8 B 8 8 B ¥ 8 ¥ ¥ 8 8 8 8 8 8 3 3 8 8B I RE®EE:ZEZREEQEE

Data is also reported on deaths linked to Covid-19, with two different measures used for this. The first is
deaths within 28 days of a positive test for Covid-19. On this measure, 266 deaths of Huntingdonshire
residents have been reported to 1°* October 2021. This is equivalent to a rate per 100,000 population of
148.6, which is the 257 highest rate of all 315 lower tier and unitary areas in England. The national
average rate to 1° October 2021 is 213.2 per 100,000 so Huntingdonshire’s rate is 30% below average.

The other measure of deaths linked to Covid-19 is deaths where Covid-19 is mentioned on the death
certificate as one of the causes. There have been 313 of these relating to Huntingdonshire residents up to
the week ending 1% October 2021. This is equivalent to a rate per 100,000 population of 174.9, which is the
271% highest rate of all 315 lower tier and unitary areas in England. The national average rate to 1** October
2021 is 243.7 per 100,000 so Huntingdonshire’s rate is 28% below average.

It should be noted that both death rates referred to here are crude rates per 100,000 population and have
not been age-standardised or otherwise weighted to account for age structure or other differences in
population characteristics. Cambridgeshire County Council/Peterborough City Council’s Public Health
Intelligence/Business Intelligence and CCG Intelligence teams are working together on a collaborative
programme of intelligence work on the impacts of Covid-19 and emerging needs in Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough. Their initial “COVID-19: Review of emerging evidence of Needs and Impacts on
Cambridgeshire & Peterborough” includes a first suite of information which focusses on the immediate
health impacts of Covid-19 as well as some economic, transport and air quality impacts. Their report states
that, when standardised for the ages of the population, “Deaths from all-causes and from COVID-19 are
statistically significantly lower in Cambridgeshire compared to the England average” for the 14 months to

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 10 of 154

Page 56 of 210



https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/cases?areaType=ltla&areaName=Huntingdonshire
https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/deaths?areaType=ltla&areaName=Huntingdonshire
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

April 2021. Their Executive Summary states that, taking the age of the population into account, all
Cambridgeshire districts except Fenland (which is statistically similar to England) “have a statistically
significantly low cumulative mortality rate with regard to deaths within 28 days of a positive test compared
to England”.

The Covid-19 vaccination programme has been a key element in the Government’s roadmap to lifting
restrictions and data is published on a daily basis which shows the number of people vaccinated in
Huntingdonshire. At 1%t October 2021, 139,607 Huntingdonshire residents had received their first dose of a
Covid-19 vaccine. Vaccinations are currently being made available to those aged 12-15 so vaccination rates
show the proportion of all those aged 12 and over who have been vaccinated. At 1% October 2021,
Huntingdonshire had a first dose vaccination rate of 82.9% and a second dose vaccination rate of 77.1%.
These rates are higher than the national averages of 75.5% for first doses and 69.6% for second doses.

About Huntingdonshire

Huntingdonshire is the largest district in Cambridgeshire, with a population at mid-2020 of 178,985 and a
land area of over 900 square km (350 square miles). The district is predominately rural in nature, but the
settlement pattern gives a close to 50/50 urban/rural split in terms of population distribution. In addition to
the market towns of Huntingdon, Ramsey, St Ilves and St Neots, Huntingdonshire contains one other town,
Godmanchester, and a large number of villages of varying sizes, hamlets and isolated dwellings in the
countryside across 80 parishes.

Demography

Huntingdonshire has a slightly older than average population, with 15% of the district’s residents aged 70 or
over compared to 13.6% nationally. Health and life expectancy are better than average, with 84.5%
describing their health as ‘Very Good’/ ‘Good’ in the 2011 Census, although an above average proportion
are overweight (64.8%). Residents are predominantly “White British” but there are over 8,000 BAME
residents.

Towns and Villages

Outside the towns, the larger settlements have a range of services such as a primary school, a range of
shops, public transport services, a community meeting place, a general practitioner's surgery and a range of
employment opportunities. These settlements often play a role in providing services for residents of nearby
smaller villages and countryside areas.

Community Involvement

There are currently 71 Town/Parish Councils and 9 Parish Meetings listed on the District Council website.
Huntingdonshire has a well-established community and voluntary sector, well supported by Hunts Forum.

Economy

Residents are more likely to be economically active and more likely to be in employment than average, with
average wages for those living in the district (regardless of where they work) also above average. However,
local jobs tend to pay lower wages as reflected in commuting patterns with over a third of employed
residents travelling outside the district to work in 2011. A high proportion of local employment is linked to
the manufacturing industry at nearly 15% compared to a national average of just over 8%.

Beyond the physical geography, Huntingdonshire is part of three economic geographies - Greater
Cambridge, Greater Peterborough and the Fens - as stated in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough
Independent Economic Review, which was developed by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Independent
Economic Commission.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 11 of 154

Page 57 of 210



https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/vaccinations?areaType=ltla&areaName=Huntingdonshire
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/annualmidyearpopulationestimates/mid2020

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

About our residents; Good Start, Good Health

Numerous sources suggest that the last 18 months of living with the COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated
some of the pre-existing inequalities that existed across several key domains of life including employment
and ability to earn, family life and health.

The following sections of the Impact Assessment seeks to use local data to analyse whether these national
trends are reflected in the Huntingdonshire district and whether there are unique impacts for our residents
that do not follow the national trends.

GOOD START

Topic: Education & Training (apprenticeships, getting into

work)
NATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
O @
More applications to 2 = LOW/MEDIUM 3 = MEDIUM
Uptake of Universities have been (Only national data (Moderate impact as other
University deferred since the available) further education offers
Places beginning of the are available)

pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

GCSE Results

GCSE examination grade
results have improved
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(Major impact as most
employers require maths
and English GCSEs)

A Level Results

A Level examination grade
results have improved
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact as other
further education offers
are available)

Apprenticeships

Fewer apprenticeships
have started since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(National data available
down to district level)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

(Major impact due to
workplace access, furlough
and redundancy)

Subject: Uptake of university places

National data: London Economics commissioned YouthSight to administer a survey of higher education
applicants to better understand the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on prospective enrolment behaviour
regarding the academic year September 2020. A small sample of respondents (516) took part across five
days in May 2020, of which 87% were domiciled within the UK and 3% of those were in the Eastern Region.
Their analysis of the national results suggested that approximately 17% of UK respondents who were

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 58 of 210

Page 12 of 154



https://londoneconomics.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/LE-UCU-Deferral-Analysis-20-05-2020-FINAL-ABB.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

preparing to attend university that year would not enrol if higher education institutions were not
operating as normal because of the pandemic.

Data published by UCAS in July 2021 shows that nearly 700,000 applications were made for a university
place in the UK (at the June 2021 deadline), an increase of 4% compared to the number of applications in
2020. Applications from the East of England totalled 46,740, an increase of 8% compared to the previous
year. The number of applications deferred compared to 2020 increased by 19% nationally, from 79,590 to
94,480 which is the highest levels seen over the previous 10-year period.

Number of University Applications and Number of Applications Deferred by Year

700K 682K 700K

673K 675K
600K

600K

500K

Deferred

400K 400K

o ®Number Applications
'E ‘@ Number Deferred
S

300K =

Number Applications

300K

200K 200K

100K [ 5o | 100K

80K

oK 0K

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Year

Figure 1: University Applications and Deferments Per Year, UK. Source: UCAS

Local data: There is no data at local level that provides statistics on the number of applications (or the
number deferred) made by students from within the Cambridgeshire County or Huntingdonshire District.

Subject: GCSE and A Level results

National data: Due to the pandemic, GCSE and A/AS Level exams that were due to take place in 2020 were
cancelled because of the disruption caused to students by way of school closures and interruption of
learning for periods of time. Instead, the results were based on either teacher prediction (of what the
student would have been capable of achieving had the exams been completed) or an algorithm developed
by Ofqual — whichever of the two were the highest. Because the results calculated were inconsistent with
previous years processes, the UK government suggests that this set of data is incomparable with historic
results.

Source: Key stage 4 performance, Academic Year 2019/20 — Explore education statistics — GOV.UK
(explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk)

Based on the disclaimer above that results from 2020 should not be directly compared to previous years
historic data has been included for information purposes only and any comparisons made should be
treated with caution.

Key Stage 4 (GSCE Results)
The UK government advises that in 2020, the proportion of pupils in state-funded schools who achieved a
grade 5 or above in English and Maths increased from 43.2% in 2019 to 49.9%. The increase seen in 2020

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 13 of 154

Page 59 of 210



https://www.ucas.com/data-and-analysis/undergraduate-statistics-and-reports/ucas-undergraduate-releases/applicant-releases-2021/2021-cycle-applicant-figures-30-june-deadline
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/key-stage-4-performance-revised/2019-20
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/key-stage-4-performance-revised/2019-20
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/key-stage-4-performance-revised/2019-20

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

contrasts against a decrease of 0.1% from 2017 to 2018. The article acknowledges the increase is a
consequence of the way GCSE grades were awarded in 2020 and the higher proportion of entries graded
at 5 and above.

Number of GCSE Entries by Year

6M

This graph shows the number of GCSE entries
per year since 2018, in England by students age
16.

=
<

Number of GCSE Entries
4 g

z

Figure 2: GCSE Entries Per Year. Source: GOV.UK

Result of 4/C and Above by Year

2021 dltas The proportion of students (aged 16) in England
780 who achieved a result of 4 and above (historically

2020 : grade C) across all subjects since 2018.

2019 69.90%

2018 69.20%

Figure 3: GCSE Result Above 4 Per Year. Source: GOV.UK.

Key Stage 5 (A Level Results)

In 2021, published results by Ofqual show an increase across all A-Level subjects and the proportion of A
or A* increased to 44.3% from 38.1% in 2020. The percentage of students aged 18 who achieved a result
above C also increased to 88%, an increase of over 10% compared to results in 2018. As per the caveat,
these year-on-year changes might be caused by the different process for awarding qualifications in 2020
rather than reflecting a change in underlying performance.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 14 of 154

Page 60 of 210



https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/a-level-and-other-16-to-18-results
https://analytics.ofqual.gov.uk/apps/Alevel/Outcomes/
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/key-stage-4-performance-revised/2019-20
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/key-stage-4-performance-revised/2019-20

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Number of A Level Entries By Year
1.0M

o
=
<

0.70M
0.66M 0.66M

I3
)
4

This graph shows the number of A Level entries
by year since 2018, in England by students age
18.

Number of A Level Entries By Year
2
<

I
o
<

0.0M
2018 2019 2020 2021
Year

Figure 4: A Level Entries Per Year. Source: GOV.UK

Results of A*to -C by Year . .
The proportion of students (aged 18) in

England who achieved a result of A* to C

2021 (across all subjects since 2018).

Figure 5: A Level Results Per Year. Source: GOV.UK

The number of appeals against GCSE and A-level exam grades increased in 2020 however Ofgual cautioned
against comparing with previous years due to the appeals process in place as a result of Covid-19.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 15 of 154

Page 61 of 210


https://analytics.ofqual.gov.uk/apps/GCSEandGCE/SummaryStats/
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/a-level-and-other-16-to-18-results
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/a-level-and-other-16-to-18-results

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Appeals: number of appeals received (GCSE)

2,900

2,270

2,000

1,500

1,000

775

490
500

270

2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020121

Academic year
Notes: For more contextual information supporting these figures, please refer to our official
statistics release.
The dashed vertical line reflects a break in the time series. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,

and the exceptional nature of the appeals process in summer 2020, comparisons between
2020 and previous years will not be valid and should be treated with caution,

Figure 6: GCSE Appeals Per Year. Source: Ofqual.

At GCSE level, there were 2,270 appeals received (up from 775 in 2019) and of the appeals received 84%
were upheld. Over 24,000 individual grades were challenged via the appeals process and 3,470 individual
grades were changed as a result.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 16 of 154

Page 62 of 210



https://analytics.ofqual.gov.uk/apps/GCSEandGCE/SummaryStats/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Appeals: number of appeals received (AS/A level) =

1,500
1,355

1,250

1,000

750

500 480

370
325

250

2016/17 201718 201819 2019/20 2020/21

Academic year
Noies: For mere contextual information supperting these figures, please refer o our official
statistics release.
The dashed vertical line reflects a break in the time series. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic

and the exceptional nature of the appeals process in summer 2020, comparisons between
2020 and previous years will not be valid and should be treated with caution

Figure 7: A Level Appeals Per Year. Source: Ofqual.

At A/As Level, there were 1,355 appeals received (up from 480 in 2019) and of the appeals received 80%
were upheld. Over 3,500 individual grades were challenged via the appeals process and 1,420 individual
grades were changed as a result.

The table below provides year on year data on the average number of GCSE and A Level Qualifications
each student attained in England (aged 16 and 18).

Vear Average Number Of GCSE Average Number Of A Level
Qualifications Per Student Qualifications Per Student

2018 8.09 2.68

2019 7.90 2.66

2020 7.84 2.67

2021 7.85 2.67

Source: Infographics for GCSE results, 2021 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)
Source: Infographics for A level results, 2021 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Local data: Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, most exams and assessments did not take place
in 2019/20 or 2020/21. As a result of this, the UK government announced that it would not publish school
or college level results data in autumn 2020 or autumn 2021. Therefore, as lower-level grades have not
been made public, results are only available down to County level for analysis. The 2019/20 results
showed that 51.2% of pupils achieved a grade 5 or above in English and Maths, up from 48% in 2018/19.
The average points score across the ‘best 3’ A Levels for each pupil was 39.05, up from 34.46 in 2018/19
and 33.24in 2017/18.

A report on Education to the Children and Young People Committee in June 2021 by Cambridgeshire
County Council stated that the impact of Covid-19 on pupil’s learning is “not yet fully understood and will
not be established nationally until next year with the first set of published performance data”. According
to the report the intention is to collect information from schools “to understand where children are
against national expectations to help schools to plan”.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 17 of 154

Page 63 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/infographic-gcse-results-2021/infographics-for-gcse-results-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/infographic-a-level-results-2021/infographics-for-a-level-results-2021
https://www.compare-school-performance.service.gov.uk/?_ga=2.260138437.930667153.1631098078-1872163540.1626696182
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=qME%2b3IZYQifkzHo%2b7puPDvfDGOYv73Gwz2IqXw177FUuPdbl2XJKcg%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
https://analytics.ofqual.gov.uk/apps/GCSEandGCE/SummaryStats/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Apprenticeships

National data: In the August 2021 update published by the UK government, the headline facts and figures
state that Apprenticeship starts in the UK were down in the academic year 2020/21 by 6.9% to 253,100,
compared to 271,800 reported for the same period in the previous year.

Number of Apprenticeship Starts UK by Year

700K

600K

509.4K
494.9K

500K

400K

Apprenticeship Starts

w
=1
[=]
=

253.1K
200K

100K

0K
2015/16 201617 2017118 201819 2019/20 2020/21

Year

Figure 8: Number of Apprenticeship Starts UK Per Year. Source: GOV.UK.

Nearly half of all apprenticeships (49.6%) started in the academic year 20/21 were by those aged over 25,
whilst the number of students under 19 starting apprenticeships fell to 21% from 25.7% the previous year.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 18 of 154

Page 64 of 210



https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/apprenticeships-and-traineeships/2020-21
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/data-tables/fast-track/361ea940-2a1b-42c9-a87f-01f85cfcdc19

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Apprenticeship Starts UK by Age Group

100%

80%

60%

Age Group
®-19
019-24

025+
40%

20%

0%

2018/19

2019/20

Year

Figure 9: Apprenticeship Starts UK by Age Group. Source: GOV.UK.

2020/21

The Sutton Trust published a Covid-19 research brief impact report in May 2020 based on the findings
from a survey they undertook the previous month, with an aim to understand the impact of the pandemic
on Apprenticeships. The sample size was small (at only approximately 150 Companies taking part)
however this has been included for information purposes. They found that (on average) only two in five
apprentices had no disruption to their studies. From the respondents that took part on average, 36% had
furloughed or were currently furloughing their apprentices and 8% reported that they were making their
apprentices redundant. Due to the impact of Covid-19 on the education sector delivering the training
under the scheme, an average of 17% of apprentices were also affected in some cases by the employer
closing the site during lockdown and had no access to remote learning. The graph below (Sutton Trust,
COVID-19 and Social Mobility Impact Brief 3: Apprenticeships, page 2) shows the average proportion of
apprentices reported in each category by employers, along with the distribution of reported percentages.

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%
39%

1%-24%

m 100% (i.e. all) m—75%-99%

suspended
mm 50%-74%

0% (i.e. NONE) sm——Mean

40% 36%
30%
20% 17%
8%
N .
- —
Continuing as normal Furloughed Off-site learning Made redundant

25%-49%

Figure 10: Apprentice Category Survey Responses. Source: Sutton Trust.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 65 of 210

Page 19 of 154



https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid-19-Impacts-Apprenticeships.pdf
https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid-19-Impacts-Apprenticeships.pdf
https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid-19-Impacts-Apprenticeships.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

For example, it shows that on average employers reported 39% of their apprentices were continuing as
normal but it was noted there was substantial variation in the responses. For example, 43% of employers
said none of their apprentices were continuing as normal and 28% saying all of their apprentices were able
to do so.

Source: https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid-19-Impacts-
Apprenticeships.pdf

Local data: There were 24,930 apprenticeship starts within the East Of England in the academic year
2020/21. Data at Local Authority level will not be available until November 2021 this means we are
comparing against national data for previous full years, so they are not a like for like comparison.
However, the data recorded for the months of May June and July seem to be lower than earlier in the
academic year. Therefore, figures for 2020/21 are provisional and cover the first three quarters (Aug 2020
to Apr 2021). All other years are final, full-year figures.

The number of apprenticeships started in Huntingdonshire has been decreasing yearly from 2015/16 aside
from an increase in 2018/19, which is a similar picture to the national trend. There were 780
apprenticeships commenced in Huntingdonshire in the academic year 2020/21, a drop of 16% compared
to the previous year, which is a larger fall than national figures for the same period at 6.9%. The table
below shows the year-on-year change as a percentage for Huntingdonshire and our geographical
neighbours.

Apprenticeship Starts Percentage Change Year on Year
Year Peterborough Huntingdonshire South Cambs Fenland East Cambs Cambridge

2015/16
To +3.5% +4.7% -3.4% +1.1% -4.5% -18.1%
2016/17
2016/17
To -26.4% -32.1% -20.2% -28.4% -23.8% -20.3%
2017/18
2017/18
To +10.9% +21.0% +14.9% +15.8% +14.5% +6.9%
2018/19
2018/19
To -19.7% -19.1% -7.7% -21.9% -12.7% +2.1%
2019/20
2019/20
To -28.9% -16.1% -15.4% -26.3% -14.5% -19.1%
2020/21

The graph below shows how the number of apprenticeships starts in our geographical area has changed
over time. Huntingdonshire had the second highest number of apprentices starting in 2020/21 when
comparing with other authorities local to us in the region.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 20 of 154

Page 66 of 210



https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid-19-Impacts-Apprenticeships.pdf
https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid-19-Impacts-Apprenticeships.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Number of Apprenticeship Starts by Location and Year
1800

1600

1400

1200

1000

870 880

800

600

200

Peterborough Huntingdonshire South Fenland East Cambridgeshire Cambridge
Cambridgeshire

Year ®2015/16 @2016/17 ®2017/18 ®2018/19 ®2019/20 @2020/21

Figure 11: Number of Apprenticeship Starts Per Year, by Location. Source: GOV.UK

Just over half of all apprenticeships started in the academic year 20/21 in Huntingdonshire were by those
aged over 25, which is in line with the national trend. The number of students under 19 starting

apprenticeships in Huntingdonshire fell to 19% from 22% in the previous year, a reduction was also
reflected in the UK figures.

The vocational training centre (iMET) based within the district at Alconbury Weald has recently announced
that it is to close after two years. The facility was created as a venue to deliver training and innovation for
apprenticeships in advanced manufacturing.

Apprenticeship Starts Huntingdonshire by Age Group
100%

80%
48.9%
60%
Age Group
Ed ®-19
®19-24
025+
40%
20%
0%
201819 2019720 2020/21
Year
Figure 12: Proportion of Apprenticeship Starts By Age. Source: GOV.UK.
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 21 of 154

Page 67 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Source: Apprenticeships and traineeships, Academic Year 2020/21 — Explore education statistics — GOV.UK
(explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 22 of 154

Page 68 of 210



https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/apprenticeships-and-traineeships/2020-21#dataDownloads-1
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/apprenticeships-and-traineeships/2020-21#dataDownloads-1

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Personal Safety

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

Domestic abuse

N/a - it is not possible to

confirm whether there has
been an increase in victims
nationally since the start of

3 = MEDIUM

(County level data on
incidents reported does
indicate an increase in

5 =HIGH

(Catastrophic impact as
effects impact all family
member, education and

Social Services —
Children’s

the pandemic/ lockdown incidents and victims) community for many
restrictions years)
The number of serious 3 = MEDIUM 5 =HIGH

incidents involving children
has increased since the
beginning of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions

(County level data on
work with vulnerable
children and referrals to
them)

(Catastrophic impact as
effects impact all family
member, education and
community for many
years)

Court services
and offender
management

There has been a reduction
in first receptions, and an
increase in those on remand,
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(Major impact as backlog
has meant more people
awaiting trial before
sentencing and a greater
risk to victims if people on
remand break bail
conditions)

Subject: Domestic abuse

National data: The ONS reports that they cannot conclude, even at the national level, whether there has
been an increase in the number of victims of domestic abuse. However, data from victim services suggests
that experiences of domestic abuse may have intensified during periods of national lockdown and that
victims faced difficulties in safely seeking support under these conditions.

Local data: Cambridgeshire headline figures from Cambridgeshire County Council’s Safe Accommodation
Strategy October 2021 — March 2024 show that from April 2020 to March 2021:

* Police Incidents with a domestic abuse flag were up 5.7% on 2019/20 to 9,299

e Cases referred to the Independent Domestic Abuse Adviser Service were up 9.7% on 2019/20 to 1,462

* The number using the four refuge services (across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough) was 90 adults and
112 children, with all but 5 victims came from outside Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, mainly from the
East and South East of England — an increase of 17.7% on 2019-20
¢ The number using the local Sanctuary Scheme (Cambridgeshire and Peterborough) to increase the
security of their home, in conjunction with domestic abuse support was 331 and 526 children, compared
with 293 in 2019/20.

Data from Huntingdonshire District Council’s Housing Needs & Resources Team shows there were:
e 80 people approaching the Council for housing assistance because of domestic abuse in 2020/21
compared to 88 the previous year. This compares to 45 people so far in 2021/22 (April to August).

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 69 of 210

Page 23 of 154



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/domesticabuseinenglandandwalesoverview/november2020
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=qNZMZjsLGzpmjEHdIGSFrvRT0TA1VXPcCR4kiYF7iVsnv8CMsYsO5w%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=qNZMZjsLGzpmjEHdIGSFrvRT0TA1VXPcCR4kiYF7iVsnv8CMsYsO5w%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

There were also 1,779 referrals for Outreach Support (up 58% year-on-year) and 621 Domestic Abuse
victims supported by the Victim and Witness Hub across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.

Subject: Social Services — Children’s

National data: Experimental statistics on serious incidents involving children that English local authorities
have notified the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel about show that 2020/21 saw 536 serious
incident notifications, up 19% on 2019/20 and higher than previously published figures (from 2014/15).
Notifiable serious incidents are those that involve death or serious harm to a child where abuse or neglect
is known or suspected, and any death of a looked after child.

A Department for Education survey of local authorities in England on the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak
on Children’s Social Care asks local authorities to report in regular ‘waves’ on the following areas:

¢ Contact with children supported by the local authority Children’s Social Care

¢ Children’s Social Care workforce

e System pressures

Analysis of data collected on the number of Children Looked After (CLA) and the number of children on a
Child Protection Plan (CPP) is shown in the graph below. This shows that numbers were higher than
reported in 2019/20 for much of the period up to February 2021 but numbers with a Child Protection Plan
are lower from then onwards. The total number of CLA has been gradually increasing and the total number
of CPP has been gradually decreasing over recent years, so the data received in the survey may be a
continuation of those trends.

—CPP CLA

6%
4%
2%
0%
2% 0% 0% 27

of , LT
7070, 1% 2%

Percentage difference to 2019-20

-4%
3% o~~~
-6% o
-8% 97 _por-5%-5%
= N & & 0 o 9 8 86 = = 3 5 3 3 3 3 3 = NN N NN NN
e S = - - < < LI = e T < = R < < B =]
a2 aBasnnrgd Coo
P eSS VNEI NG S a2 NSNS N SRS
(=R B = B S O I =T A O S A= nll AN L R L L R B o o
© 0 ® N5 0000 Ng NS Z 3 a3 NN s s N
ggLr_.r_r_}mwﬂ—‘ mg@wﬂohoh—kwc}—s
c £ O C C o —
T 8552328388885 sFs5sar5rd5cCE
[ T~ < < NBo 2 2 005 5 3% < g <
=
= o
@
(9]

The survey asks about the number of referrals to children’s social care services, with a total of 263,150
reported in waves 1 to 26 of the survey, which is around 10% lower than an average of the same weeks
during 2017-20. It is estimated that there have been around 72,000 fewer referrals since May 2020
compared to 2017-20 (this estimate takes into account local authorities that did not respond and weeks
not covered by the survey). The graph below shows how the number of referrals reported in each wave
compares with the three-year average number for the same period in 2017-2020.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 24 of 154

Page 70 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/serious-incident-notifications-2020-to-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/vulnerable-children-and-young-people-survey

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

30%
23%"
20%
2%* .
0% 9%
2%*

0% I
|
-2% l _4% -2% I
-10% 6% -5% 5%
-1 0%
-11% 13% -12%

i3
-20% -17% -16% 17%

Percentage difference in referrals compared to 2017-
0

A7%* -16%"
20% 23%23%
-oUo
-30%
-40%
S SSfISSE3SSTSSISTITLLTLEEE
M S e AN A s N0 2 2NN RO
N = o 2 g © WO R O NO =20 =2 wN =2 NO NS OO Wwo
b O R T T S T Bl L S S A Al L B L 4
T N B N =25 © 00 2N =2MNONZ 022N 220 = 2
gzz%%b&_}}wﬂ—tmmngg::hmh;wgz
c ww o o0 = 2 & % non = =
w 2 82 5 3 a & & » ® o o 5 £
222 Z 8292288858828 8°38 §E
g = 2 5 &
o 3 =
(]

The survey also asks about the number of children that have started to be looked after. The number
reported is approx. 29% lower than the three-year average for 2017-20 and it’s estimated that there have
been roughly 10,600 fewer looked after children starting since May 2020 compared to 2017-20 (this
estimate takes into account local authorities that did not respond and weeks not covered by the survey).
However, there was already a downward trend in the number of children starting to be looked after in
recent years prior to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Local data: Cambridgeshire County Council’s Service Director’s Report: Children and Safeguarding for the
14 September 2021 meeting of their Children and Young People Committee includes data on performance
indicators related to their work with vulnerable children. They report they are continuing to see high levels
of demand for many services, with the number of requests for support for children, young people and
their families remaining high on entering the school holidays (a time of year when they would normally
expect to see significant reductions in such requests), although the overall picture in terms of simple
volume is not entirely clear as yet.

They advise that it has become clear that “there has been an increase in the complexity of need among
those children and young people who are open to children’s social care services”. Overall

numbers open to the statutory children’s social care service have remained relatively stable but there has
been a significant increase in the number of children subject to child protection plans. Part of the reason
for this increase has been children coming to the attention of services later than they might otherwise
have been as they have been less visible during lockdown periods. There have also been some recent
staffing challenges, which they are working to address.

Their graph on Early Help Assessments appears to show an immediate fall in assessments coinciding with
the first lockdown in April 2020 but they reported in March 2021 that numbers since had “remained at
higher levels” which indicated that need “continues to be identified”. Their latest report now advises that
“Actual numbers remain slightly lower than the position 12 months ago, although it should be noted that
schools have always taken a very pro-active approach to identifying and supporting vulnerable pupils, even
during times when they were offering largely virtual engagement”. They had previously reported that
managers within early help were “reporting indications of increasing complexity of need alongside higher
numbers of referrals”, with particular areas of increased need relating to challenging behaviour within the
home and mental and emotional health and wellbeing among young people.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 25 of 154

Page 71 of 210



https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=rV5cU62Brt9fr5l%2fkcYASD2i4GCnkZnfzJpw84GDgmJ8ddXxX%2bDIdQ%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=33Yp2FQgQ2B7g%2bgGLn%2bC29ybKxrrnaYWhr9u9vOGV954H00pEuU06Q%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

= Number of EHAS initiated du LLY] month

Aiag-20 lan-21 Feb-21 Mas-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Referrals to January 2021 were reported to have remained broadly similar to the position in January 2020,
with “a reversal of a longer-term trend of a reduction in overall numbers of children and young people
open to the service” beginning to be seen. There was an increase in the number of children and young
people accepted as referrals into the service in June 2021, however there are often peaks in referrals at
the beginning and ending of school terms and the number of referrals in the chart below “can be seen to
be broadly following this pattern”.

mOpen Referrals at month end mMNumber of Referrals
Jun-20 Jul-20 Haw-20 Dac- Fab-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun21

The overall number of children and young people open to the service has “remained broadly steady” since
the beginning of the 2020 academic year. However, “it should be noted that the complexity of needs being
referred into the service has increased”.

Where it is considered after further limited enquiries that children referred may be in need or in need of
protection under the Children Act 1989, an assessment must be completed within 45 working days of the
referral. The current year to date completion rate is that 78.5% were completed within this time frame.
This is below performance by statistical neighbours (84%) and considerably below the stretch target of
90%.

Numbers of children subject to child protection plans had been steadily declining until around

May 2020, with the May 2020 figure of 320 children subject to child protection plans described in March
2021 as being around the long-term level that they “would want to see as a service”. They said that “all
things being equal” they would have expected numbers to have remained at or around this level.
However, over the course of the pandemic, they have seen a “steady increase” in the number of children
subject to child protection plans. The latest figure of 434 at June 2021 is more than 25% higher than the
numbers recorded between January 2020 and June 2020.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 26 of 154

Page 72 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

B Number of Children on a CP Plan

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Part of the reason for this increase has been children coming to the attention of services later than they
might otherwise have been as they have been less visible during lockdown periods. Another reason behind
the increase is related to fewer children being brought into care, as they work proactively with more
families where risks are high through the Family Safeguarding approach. An increase in the level of risk
being managed in the community in this way would be expected to result in an increase in the number of
children subject to child protection plans.

The number of children and young people in care has seen a continuing reduction in overall numbers since
the summer of 2019, with data from January 2020 onwards shown below:

B Number of Children in Care

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

As stated in the March 2021 report, “All things being equal, a reduction in care proceedings is often
accompanied by an initial increase in child protection numbers”. However, it is worth noting that “in usual
times, around 30-40% of children subject to child protection plans will come into care”. While the County
Council has yet to see an increase in children in care numbers, they state that “there are clear risks that
such an increase may follow”.

In addition to pressures on the service through increased numbers subject to a child protection plan, more
complex needs and staffing challenges, escalating costs of provision are also resulting in a “clear budget
pressure” estimated as £1.25m on the external placement budget.

Subject: Court services and offender management

National data: At 30 June 2021, England and Wales’s prison population was 1% lower than at the same
point in the previous year. The remand population (those held in prison awaiting trial, and those held in
prison between trial and sentencing) has increased by 12% over the past year to the highest ‘annual; as at
30 June’ remand population figure since 2010. Conversely, the sentenced prison population as at 30 June
2021 has fallen by 4% over the past year, which is the lowest ‘annual; as at 30 June’ figure since 2006.

The Ministry of Justice/HM Prisons Service reports that this is in line with the effects of COVID-19 on the
Criminal Justice System — in particular, delays in court hearings (evidenced by court caseload and
timeliness figures reported in the latest Criminal Justice Statistics Quarterly release). The effect of this on
the prison population is that the normal system flow of individuals from the remand to the sentenced

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 27 of 154

Page 73 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/prison-population-figures-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/offender-management-statistics-quarterly-january-to-march-2021/offender-management-statistics-quarterly-january-to-march-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/criminal-court-statistics-quarterly-january-to-march-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

population (after sentencing at court) has been disrupted; resulting in more people held on remand, and
fewer sentenced prisoners.

In addition to more people being held on remand, it is likely that delays in court hearings will also have

resulted in more people accused on crimes being held on bail, with or without conditions, and being on
bail for longer. This may increase the likelihood of some victims of crime experiencing or fearing further
victimisation before cases are heard.

Over the past ten years, there has been a steady falling trend in the number of prisoner first receptions
each year but over the past year (as a result of COVID-19 disruption to court processes) there has been a
sharp 17% decrease. However, on a quarterly basis, the number of prisoner first receptions over the past
three quarters (July to September 2020, October to December 2020, and January to March 2021) show a
rebound effect compared to the April to June 2020 quarter. This shows the impact of courts reopening
(and associated increase in court activity) following the COVID-19 lockdown in Spring 2020.

There has also been a large fall in the number of prisoner releases in the latest quarter, particularly for
those released from very short sentences. This tallies with the prioritisation of ‘more serious’ cases at
courts (in response to COVID-19 court impacts) — which results in fewer people entering prison on short
sentences, and [a few months later] we see the corresponding impact on the number of ‘short sentence’
releases.

Local data: No data is published on where those sentenced to prison terms, or held on remand, lived prior
to arrest/conviction. Therefore, this section will look at the population of local prisons, although it should
be noted that it HMP Littlehey in particular is a specialist prison for those convicted of a sexual offence
rather than a more general combination of offence types or a mix of those on remand and convicted.

The latest sentenced population figure for HMP Littlehey is 6.2% lower than at 30 June 2020, which is
slightly higher than the 4% national reduction in sentenced prison population.

The latest sentenced population figure for HMP Peterborough (both males and females) is 25.9% lower
than at 30 June 2020, with the number of people on remand 70% higher. These figures follow the same
pattern as nationally (fewer sentenced prisoners, more people held on remand).

While this data suggests the local prison population has followed the national trend, the impact on
Huntingdonshire residents is not known. However, we can assume that both those accused of a crime and
victims of crime are likely to have experienced delays in justice system processes as this is a known
outcome of the pandemic on courts across the country.

Such delays are also likely to have impacted on non-criminal civil court activities, particularly housing
evictions (see housing repossession topic).

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 28 of 154

Page 74 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/prison-population-figures-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Support Network

NATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
? ®
-
More voluntary/ 3 = MEDIUM 3 = MEDIUM
Voluntary and community groups have (County level data (Moderate impact,
Community experienced financial available) mitigated due to
Sector (VCS) pressures since the responsiveness of funders
organisations beginning of the to allow activities to be
pandemic/ lockdown adapted to address COVID
restrictions impacts)
The numbers of formal 1=1L0W 3 = MEDIUM
Volunteering volunteers has decreased (No robust national data (Moderate impact as data
rates and informal volunteers available) hard to find and when

has increased since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

data is available the
findings are inconsistent.
Need to identify if this is a
temporary or continued
trend and in which
direction)

Local authority
support for
vulnerable/
needy residents
affected by the
pandemic

The most vulnerable
members of society
required support to meet
basic needs (e.g. food,
medication) as a result of
COVID

5 = HIGH

(Data available on people
and communities
supported)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact due to
mitigation through swift
and significant local and
community/informal
response so impact was
considerably lower than
expected)

Loneliness and
social isolation

Feelings of loneliness and
isolation have increased
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions, particularly
during lockdown periods

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact locally,
likely to be due to the
district being a largely
rural area, with relatively
fewer young people and
relatively low
unemployment levels)

Subject: Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisations

National data: In written evidence submitted in April 2021 to the Public Accounts Committee’s ‘Covid-19:
Government support for charities’ inquiry, the Charity Commission reported that they had “not yet seen
significant numbers of charities closing, nor has there been an abundance of requests to consider charities
merging with other organisations or a sudden increase in the number of charities being removed from the

Register”.

However, they had seen indicators of “financial shocks in the system” and that the sector’s “financial
resilience is weakening”. They noted that in the period April 2020 to February 2021 there was a 25%
increase on the previous year in ‘Matters of Material Significance’ reported. The main issue reported was
insolvency or financial difficulties, with the rise partly attributed to the impact of Covid-19 on the sector.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 75 of 210

Page 29 of 154



https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/25588/html/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

They had also received 425 Serious Incident Reports specifically related to Covid-19, with concern about
long-term financial sustainability the most common issue.

With regards to new charitable organisations formed during the pandemic, the proportion directly related
to the pandemic is low. Of the 7,491 registration applications received by the Charity Commission in 2020,
138 were directly related to the pandemic (77 of which were registered). It should be noted that only 60%
of applications result in successful registrations, having met the test Parliament has set down for what
properly constitutes a charity. It is likely that many smaller and more informal organisations helping
people would not apply for charity registrations.

Groundwork’s research into the impact of the pandemic on community groups showed the following key
findings, as reported in November 2020:

e Most community groups had decreased or closed services

e Fourin five community groups had lost income

e  Most community groups had fewer active volunteers during lockdown

e Most said there was more need for their services in their communities than there was before

lockdown

However, these findings are based on limited data: a survey of 2,658 community groups conducted in June
2020, in-depth telephone interviews with representatives of 103 community groups, and analysis of data
about activities supported through the Tesco Bags of Help Covid-19 Community Fund between April and
September 2020.

Local data: Very limited local data is available on impacts on local VCS organisations. We are unable to
access data on the number of registered charities located within, or providing services to, the
Huntingdonshire area to help understand how this has changed since March 2020. Even if we had this
data, we know that many VCS organisations, including some which formed to support their communities
through the pandemic, are not charities or otherwise registered officially so there is no single list of all
such organisations operating in the area.

The Hunts Forum of Voluntary Organisations is the ‘umbrella’ group for local VCS groups and may be to
share some data on how their membership has changed recently. However, again we know that many VCS
organisations in the area do not have paid membership or other formal affiliation with Hunts Forum so this
would not show us a full picture of the sector.

Despite this, it is worth noting that Hunts Forum has continued to actively engage with local groups
throughout the pandemic, including offering support to newly formed organisations, and that they have
strong connections with other VCS support organisations across Cambridgeshire. This includes Support
Cambridgeshire, whose report on research they were commissioned to undertake in September 2020 is
published on the Hunts Forum website. Their research involved 19 groups made up from a range of
countywide, small and newly formed community groups and charities, representatives from 6 district/city
hubs and the county hub, a survey of over 100 local charities plus desk research. Their findings indicate
that “on the whole” organisations in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough had “faired reasonably well” and
that although organisations had lost funding, seen demand increase and had issues with volunteers not
being available, they had “not seen the large-scale issues reported by Groundwork in their national
research”. Both CCVS and Hunts Forum had to help organisations find solutions to difficult problems
brought on by loss of funding or other areas, but they had “not seen large numbers of closures” and large-
scale redundancies had been avoided.

The survey results showed an average £12,500 loss of income per organisation — equivalent to an
estimated £34.5m across 2,775 registered charities in Cambridgeshire (higher if unregistered charities and
community groups are included). Responses from Huntingdonshire groups showed that nearly 80% had
continued to deliver at least some activity linked to their main mission statement and 75% said they were
carrying out new activity linked to Covid-19.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 30 of 154

Page 76 of 210



https://www.groundwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Groundwork-report-Community-groups-and-Covid-19.pdf
https://www.huntsforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Lessons-from-the-pandemic-SC-report.pdf
https://sway.office.com/ECiFC77bHe4k9HDI?ref=Link

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Volunteering rates

National data: There are several online reports available that measure the number of volunteers who
provide support to national, local and community groups in the UK. However, sources are limited that
include data from pre and during pandemic time periods. There is also a range of categorisation that has
taken place within reports for example ‘informal’ and ‘formal volunteering’ in the Community Life COVID-19
Re-contact Survey (CLRS) and ‘Social action volunteering’ and ‘neighbourhood volunteering’ in the Covid 19
Social Study by University College of London (UCL) which makes comparisons more difficult.

Although low in respondents (2,812) the CLRS (an annual survey of adults aged 16+) commissioned by The
Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) has been selected for the purpose of this
evaluating this topic as it includes data from the periods before and during the pandemic. However, it should
be noted this relates to respondents from within England and lower-level data (such as Local Authority) is
not available.

The CLRS report shows that across England approximately 21% of people formally volunteered ! at the
beginning of the pandemic. It is noted that when taking into consideration the total respondents to the
survey, this equates to just below 600 people as a sample size. 9% were new to volunteering and about 6%
had previous experience but increased the amount of time given. A further 9% volunteered at similar levels
and 53% didn’t volunteer at all. Approximately 20% of people lapsed or paused their volunteering and 3%
reduced their volunteering frequency.

Formal Volunteering Rates - England
March 2020 - July 2020

100% M Lapsed or paused

- volunteer

B Continuing volunteer,
reduced frequency
Non volunteer, no

80%

60% change
53% Continuing volunteer, no
40% change

Continuing volunteer,
increased frequency

0,
20% 9% m New Volunteer

6%
0%
Figure 13: Graph showing the rates of formal volunteering in England
Between March and July 2020

47% of people informally volunteered ?during the pandemic (compared to 28% in the pre-pandemic period)
and 52% of those were helping people affected by COVID-19. 58% who were regularly informally
volunteering were more likely to support others with certain tasks such as making regular contact with
someone who has mobility issues than in the pre pandemic period, an increase from 43%. Carrying out
activities such as shopping or collecting prescriptions also rose to 49% compared to 23% pre-pandemic.

Another key point raised in the report is that Covid appears to have impacted who is volunteering and when.
For instance, of the 20% of respondents who stopped volunteering in the time period, 22% of female
respondents said they volunteered less, compared with 18% of male respondents.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 31 of 154

Page 77 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/community-life-covid-19-re-contact-survey-2020-main-report/executive-summary-community-life-recontact-survey-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/community-life-covid-19-re-contact-survey-2020-main-report/executive-summary-community-life-recontact-survey-2020
https://www.covidsocialstudy.org/
https://www.covidsocialstudy.org/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/a-look-at-volunteering-during-the-response-to-covid-19/a-look-at-volunteering-during-the-response-to-covid-19

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

28% of those aged 16-24 volunteered less and 26% of respondents with a limiting long-term illness or
disability also said they volunteered less. Respondents noted the main barriers to volunteering included
childcare issues, work and lack of spare time.

The Covid-19 Social Study run by the UCL is a weekly survey available to adults (18+) in the UK, which during
lockdown in April/May 2020 had over 30,000 respondents take part in a one-off module which included
volunteering questions, the module was then repeated once restrictions had lifted in June and July 2020.
When comparing volunteering levels of respondents during and before the pandemic, 12% said that they
had volunteered more during lockdown compared to pre-pandemic, 65% volunteered around the same
before and during the pandemic, and 23% decreased their volunteering level. When re-measuring in
June/July, 7% of people who reported increasing their volunteering during lockdown had spent more time
volunteering. Whilst 6% of the respondents who said they had volunteered less during lockdown had further
decreased the time they spent volunteering.

The Covid-19 Voluntary Sector Impact Barometer as at August 2021 states that 22.5% of organisations in the
East of England (who answered a question about volunteers) noted a decrease in the number of people
formally volunteering over the last month, which is slightly higher than the national trend. 47.5% of
organisations in the region questioned said that their numbers stayed the same, which is lower than the
national rate of 53%. 30% of respondents benefited from an increase in volunteers which is slightly higher
than the national figure (27%). This study only includes data from a small sample of the voluntary sector (314
in total) which is made up from only 36 organisations who responded in the East of England for the wave in
August this year. According to national data from the barometer, the graph below shows more organisations
have seen an increase in the number of volunteers in recent months. The proportion of organisations that
stated they had seen a decrease in the number of volunteers was at its highest between October 2020 and
March 2021 with an average of 27% per month. This suggests that volunteer numbers may be affected by
factors such as lockdown restrictions and then their consequent easing. However, in the last five months the
average fell to only 20% of organisations nationally that had fewer volunteers than the previous month.

% Change in Volunteer Rates, England
Covid-19 Voluntary Sector Impact Barometer

100%
v B =
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0

Oct-20 Nov-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21

X

B Decreased M Stayed The Same M Increased

Figure 14: Percentage Change in England of Volunteer Rates — using the Covid-19 Voluntary Sector Impact Barometer

! Formal volunteering is defined as giving unpaid help to formally organised groups or clubs; regular formal
volunteering is defined as volunteering at least once a month.

2Informal volunteering is defined as giving unpaid help as an individual to people who are not a relative;
regular informal volunteering is defined as volunteering at least once a month.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 32 of 154

Page 78 of 210



https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYzc2ZDVlMGMtMTgxZS00N2Y3LWIyZDYtZjFhOGE1YzM2NWI4IiwidCI6IjhhY2JjMmM1LWM4ZWQtNDJjNy04MTY5LWJhNDM4YTBkYmUyZiIsImMiOjh9

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: In April 2021, Sport England published results from its Active Lives Survey based on the number
of adults aged 16+ who have volunteered to support sport and physical activity in the last 12 months (link to
spreadsheet). The data gives an overview of the levels of volunteering in sport and physical activity in
England. One in five adults volunteered in support of sport and physical activity at some time between
November 2019 and November 2020. A blog about their findings by the organisation acknowledges that for
some, volunteering was not possible due to the need to shield from the pandemic, however there was an
increase in the number of new volunteers who gave up their time to support local communities. In
Cambridgeshire, 5.7% of those surveyed had volunteered to support sport and physical activity at least once
a week throughout the year compared to a national average of 4.9%. The county also had higher proportions
volunteering at least once a month or every few months. However, due to small sample sizes, the county's
rates are not statistically significantly different from the national average.

The use of local volunteers that support HDC services during the pandemic was impacted as activities were
stopped due to restrictions and the need for safe measures during the pandemic.

The Coronavirus vaccine studies volunteer’s dashboard created by NHS Digital

shows the number of people signed up for the coronavirus (COVID-19) vaccine studies volunteer service
across the United Kingdom. At the 26 August 2021, there were 1,750 residents volunteering in
Huntingdonshire for this purpose, which is 0.3% of total volunteers across the UK. The table below illustrates
how the level of volunteering in Huntingdonshire compares with our geographical neighbours.

Local Authority Number Volunteers % Total Volunteers | % of mid-2020 18+

Signed Up Across UK Population in Area
South Cambridgeshire 2,605 0.5% 2.1%
Cambridge City 2,420 0.5% 2.4%
Huntingdonshire 1,750 0.3% 1.2%
Peterborough 1,250 0.2% 0.8%
East Cambridgeshire 1,000 0.2% 1.4%
Fenland 645 0.1% 0.8%

Table 1: Number of coronavirus vaccine studies volunteers in neighbouring Authorities

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 33 of 154

Page 79 of 210



https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-07/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20November%2019-20%20Tables%209-19%20Volunteering..xlsx?VersionId=SVZ6jrsodPjHe_QssGj9gHxEbcfMMjhq
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-07/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20November%2019-20%20Tables%209-19%20Volunteering..xlsx?VersionId=SVZ6jrsodPjHe_QssGj9gHxEbcfMMjhq
https://www.sportengland.org/blogs/how-our-new-active-lives-report-has-given-us-deeper-understanding-volunteering-england
https://digital.nhs.uk/dashboards/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine-studies-volunteers-dashboard-uk

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Local Authority support for vulnerable residents affected by

COVID-19

National data: While all local authorities were tasked with supporting vulnerable people, this was
approached in very different ways even across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough. Some data on people
supported had to be reported to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government but it only
related to specific types of support linked to funding (support for the Clinically Extremely Vulnerable and
practical self-isolation support linked to Test and Trace) and no statistical reports on more general support
provided have been published to date.

As the support provided was specifically aimed at mitigating the impacts of a global pandemic and
associated lockdown restrictions, it cannot be compared directly with any previous support — many of the
services were not operating previously or were aimed at a narrower cohort of people. Take-up is therefore
likely to be closely linked to lockdown restrictions.

Data from the ONS’ COVID High Risk Group Insights Study shows take-up of key types of support among
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) people over the period from January to June 2021 (during the third
UK lockdown, with advice for CEV people to shield paused from 1 April 2021). The table below shows the
proportions of survey respondents who said that type of support helped them follow CEV guidance in each
survey wave. The results do not change significantly over time but do appear to broadly indicate reducing
levels of need for the support types listed as the lockdown restrictions eased.

Support type 18/1/21- | 22/2/21- | 22/3/21- | 26/4/21- | 17/5/21- | 21/6/21-
30/1/21 | 27/2/21 | 31/3/21 1/5/21 22/5/21 | 26/621

Priority supermarket delivery slots 26 29 25 25 28 22

Other support from local authority to 3 > 2 > > 2

access food

Suppc_)rt from vo_Iunteers and/or 3 3 3 > > 2

charities delivering food

Prescription deliveries 36 37 34 30 34 30

Suppqrt fron_1 vo_Iunteers_ a_md/or 3 3 3 > 3 >

charities delivering medicines

Financial support 13 11 11 7 8 7

contacted for the first time).

Local data: Since July 2020, Huntingdonshire District Council’s Covid-19 resident advice team has made
nearly 5,000 further successful calls to over 3,600 households. Around a sixth of these had previously been
contacted between March and June 2020 but the majority were contacted for the first time.

Of all those contacted, 624 households (17% of those contacted) were provided with any type of support.
Over 30% of those previously contacted were given support compared to just 14% of those contacted for
the first time from July 2020 onwards, suggesting a combination of both long-term and short-term needs.
90 households (2.5%) requested help with food (5% among those previously contacted, 2% among those

As noted in our July 2020 Community Impact Assessment, there has been a change in the types of people
contacted over time. We initially focused on those most vulnerable due to early lockdown restrictions
(those aged over 70, those known to be disabled or in receipt of our assisted bin collection service, but not
those who were officially Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) as they were being supported by the
County Council). As needs linked to difficulties accessing food and other essential items abated (largely
through local and informal support networks such as family and friends), our focus switched to those more
at risk from financial pressures. The reduction in need for support with accessing food we identified

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 80 of 210

Page 34 of 154



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/datasets/coronavirusandclinicallyextremelyvulnerablepeopleinengland

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

appears to correspond with the pattern nationally, as indicated by results from a UCL COVID-19 Social Study
on people reporting major stress relating to food over time shown in the graph below (as presented by PHE).

Trend in percentage (weighted) of respondents reporting major stress relating to food in United
Kingdom

Percentage reporting

As the second national lockdown began in early November, it was agreed that Huntingdonshire District
Council would take responsibility for supporting CEV residents. While there was no requirement for CEV
residents to shield again as they had been asked to in lockdown 1, our focus shifted to focus on this group
and others who might be affected by new lockdown restrictions. Letters were sent to all CEV residents on
the shielding list and outbound phone calls were scheduled for those who had previously needed support
from either the district or county council, including non-CEV residents who the district council had
supported during lockdown 1. While we did find some people needing support as they were unable to
access essential goods/services, and some CEV residents needed help registering for supermarket priority
status, the level of need for this was lower than seen at the beginning of the first lockdown the previous
March.

However, we did identify increased needs for financial support or for food due to affordability issues
rather than access issues. Around this time, we also provided support to the county council who needed
help contacting those enquiring about their Winter Support Grant vouchers (later the Covid Local Support
Grant), so more calls were being made to financially vulnerable residents. This is likely to have skewed the
types of support requested and it appears that the financial need then being identified was less likely to be
linked to the impacts of the pandemic/lockdown restrictions than we had seen earlier. Feedback from the
resident advice team was that fewer of those with financial issues at this stage had been affected by loss
of income/employment due to furlough or redundancy and that many were in receipt of benefits or on
low income prior to the pandemic.

Subject: Loneliness and social isolation

National data: The Office for National Statistics has been regularly publishing indicators from the Opinions
and Lifestyle Survey to understand the impact of the pandemic on people, households and communities in
Great Britain. As well as asking about activities and steps taken to help stop the spread of Covid-19, those
surveyed have also been asked about their own wellbeing. This includes asking how often respondents feel
lonely, with results for each wave allowing us to track how this has changed over the course of the

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 35 of 154

Page 81 of 210



https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandwellbeing/bulletins/coronavirusandthesocialimpactsongreatbritain/latest
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandwellbeing/bulletins/coronavirusandthesocialimpactsongreatbritain/latest

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

pandemic. The graph below shows how those giving an answer responded between March 2020 and
August 2021.

How often do you feel lonely?

m Often/always H Some of the time B Occasionally Hardly ever | Never

100%
A EERESSEEEEESENREEEERE
80%

50%
40%
30%
20%
1M i
0%
'w, v v

RO > R
\“\&\\“Q\"f’\ o,\”\”\”\\"’\“\%\“\“\‘b\

™ N ) ) A\ o)
Q v v v v M2 v
V N '\/ N N N "™ " '\/
\Q\ o «\”\% «\”\% SRR\ \‘b\’»
A A

This appears to show that lockdowns had some impact on loneliness, as expected, with the proportion
who said they were ‘never’ lonely reducing during the first UK lockdown in particular. The ONS have
reported that “After a year of lockdowns, social distancing, and restrictions on travel and gatherings, some
groups of people have reported high rates of loneliness and poorer well-being in recent months”. Before
the pandemic around 5% of people in Great Britain reported that they felt lonely "often" or "always"
compared to 7.2% of the adult population in the period from October 2020 to February 2021.

Analysis of the survey data by area type indicates that countryside areas reported lower rates of loneliness
in general, as shown in the graph below.

Urban Settlements
Services and Industrial Legacy

Business, Education and Heritage Centres
London Cosmopalitan
Ethnically Diverse Metropaolitan Living
Town and Country Living

Affluent England

Countryside Living

[=]
[ o]
e
[=3]
(=]
-
=]

12
¥
The ONS also found that places with a lower average (median) age generally experienced higher rates of
loneliness during the pandemic, with higher rates of loneliness among young people particularly
associated with urban areas outside London.

Another finding was that unemployment was closely tied to loneliness levels during the pandemic, with
local authority areas with a higher unemployment rate having higher proportions of residents who said
they were often or always lonely. Additionally, in areas where residents earn more on average per week,
loneliness rates tend to be lower.

In addition to the ONS Opinions and Lifestyle Survey data, YouGov survey data shared by the Mental
Health Foundation also suggests a link between loneliness and lockdowns/restrictions. The following graph

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 36 of 154

Page 82 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/mappinglonelinessduringthecoronaviruspandemic/2021-04-07
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/research/coronavirus-mental-health-pandemic/key-statistics-wave-8
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/research/coronavirus-mental-health-pandemic/key-statistics-wave-8

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

shows results for eight survey waves up to November 2020, with reported loneliness highest during the
first and second lockdown periods.

UK feelings of loneliness and hopelessness

In line with the ONS’ findings, the Mental Health Foundation also reports links between loneliness and age
(“Feelings of loneliness were higher in younger people too, with 38% and 34% of people aged 18-24 and
25-34 respectively, which has been consistently higher across all waves than the general population”) and
between loneliness and unemployment (“levels were also higher in people who are unemployed”).

Local data: Local authority level estimates of loneliness were not available prior to the pandemic. It is
therefore not possible to measure how loneliness levels may have changed in Huntingdonshire.

However, an estimate for the period 14 October 2020 to 22 February 2021 is available. As Huntingdonshire
is in ONS’ “Town and Country Living” local authority classification supergroup, is estimated to have a
higher median age (43.6 years at mid-2020) than the national average (40.2 years) and has below average
unemployment, we would expect this estimate to indicate a below average loneliness rate.

This is confirmed by the estimate which indicates that 5.4% of Huntingdonshire adults “often or always”
felt lonely in the October 2020-February 2021 period, below the 7.2% average for Great Britain. However,
this should be treated with some caution due to small sample sizes and large confidence intervals, with the
ONS cautioning that local authorities should not be ranked against each other.

The Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport have said they will commission research from the
Office for National Statistics and Centre for Thriving Places in early 2021 which will begin to explore
variations in levels of loneliness in local areas. This will be supported by the Active Lives Survey, which will
allow robust estimates of the levels of loneliness within local authority areas.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 37 of 154

Page 83 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/mappinglonelinessduringthecoronaviruspandemic/2021-04-07
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/loneliness-annual-report-the-second-year/loneliness-annual-report-january-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Financial Hardship

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

There has been an increase

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

increased since the
beginning of the pandemic/

Benefits in benefit claimants/ (District level data (Major impact due to a rise
claimant households since | available) of more than 40%, with
the start of the pandemic/ rates remaining
lockdown restrictions significantly higher than

pre-pandemic levels)
The number of children 3 = MEDIUM 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Free School eligible for and taking up (County level data (Major impact in terms of
Meals Free School Meals has available) an increase in children who

are eligible and also in
numbers that access Free

pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

distribution centres based
in the district in each year)

lockdown restrictions School Meals)
There has been an increase | 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 3 = MEDIUM

Food bank use in food parcels distributed | (District level data (Moderate impact as
since the start of the available — reflects 6 although food bank use

was already rising, this has
increased further due to
significant awareness
raising and promotion of
the provision throughout
the pandemic, as seen
through our own work with
vulnerable people)

Requests for
advice/support
re debt/low
income

There has been a reduction
in the number of people
helped, and the number of
issues helped with, by
Citizens Advice services
since the start of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

3 = MEDIUM

(Data available for Citizens
Advice Rural Cambs -
covering Fenland, East
Cambridgeshire and
Fenland)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact due to a
reduction in clients and
issues dealt with, linked to
restricted access to services
during the pandemic but
likely to have been
mitigated by new support
available from local groups
- see sections on Support
Network and Volunteering)

Subject: Benefits

National data: Most of the impact of the pandemic on those in receipt of benefits, and on those needing
support from the benefit system as a result of impacts on employment, has been among those of working
age. DWP data on those of State Pension Age does not show an increase in benefit claimants since February
2020, with numbers in receipt of any DWP benefit including the State Pension fairly static at around 9.8
million and the number in receipt of any combination of benefits except the State Pension alone falling by
3.8% (over 122,000 people) from February 2020 to the latest count at February 2021.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 84 of 210

Page 38 of 154



https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

The number of working age people in England in receipt of various benefits paid by the Department for
Work and Pensions is shown in the following graph for every quarter from February 2018. This shows a large
increase in claims between February 2020 and May 2020 as the first national lockdown began, with an
additional 1.93 million claimants over that period (a 31% rise). The majority (over 93%) of the increase was
due to claims for Universal Credit (UC) only, with large rises in the numbers receiving UC only while working
and receiving UC only while out of work. It should be noted that some of the increase in UC claims would
have been due to people moving onto UC from other DWP benefits but there were only small reductions in
non-UC benefit recipients between February 2020 and May 2020.

All Working Age DWP Benefit Claimants by Benefit Type

9,000,000
m Other DWP Benefi combinations m UC Working only m UC Out-of-work only
8,000,000

7,000,000

6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000

Feb-18 May-18  Aug-18 Nov-18 Feb-13 May-15  Aug-19 MNov-18 Feb-20 May-20  Aug-20 Nov-20 Feb-21

Mumber of Working Age Claimants

With regards to who the new UC claimants are, data is available on claimants by age and gender and
whether they were in employment while claiming or not. Data is also available on the households in receipt
of UC by family type, number of children and payment amount. It should be noted that UC claimant and
household numbers since the beginning of the pandemic have included higher numbers of people with an
open claim on Universal Credit that are not “in payment” as a result of a temporary administrative policy
change allowing claims not in payment to be kept open for longer than before - claims reduced to £0
because earnings are too high now remain open for up to 6 assessment periods of £0 awards rather than
being closed at this point. Data relating to individual claimants below includes those not in payment, but the
household data referred to has been filtered to only report on claims in payment at the time. “Couple, no
children” family types have been most likely to be not “in payment”, while nearly all “Single, with children”
family types have been “in payment” throughout (96-98% of claims each month have been in payment).

Comparing numbers at February 2020 and August 2021 shows claimant numbers nationally have roughly
doubled in every age group, except for those aged 16-19 (up by only 60% but, as few are at the younger end
of this age band, a higher proportion than in most age bands are likely to have moved up to the next age
band over the period) and those aged 65+ (a very small group which remained much smaller than any other
age band at August 2021 despite a near sixfold increase in size). Similarly, both the number of males and
females claiming have both roughly doubled from February 2020 to August 2021, with a 93% increase in
female claimants and a 119% increase in male claimants over the period.

Both the number of claimants in employment and the number not in employment increased significantly
between February 2020 and July 2021. However, there was a sharper rise in those in employment (up by
132%) than those not in employment (up by 87%). At February 2020, claimants in employment made up
35% of all claimants and by July 2021 this share had increased to 40%. Those in employment will be under a
range of conditionality regimes — from those with very low earnings who are required to take action to

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 39 of 154

Page 85 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

secure more/better paid work to those with individual or household earnings over the level at which
conditionality applies (these people are not required to look for different work but must advise the DWP of
changes of circumstances, particularly if at risk of decreasing earnings or losing jobs). Some not in
employment will be required to search for work but others are not expected to work at present (e.g. those
with health or caring responsibilities which prevent them from working or preparing for work).

The number of households in receipt of UC payments was 77% higher at May 2021 than at February 2020,
with the largest increase among the “single, no children” family type. However, all family types have seen
large increases over this period. Similarly, households with no children saw the largest rise in claims with UC
payments but there were also large increases for households with 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 or more children. The
average monthly payment for households in receipt of UC payments initially rose by over £100 from £743 in
February 2020 to £847 in April 2020 but then fell back to around £780 by June 2020. The average monthly
payment remained around that level until February 2021 but has since increased to £803 at May 2021. This
latest average is 8% higher than the pre-pandemic average at February 2020.

In addition to benefits paid by DWP, local authorities across the country administer Housing Benefits
(switching to UC over time) and also provide Council Tax Support (CTS) schemes to help low-income council
taxpayers. While local discretion means that eligibility criteria and the amount of discount varies between
councils, changes in the number of households in receipt of CTS provide an indication of changes in the
number of low income households in an area. Nationally, there was a 4.5% increase in the number of
claimants between Q4 2019/20 (January to March 2020) and Q1 2020/21 (April to June 2020), followed by
further small increases to Q4 2020/21. The most recent data shows that from Q4 2020/21 to Q1 2021/22,
there was a fall of 0.7%. The level at Q1 2021/22 remains 4.4% higher than an Q4 2019/20.

Local data: As seen nationally, most of the impact of the pandemic on those in receipt of benefits, and on
those needing support from the benefit system as a result of impacts on employment, has been among
those of working age. DWP data on those of State Pension Age does not show an increase in benefit
claimants since February 2020, with numbers in receipt of any DWP benefit including the State Pension
fairly static at around 34,000 and the number in receipt of any combination of benefits except the State
Pension alone falling by 3.5% (277 people) from February 2020 to the latest count at February 2021.

The number of working age people in Huntingdonshire in receipt of various benefits paid by the Department
for Work and Pensions is shown in the following graph for every quarter from February 2018. This shows a
large increase in claims between February 2020 and May 2020 as the first national lockdown began, with
more than 5,000 additional claimants over that period (a 43% rise, so higher than average). The majority
(over 89%) of the increase was due to claims for Universal Credit (UC) only, with large rises in the numbers
receiving UC only while working and receiving UC only while out of work. It should be noted that some of
the increase in UC claims would have been due to people moving onto UC from other DWP benefits but
there were only small reductions in non-UC benefit recipients between February 2020 and May 2020.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 40 of 154

Page 86 of 210



https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=13684&mod-period=8&mod-area=E92000001&mod-group=AllRegions_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup
https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

All Working Age DWP Benefit Claimants by Benefit Type
20,000
18 000 m Other DWP Benefit combinations m UC Working only m UC Out-ofwork only
16,000
14,000

12,000

10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000

Feb-18 May-18 Aug-18  MNov-18  Feb-139 May-13  Aug-19  Now-1%  Feb-20 May-20 Aug-20 Now-20  Feb-21

Mumber of Working Age Claimants

The DWP’s decision to allow UC claims reduced to £0 because earnings are too high to remain open for up
to 6 assessment periods of £0 awards rather than being closed has also affected total claim numbers for
Huntingdonshire. The graph below shows the numbers of household claims in payment and not in payment
(e.g. £0 awards) for each month since February 2020. Around a fifth of claims each month over this period
were not in receipt of any payment. Data relating to individual claimants below includes those not in
payment, but household data referred to has been filtered to only report on claims in payment at the time.

Household claims by whether in payment or not, with % not in payment

10,000
mYes mNo
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
]
B A O
o= o8 Q o &) o8 " A
& “PJL Gl "»61' m“n' O & "Pq' "» PP "‘9’ o @} @’ 6'}
& & A @ s & & s & A A A S
& & W <+ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¢ g & & & & & & &
é;‘ o ?\593’ & & o & E @\ ‘3@ ks
& ) o ec‘a o b «

As seen nationally, comparing data for February 2020 and August 2021 shows claimant numbers locally have
increased significantly in every age group (more than doubling in every age group except 16—-19-year-olds,
which was up 95%). Similarly, both the number of males and females claiming have increased significantly
from February 2020 to August 2021 in Huntingdonshire, with a 130% increase in female claimants and a
176% increase in male claimants over the period.

Huntingdonshire’s claimants have also followed the national direction with a sharper rise in the number of
claimants in employment (up 184%) than the number not in employment (up 118%) between February 2020

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 41 of 154

Page 87 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

and July 2021, as shown in the graph below. From 42% in February 2020, the share of claimants who are in
employment has increased to nearly half (48%) at July 2021.

UC Claimants by Employment Status
12,000

10,000
E,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

W .. "
A & &
\

] i
{1 {1
< 5

£
A ~¢ & A s ¥ & «\
A :sﬁ‘ & \3 & @v“’ \saa &3“ & st‘“ & ;5‘ -\;a‘\ @” \o“g'
<& o dxe} ) B » o
& o o &

"

'1,
\o\“

minemployment @ Mot in employment

The number of households in receipt of UC payments was twice as high (+100%) at May 2021 than at
February 2020, with large increases seen for all family types over this period but the largest increase among
the “single, no children” family type. Similarly, households with no children saw the largest rise in claims
with UC payments but there were also large increases for households with 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 or more children.

As shown in the graph below, the average monthly payment for Huntingdonshire households in receipt of
UC payments initially rose by over £100 from £725 in February 2020 to £831 in April 2020 but then fell back
to around £750 by June 2020. The average monthly payment remained around that level until March 2021
but has since increased to £764 at May 2021. This latest average is 5% higher than the pre-pandemic
average at February 2020. When compared to the changes in the national mean payment amount,
Huntingdonshire has seen a smaller increase and the difference between the national average and the local
average has doubled from being 2.4% below average in February 2020 to 4.8% lower in May 2021.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 42 of 154

Page 88 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Mean Payment Amount - UC claimant households in payment

B60

2an e EZ I s HuTing donshire
— 820
=
=] BOO
= ///'
7m0
=
< _
g A
o
E 710
=
[
o
= 00
o
Z 680

&60

AT TS A P 8 oo W W @ @
) A © ) oD 0 ) o @ ) o " A " " Py
o Pk Ak av W AN ) i v v Ak oV y! e rah
s & oD o ot O - & & & ) & ) & i
ol £ & o & k) £ & o & o ol Ea ) o B4
# WP W o ¥ R 5 . 4 & & oF i W <
& ks & o~ o & N & =
- <

The number of Local Council Tax Support claimants in Huntingdonshire increased significantly between Q4
2019/20 and Q1 2020/21 (April to June 2020). This increase was higher than the increase nationally in that
period (up 5.6% compared to an England average of 4.5%) and Huntingdonshire also saw larger increases
over the second, third and fourth quarters of 2020/21. At Q4 2020/21, there had been a 9.5% increase
locally compared to the number of claimants at Q4 2019/20 while the national total had risen by just 5.2%
overall over the same period. There have been no changes to eligibility criteria for the Council Tax Support
scheme in Huntingdonshire so the increase in claimants is due to a rise in demand.

Local Council Tax Support claimants over Time

——England e Huntingdonshire 7.750
4,150,000 z
3
E 7550 =
z .
B 4,050,000 %
2 4050 — o
= z
£ 2
£ 350 @
E 3,850,000 i
o T
= =
2 7150 =
& 3,850,000 &
5 g
= o
3,750,000 6.95 3
3,650,000 6,75
2013/20 1 2019/20 2 2019/20 Q3 2019/20 04 2020/21 1 2020/21 Q2 2020/21 Q3 2020/21 Q4 2021422 @1

More recently, Huntingdonshire saw a 1.2% reduction in claimant numbers from Q4 2020/21 to Q1 2021/22
while the England total fell by 0.7%. However, the number of claimants in Huntingdonshire at Q1 2021/22
remained 8.2% higher than at Q4 2019/20 while the national total had only risen by 4.4% over this time.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 43 of 154

Page 89 of 210



https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=13684&mod-period=9&mod-area=E07000011&mod-group=E92000001&mod-type=area

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Free School Meals (FSM)

National data: The |atest data, combining information from the school census, school level annual school
census, general hospital school census and alternative provision census, shows that there were 1.74m
pupils eligible for FSM at January 2021, up from 1.44million in January 2020 (a rise of 21%). 20.8% of all
pupils were eligible for free school meals in 2021, which is an increase from 17.3% in January 2020. Over
420,000 have become eligible for free school meals since the first national Covid-19 lockdown was
announced, compared to just 292,000 over the same period (March 2019 to January 2020) prior to the
pandemic. This is an increase of over 40% and, when combined with the increase in the proportion of
pupils who are eligible, this suggests the increase is likely to be linked to the pandemic. Free School Meals
eligibility is based on whether parents/carers are in receipt of a range of benefits, including Universal
Credit, so it does seem likely that the increase is linked to the increase in benefit take-up nationally.

Local data: Figures for Cambridgeshire show the overall number of pupils eligible for free school meals in
January 2021 was 15,803, up from 12,235 in January 2020 (a rise of 29%). 17.8% of all pupils were eligible
for free school meals in 2021, which is an increase from 13.9% in January 2020. The overall proportion
eligible is below the national average overall and for all school types except state-funded special schools
(where 43.8% of pupils were eligible for FSM compared to an England average of 43.2%). Cambridgeshire
has seen over 4,500 become eligible for free school meals since the first national Covid-19 lockdown was
announced. While figures for the same period in 2019-2020 are not available, this represents 28.5% of all
those eligible at January 2021 — a slightly higher proportion than the 24.6% of those eligible nationally at
January 2021 who had become eligible since the first national lockdown.

Cambridgeshire County Council’s Service Director — Education advised in June 2021 that increasing the
take up for free school meal entitlement, especially for families who are low income, following Covid-19
was one of their current priorities. They also want to increase the take up of 2-year-old funded places and
the early years pupil premium (3- and 4-year-olds) as they “know settings are losing out on financial
support which is vital to support catch up in these establishments”.

Subject: Food bank use

National data: The Trussell Trust has reported that between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021, food banks in
their network within England distributed 2.1 million emergency food parcels to people in crisis, a 40.5%
increase on the previous year. 818k of these went to children, with the number of parcels for children up by
43% compared to 2019/20.

The Trussell Trust’s data briefing states that during this period, food banks across the country have seen
historic levels of need, with many new food banks opening to support people through the crisis. They note
that alternative providers such as councils, community groups and schools also began distributing
emergency food parcels to support people shielding in their communities, and those who cannot afford or
access food.

In addition to the increase in parcels, there was also a 53% increase in total weight of food distributed
compared to 2019/20. The Trussell Trust says some food banks gave out larger parcels during the crisis
which may have reduced the total number of parcels given out, while increasing the average weight.
Because some food banks distributed a higher proportion of seven-day parcels than others, this may skew
some statistics at a local or regional level.

Local data: The Trussell Trust has also reported data at the local authority level (link to spreadsheet).
However, they note that comparisons in the growth in food parcel distribution between areas should be
made with caution as there are many different factors that may influence the number of parcels distributed

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 44 of 154

Page 90 of 210



https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/school-pupils-and-their-characteristics
https://www.trusselltrust.org/news-and-blog/latest-stats/end-year-stats/
https://www.trusselltrust.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/04/Trusell-Trust-End-of-Year-stats-data-briefing_2020_21.pdf
https://www.trusselltrust.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/04/Financial-Year-2020_21-End-of-Year-statistics_FOR-PUBLIC-USE.xlsx

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

within a local area. These include prevalence of other food banks, changes to unemployment rates and food
banks opening or closing distribution centres. Food parcels are linked to the local authority based on where
the distribution centre is based, rather than where the person needing support is living. For example, if a
person living in Bromley receives a parcel from a food bank in Lambeth the parcel is recorded in these
statistics under Lambeth.

The 2019/20 and 2020/21 figures for Huntingdonshire are both based on six distribution centres in the
district. They show a 35% increase in the total number of parcels distributed, from 5,775 in 2019/20 to
7,776 in 2020/21. The figures also show how many parcels were for adults and how many were for children.
Parcels for adults increased from 3,411 to 4,355 (+28%) and parcels for children increased from 2,364 to
3,421 (+45%).

Subject: Requests for advice and support regarding debt and low income

National data: Citizens Advice publish data on trends in advice and support given here: Advice Trends
September 2021 | Tableau Public. This is based on advice and support from over 600 offices and ,1800
outreach locations throughout the UK. The data shows there was a 6.7% reduction in the number of clients
supported (1,447,188 down from 1,550,716) and a 12.5% reduction in the number of issues dealt with in the
municipal year 2020/21 compared to 2019/20 (4,120,427 down from 4,711,499).

Local data: Citizens Advice Rural Cambs supported 9,201 unique clients across their rural Cambridgeshire
area (those accessed their service for the first time in 12 months) in 2020/21. This is 9.7% lower than the
number supported in 2019/20. It should be noted that these figures don’t include many more thousands of
clients returning within the same year (due to funding requirements these people are not double counted).

They dealt with 41,804 issues (down 9% on the previous year), with the top five as listed below similar to
the top five in 2019/20. ‘Relationships’ was fifth highest in 2019/20 but not in the top five in 2020/21, while
the ‘Financial Services & Capabilities’ category was a new entry in the top five in 2020/21.

1. Benefits — Universal Credit

2. Benefits & Tax Credits

3. Financial Services & Capabilities

4. Debt

5. Employment
There have been increases in services accessed via advice, email, telephone and webchat but a significant
fall in the number of services accessed in person as lockdown restrictions led to offices closing and staff and
volunteers working from home.

Despite the reduction in people and issues supported, the service helped clients gain significantly more
income in 2020/21. The £8.4m gained for service users in rural Cambridgeshire was nearly double (+96%)
the income gained for service users in 2019/20 (£4.3m).

It should be noted that the figures above relate to the whole rural Cambridgeshire area (Fenland, East
Cambridgeshire and Huntingdonshire) rather than Huntingdonshire alone.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 45 of 154

Page 91 of 210



https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/citizensadvice/viz/AdviceTrendsSeptember2021/Cover
https://public.tableau.com/app/profile/citizensadvice/viz/AdviceTrendsSeptember2021/Cover
https://www.citizensadviceruralcambs.org.uk/about-us/
https://www.citizensadviceruralcambs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/CARC-Summary-of-Activities-March-2019-April-2020.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

GOOD HEALTH

Cambridgeshire County Council/Peterborough City Council’s Public Health Intelligence/Business Intelligence
and CCG Intelligence teams are also working together on a collaborative programme of intelligence work
on the impacts of Covid-19 and emerging needs in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough. Their initial “COVID-
19: Review of emerging evidence of Needs and Impacts on Cambridgeshire & Peterborough” includes a first
suite of information which focusses on the immediate health impacts of Covid-19 as well as some
economic, transport and air quality impacts.

The second and third suites will include information on indirect health impacts of Covid-19 including
impacts on prevention and control of long-term conditions and the impact on mental health and wellbeing.
They will also include wider impacts on children and education, crime and vulnerabilities. These will be
released as data becomes available in November-December 2021.

Huntingdonshire District Council’s Impact Assessment 2021 has attempted to cover many of these topics
now using data sources currently available to give as early an indication as possible of the impacts
nationally and locally. However, to avoid duplication we have not included detailed analysis on the
immediate health impacts of Covid-19 such as infections, hospitalisations and mortality. The Public Health
teams have greater access to health data, including restricted data allowing them to undertake further
analysis than we could, so we would encourage those interested to read their current and future reports
via the link above.

Topic: Health

NATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
7 ©
o
Life expectancy for both 2 = LOW/MEDIUM 3 = MEDIUM
Life expectancy | males and females has (Only national data (Moderate impact as it is
decreased since the available) unclear how the pandemic
beginning of the will affect life expectancy
pandemic/ lockdown in future due to reduced
restrictions hospital admissions and
limited health care
services)
There has been an 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Obesity - adults | increase in adults who are | (District level data (Major impact due to a
overweight or obese since | available) number of factors e.g.
the beginning of the behaviour change, working
pandemic/ lockdown from home, leisure
restrictions facilities closed)
There has been an 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Obesity - increase in children with (District level data (Major impact due to a
children excess weight and who are | available) number of factors e.g.
obese since the beginning behaviour change, home-
of the pandemic/ schooling and
lockdown restrictions unavailability of sports and
leisure facilities/clubs)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 46 of 154

Page 92 of 210



https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Physical activity
—adults

Physical activity has
decreased in adults and a
greater number of adults
have become inactive
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact as there
is an identified inequality
i.e. more affluent people
become more active but
less affluent became less
active. Further analysis at
sub-district level required
to target support)

Physical activity
—older people

Older people have become
more inactive since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(Major impact due to the
reduction in strength and
balance activities for older
people to prevent falls)

Physical activity has

2 =LOW/MEDIUM

3 = MEDIUM

Physical activity | decreased in children and | (Only national data (Moderate impact due to
— children and young people since the available) being restricted to the
young people beginning of the home and access to
pandemic/ lockdown physical activities more
restrictions limited)
The number of people in 3 = MEDIUM 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Mental health contact with mental health | (County level data (Major impact which is
services has increased (for | available) typical in an economic

both diagnosed and self-
diagnosed mental health
conditions) since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

downturn period but also
increased due to reduced
access to mental health
services)

Impact on other
health
conditions

There has been a decrease
in some non-COVID
mortalities but an increase
in others, along with a
decrease in diagnoses
since the beginning of the
pandemic/lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact as it is
unclear how the pandemic
will affect people due to
reduced hospital
admissions and limited
health care services)

Behavioural risk
factors (alcohol
and smoking)

There has been an
increase in alcohol
consumption among heavy
drinkers and an increase in
smoking among young
people since the beginning
of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact due to
small increases in both
areas but unclear whether
this is a temporary or
continued trend)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 93 of 210

Page 47 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

o
There has been a decrease | 3 = MEDIUM 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Adult Social in people needing local (County level data (Major impact due to
Care authority long-term available) reduction in hospital

support but an increase in

referrals but an increase in

demand for short-term
support since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

community referrals along
with a considerable
backlog)

Subject: Life expectancy

National data: Public Health England (PHE)’s weekly excess mortality reports show that between the start of
the pandemic in March 2020 and the end of 2020, there were almost 70,000 ‘excess’ deaths in England.
They state that “Given the very high level of excess deaths last year due to the COVID-19 pandemic, it is no
surprise that life expectancy fell in 2020”. The falls “exceed any previous year-on-year changes seen since
1981” (the first year for which data has been calculated in a comparable way to these latest estimates),
although estimates for the first six months of 2020, covering most of the first wave of the pandemic, show
bigger falls in life expectancy with the estimates for the second half of the year “closer to those in 2019”.

Provisional “Period life expectancy” data for 2020 published by PHE estimated the average number of years
a newborn baby would live if he or she experienced the age-specific mortality rates of the area for that time
period throughout his or her life. These reflect current mortality rates and are not the number of years a
baby born in the area could actually expect to live, because mortality rates will change in the future. These
life expectancy estimates are therefore an alternative way of presenting mortality rates, in order to show
the impact of COVID-19 on levels of mortality in 2020. They indicated that there had been falls in life
expectancy for both males and females in 2020 compared with 2019 and other recent years.

The 2020 figures were also recently published in PHE’s Health Profile for England 2021, which states that the
“very high level of excess deaths due to the pandemic caused life expectancy in England to fall in 2020, by
1.3 years for males and 0.9 years for females”. The full-year estimate for males in 2020 was 78.7 years and
the full-year estimate for females in 2020 was 82.7 years. This was the lowest life expectancy since 2011 for
males and females. The report also states that “Spain, Italy and Poland experienced similar decreases in
2020, while France had a smaller decrease”.

The report also highlighted that inequality in life expectancy (as measured by the gaps in male and female
life expectancy between the most and least deprived areas in England) was larger than all previous years we
have data for, which is the last two decades. They advise that this “demonstrates that the pandemic has
exacerbated existing inequalities in life expectancy by deprivation”, with COVID-19 “the cause of death that
contributed most to the gap in 2020” but higher mortality from heart disease, lung cancer, and chronic
lower respiratory diseases in deprived areas also remaining important contributors.

Official data is based on the population estimates and deaths by date of registration data for consecutive 3-
year periods and therefore will not be directly comparable with the Public Health England data above
(single-year life tables are volatile and a less robust indicator of mortality trends than three-year life tables).
New three-year data for the latest period 2018-2020 has just been published by the ONS here. This shows
that life expectancy at birth in the UK in 2018-2020 was 79.0 years for males and 82.9 years for females;

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 48 of 154

Page 94 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/excess-mortality-in-england-weekly-reports
https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2021/03/31/life-expectancy-in-england-in-2020/
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-profile-for-england/hpfe_report.html#summary-5---life-expectancy
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lifeexpectancies/bulletins/nationallifetablesunitedkingdom/2018to2020

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

with a fall of 7.0 weeks for males and almost no change for females (a slight increase of 0.5 weeks)
compared to the latest non-overlapping period of 2015-2017. Figures for England were higher at 79.3 years
for males and 83.1 years for females.

The ONS state that the coronavirus pandemic “led to a greater number of deaths than normal in 2020” and
consequently, in the latest estimates, they see “virtually no improvement” in life expectancy for females,
while for males, life expectancy has “fallen back” to levels reported for 2012 to 2014. This is the first time
they have seen a decline when comparing non-overlapping time periods since the series began in the early
1980s.

They note that these estimates rely on the assumption that current levels of mortality, which are “unusually
high”, will continue for the rest of someone’s life. They advise that “Once the coronavirus pandemic has
ended and its consequences for future mortality are known, it is possible that life expectancy will return to
an improving trend in the future”.

2018-2020 life expectancy figures at age 65 years were 18.5 years for males and 21.0 years for females;
these estimates are very similar to those for 2015 to 2017 with a slight decline of 1.0 weeks for males and
an increase of 3.1 weeks for females. In England, life expectancy at age 65 years was slightly higher at 18.7
years for males and 21.1 years for females.

Local data: Public Health England have not published their provisional, single-year data below the regional
level. However, data on excess mortality is published to upper tier local authority level, with figures for
Cambridgeshire showing a total of 444 excess deaths compared to expected deaths for the period from the
week ending 27 March 2020 to the week ending 1 January 2021. Total deaths were 10.8% higher than
expected, with a total of 493 deaths with Covid-19 on the Death Certificate. Nationally, the 71,774 excess
deaths compared to expected deaths for the same period meant total deaths were 19.2% higher than
expected, suggesting that Cambridgeshire has fared better. As in Cambridgeshire, the number of deaths
with Covid-19 on the Death Certificate was higher than the number of excess deaths at 76,646.

While excess death data is not published at the lower tier authority level, data published on deaths related
to Covid includes the number with Covid-19 on the Death Certificate. For the period from week ending 27
March 2020 to the week ending 1 January 2021, there were 153 in Huntingdonshire. We are also able to
review provisional data on monthly death registrations by usual area of residence. This gives a total number
of deaths from April to December 2020 of 1,206, which is 100 more deaths than shown in the final data for
the same period in 2019 and over 170 more than for the same period in both 2018 and 2017. The
combination of the Covid-19 deaths and the increase over previous years does suggest there were ‘excess
deaths’ in Huntingdonshire in 2020 which are likely to have had a negative impact on life expectancy.

Huntingdonshire has seen a further 151 deaths with Covid-19 on the Death Certificate from the week
ending 8 January 2021 to the week ending 30 July 2021. Provisional data indicates that there have been 983
deaths registered in total from January to July 2021, which is 88 lower than the same period in 2020 but 64
higher than for the same period in 2019, 9 higher than in 2018 and 122 higher than in 2017. With less
difference between these figures and those for previous years, it is not yet clear whether 2021 will show
“excess deaths” overall and, if so, whether this would have a significant impact on life expectancy.

New three-year life expectancy data for the latest period 2018-2020 has just been published by the ONS for
local areas and this shows that life expectancy at birth in Huntingdonshire in 2018-2020 was 81.0 years for
males and 84.1 years for females. Both of these figures are slightly lower than the estimates for the latest
non-overlapping three-year period of 2015-2017, when they were 81.3 years for males and 84.6 years for
females.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 49 of 154

Page 95 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/excess-mortality-in-england-weekly-reports
https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/deaths?areaType=ltla&areaName=Huntingdonshire
https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/deaths?areaType=ltla&areaName=Huntingdonshire
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/monthlyfiguresondeathsregisteredbyareaofusualresidence
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/bulletins/lifeexpectancyforlocalareasoftheuk/between2001to2003and2018to2020

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Life expectancy at age 65 years was 19.5 years for males and 21.6 years for females for the 2018-2020
period. Again, both of these figures are slightly lower than for 2015-2017, when the estimates were 19.6

years for males and 21.8 years for females.

The ONS data shows that there were falls in male life expectancy at birth in more than 62% of all local areas
and falls in female life expectancy at birth in more than 46% of all local areas.

Subject: Obesity - adults

National data: Public Health England (PHE) report that the proportion of adults in England living with obesity
has “seen large increases in the last four decades”. Analysis of data from the 1980 National Heights and
Weights Survey estimates that the prevalence of obesity in England stood at 6% of men and 9% of women
aged 16 and over with 0.1% of men and 0.4% of women living with severe obesity. In 1993 the Health Survey
for England reported that the prevalence of obesity among men and women in this age group was 13% and
16% respectively which “has increased to 27% of men and 29% of women” in 2019.
Obesity prevalence among adults
o O O

‘ Excess weight prevalence among adults ﬁus Health
Public Health - Survey for England 2019 England Health Survey for England 2019
o O
In 2019 a\rnost 3 oul of 10 women were obese (29 1%)

ML

Adult (aged 16+) excess weight (overweight or obese): BMI = 25kgim?

In 2019 almcsl 7 out of 10 men were oveme\ght or obese (68.2%)

In 2019 6 out of 10 women were overwmghl or obese (GD 4%)

Adult (aged 16+) obesity: BMI > 30kg/m?

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 50 of 154

Page 96 of 210


https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2021/03/04/patterns-and-trends-in-excess-weight-among-adults-in-england/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

%4 Change in the distribution of adult BMI

Public Health
England Health Survey for England 1991 to 1993 and 2016 to 2018
Underweight Healthy weight Overweight Obese Severely obese
<18.5kg/m? 185 to <I5kgfm* 2510 <30 kgfm? 3010 <4Dkg/m? 240kg/m?

Frequency (%)

Body Mass Index (BMI) = Men 1991-1993 == Women 1991-1993
kg/m? Men 2016-2018 Women 2016-2018

PHE advise that there are well documented

;’;@;HC Health Adult mean waist circumference links between high levels of central
England Health Survey for England 2019 adiposity in adults (as measured by waist
circumference, waist-to-height or waist-to-
. hip ratio) and risk of obesity-related

conditions including type 2 diabetes,
hypertension and heart disease. These links
remain even once BMI is adjusted for,
demonstrating that measures of central
adiposity are independent predictors of
future obesity-related ill health.

Both sexes have seen a large rise in very

high waist circumference levels since 1993.
Adults aged 16+

PHE state that “the most recently available
data is from the 2019 Health Survey for England and was published in December 2020”. The data shared
above includes data taken from there. However, for a more recent snapshot, and to allow comparisons with
local estimates, we can refer to England figures for the percentage of adults (aged 18+) classified as
overweight or obese used in PHE’s Obesity Profile. These estimates are based on Sport England’s Active Lives
Survey, with the latest 2019/20 data containing the first eight months of coronavirus (Covid-19) restrictions,
from mid-March to mid-November 2020. This estimates that 62.8% of adults were overweight or obese, up
from 62.3% in 2018/19.

While this data highlights the proportion with unhealthy weight prior to/early in the pandemic, PHE recently
commissioned a nationwide survey of over 5,000 adults that has revealed that 41% of adults nationally, and

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 51 of 154

Page 97 of 210



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme/data#page/0/gid/1938133368/pat/6/par/E12000001/ati/302/are/E06000047/cid/4/tbm/1

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

over one in three adults in the East of England, say they have put on weight since the first lockdown in
March 2020. Source: PHE press release, plus PHE East of England press release issued 26 July 2021.

In our region, almost 9.51bs was gained on average by adults who put on weight, with 23% reporting putting
on a stone or more. In adults aged 35-65 years old, the average weight gain rises to over 10lbs nationally.

PHE report that new insights show the extent that lockdowns have impacted people’s eating and physical
activity habits, with unhealthy eating habits, such as snacking and comfort eating, the main contributor to
weight gain during the pandemic for 48% of those who reported gaining weight in the East.

A high proportion (84%) of adults in the region who said they gained weight since March 2020 said it was
important for them to introduce new healthy habits this summer, with nearly 56% saying they would like to
have a healthier diet. Nearly half (46%) of adults feel optimistic about making the changes they desire, and
again, half of them would welcome more advice on eating more healthily, ideas for doing so on a budget
(52%) and ideas for exercise routines (50%).

Local data: While Health Survey for England data is not available at local authority level, we can review local
figures for the percentage of adults (aged 18+) classified as overweight or obese used in PHE’s Obesity
Profile. These estimates are based on Sport England’s Active Lives Survey, with the latest 2019/20 data
containing the first eight months of coronavirus (Covid-19) restrictions, from mid-March to mid-November
2020. Results for England, Cambridgeshire and Huntingdonshire from 2015/16 are shown below.

% of adults classified as obese or overweight
70%
e Huntingdonshire Cambridgeshire England
68%

66%
64%
62%
60%
58%
56%

54%
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

This suggests greater fluctuation in the proportions of people classified as obese or overweight at district
and county levels, which is likely to be linked to the small sample sizes and reliability of the data. However,
even after allowing for large confidence intervals, we can be confident that the proportion of people who
are obese or overweight in Huntingdonshire is higher than average, with both 2016/17 and 2018/19 results
reported to be ‘significantly worse’ than the England average. In contrast, both the 2017/18 and 2019/20
results for Cambridgeshire were reported as ‘significantly better’ than the England average.

Given the issues with the data, we cannot state that there is any clear trend in levels of people with an
unhealthy weight at either county or district level. There is also no district or county level data available on
whether residents have put on weight or changed their eating habits since the start of the first lockdown.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 52 of 154

Page 98 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/news/campaign-launched-to-help-public-get-healthy-this-summer
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme/data#page/0/gid/1938133368/pat/6/ati/302/are/E10000003/iid/93088/age/168/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme/data#page/0/gid/1938133368/pat/6/ati/302/are/E10000003/iid/93088/age/168/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/cid/4/tbm/1

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Obesity - children

National data: Analysis of long-term National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) trends in children’s
BMI between 2006 to 2007 and 2019 to 2020 shows downward trends in obesity and excess weight in
reception boys and upward trends in obesity, severe obesity and excess weight in reception girls and year
6 boys and girls. The latest data for 2019-20 shows slight increases in excess weight and obesity in
reception boys (not statistically significant) compared to the 2018-19 data. There was a 0.5 percentage
point increase in excess weight in reception girls (statistically significant) and a small increase in obesity in
reception girls (not statistically significant). For Year 6 boys, there were statistically significant increases in
both excess weight (up 1 percentage point) and obesity (up 1.1 percentage points). Year 6 girls also saw
statistically significant increases in both excess weight (up 0.7 percentage points) and obesity (up 0.6
percentage points).

On average in 2019-20, for both sexes combined, the proportion of Reception age children with excess
weight was 23% and the proportion who were obese was 9.9%. At Year 6, 35.2% of all children had excess
weight and 21% were obese in 2019-20. The graphs below show obesity rates for both age groups.

Prevalence of obesity in children aged 4 to 5 years (reception) and 10 to 11 years (Year 6), England,
academic years 2019 to 2010, to 2019 to 2020

Female Male
Percentage Percentags
/______/— Year &
20 20 D
_— Year 6
15 15
10 — Reception 10 —Reaception

[S3]
53]

0 0
Pl Pl Pl Pl Pl Pl %) %) %) %) %)
= 22222222828 S 2288822828 ¢5
eS8 =g238Q SESR&EET2I2E
=] - %) [#3] I h o] st [s4] w =] L= ol %) (5] E= (%] (o] | o w =
Time period Time period
Persons (Males and Females)
Percantage
— Year 6
15
10 — Reception
5
0
] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ]
=2 2T =2 =22 =222 ===
w =] - [l [43] I h [+] | o0 (]
= =2 = =2 =2 =2 2 =2 = = i3
[ —_ (%] [6s] I h [e] | o0 [{n] (=]
Time period

Source: Health Profile for England 2021 (phe.org.uk)

Local data: School closures, in March 2020, due to the Covid-19 pandemic meant that in 2019/20 the
number of children measured in the NCMP was around 75% of previous years. Analysis by NHS Digital
shows that national and regional level data is reliable and comparable to previous years. The data at local
authority level and below is not as robust and should therefore be treated with caution.

However, NCMP data for Huntingdonshire published in the Obesity Profile shows that there has been a
small reduction in excess weight at Reception age (from 19.4% in 2018/19 to 17.8% in 2019/20) and no

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 53 of 154

Page 99 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-child-measurement-programme-ncmp-trends-in-child-bmi/ncmp-trends-in-childrens-bmi-between-2006-to-2007-and-2019-to-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-child-measurement-programme-ncmp-trends-in-child-bmi/ncmp-trends-in-childrens-bmi-between-2006-to-2007-and-2019-to-2020
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-profile-for-england/hpfe_report.html#detailed-analysis-and-charts-2
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme/data#page/4/gid/8000011/pat/6/par/E12000006/ati/301/are/E07000011/iid/90316/age/200/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/ovw-do-1_tre-do-1

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

change in obesity (6.8% in both years). This is in contrast to the statistically significant increase in excess
weight recorded nationally (up from 22.6% to 23%) and the not significant increase in obesity (up from
9.7% to 9.9%) for this age group.

For the Year 6 age group, Huntingdonshire saw a statistically significant 7.5% increase in those with excess
weight (up from 27.5% to 35%) and a statistically significant 4.9% increase in obesity (up from 14.7% to
19.6%) in 2019-20 compared to 2018-19. While the national excess weight and obesity rates for this age
group also had statistically significant increases, these were considerably lower at just 0.9% and 0.8%
respectively. Despite this, the Huntingdonshire rates remained below the national averages, although the
Huntingdonshire’s rates were not statistically significantly lower.

While the latest figures for Reception age look positive, and the large increases seen at Year 6 look
concerning, these results are based on much lower numbers of children measured than in previous years
and we have also noted that Huntingdonshire’s changes are not mirrored in other Cambridgeshire
districts. It is therefore suggested that close attention should be paid to future results to help identify
clear trends and where additional actions may be required.

Subject: Physical activity - adults

National data: Sports England have said that “With the implementation of guidance in England limiting
people to one outdoor activity a day and only with members of their own household, the majority of sports
and exercise activities became impossible overnight”.

However, a Sports England report in April 2021 stated that the majority of physically active adults in England
“managed to maintain their habits despite the challenges of the pandemic”, according to the latest Active
Lives Adult Survey, with just 710,000 fewer active adults between November 2019 and November 2020
compared to the same period 12 months previously. The headline results of the survey are below.

Fairly . Active
active
Less than an - Anaverage | An average of 150+
average of : of 30-149 minutes a week
minutes d . minutes a
week ' week
O,
61.4%
271% of people | n5%(5.2m) 61.4% (27.9m)
didlessthan | were fairly | did an average of
an average of 30 . active but 150 minutes or
minutes a week . didn'treach more a week
. anaverage |
of 150 minutes °
a week

The first eight months of coronavirus restrictions, as well as the storms that had a huge impact on outdoor
activity in early 2020, were said to have led to a “worrying increase” in the number of people who were
inactive — doing less than 30 minutes of activity a week or nothing at all. They advise that not all groups or
demographics were affected equally, with women, young people aged 16-24, over 75s, disabled people and

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 54 of 154

Page 100 of 210



https://www.sportengland.org/news/impact-coronavirus-activity-levels-revealed

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

people with long-term health conditions, and those from Black, Asian, and other minority ethnic
backgrounds most negatively impacted beyond the initial lockdown period.

The pandemic led to unprecedented decreases in activity levels during the initial restrictions and, as a result,
the latest annual results show the following changes compared to 12 months earlier:

e 710,000 (-1.9%) fewer active adults meeting the Chief Medical Officer’s guidelines of taking partin
150 minutes of moderate intensity physical activity a week, taking the total number of active adults
to 27.9 million (61.4% of the population)

e 1.2m (+2.6%) more inactive adults taking part in less than an average of 30 minutes a week, taking
the total number of inactive adults in England to 12.3m (27.1% of the population)

This, however, masks the scale of the changes seen during the impacted months.

Activity levels were hit hardest during the initial phase of the pandemic (the national lockdown between
mid-March and mid-May) and the proportion of the population classed as active dropped by 7.1% — or by
just over 3m fewer active adults — compared to the 12 months before. During the second phase, as
restrictions were eased, activity levels were still down compared to the previous 12 months, but the
reductions were smaller, with 4.4%/2.0m fewer active adults across mid-May to mid-July and 3.1%/1.4m
fewer active adults across mid-July to mid-September. In the third phase of the pandemic, as new
restrictions were imposed but before the full impact of the new national lockdown in November was felt,
activity levels decreased by 1.8% and there were 810,000 fewer active adults. Comparable data for the third
national lockdown from January 2021 is not yet available.

Whilst the restrictions severely limited the ability to take part in some activities such as walking for travel (a
reduction of 4.2m over the 12 months in those reporting taking part at least twice in the last 28 days),
swimming (-1.8m) and team sports (-940k), we can also see the significant attempts of the population to find
alternatives through increases in activities like walking for leisure (+1.3m), running (+470k) and cycling for
leisure and sport (+1.2m). Although at home exercise was encouraged, and the numbers of people working
out at home increased significantly, it was not enough to offset the lost gym environment (-1.9m) and drop
in those taking part in team sports (-940k).

Public Health England also measure physical activity via the Active Lives Survey, although they use a slightly
different measure to Sports England, with Sports England counting all those aged 16+, with gardening
excluded, while PHE count those aged 19+ only and do include gardening as an eligible physical activity. The
PHE measure puts the percentage of physically active adults at 66.4% in 2019/20, slightly down from 67.2%
in 2018/19 but slightly higher than for other recent years. However, the level of physical inactivity among
adults has increased slightly to 22.9%, up from 21.4% in 2019/20 and 22.2% from 2016/17 to 2017/18.

Sports England produced a summary report in April 2021 to help understand the impact of coronavirus for
both consumers and the sport and physical activity sector, looking at how people might behave as
restrictions ease and what they will be looking for as they return to activities. Among other findings, this
suggests that “The vaccine rollout is having a progressively positive impact on attitudes towards taking part
in physical activity”. However, they also note that “Accurately predicting the impact of such a complex, fast
moving, unprecedented situation is almost impossible”.

Local data: On the Sports England measure, the proportion of those aged 16+ in Huntingdonshire who were
physically active was 63.9% in 2019/20, up from 56.3% in 2018/19 and 61.9% in 2017/18. The physical
inactivity rate was 24.9% in 2019/20 compared to 28.3% in 2018/19 and 25.1% in 2017/18.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 55 of 154

Page 101 of 210



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/physical-activity/data#page/0
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-04/Understanding%20the%20Impact%20of%20Covid%20April%202021_0.pdf?VersionId=rDJkuKjVEnrsQYsDn9nSYezUmXlu6ZK9
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Result?queryId=36991

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Huntingdonshire LA

‘:) Show values (TNILEES  Population

80%

o,
0% 6355 67.2% 65.0%

S 62.1% 63.9%

)
P "—-A—_\ 61.9% 59.29%
60% SBV \’\A_ 56;?‘%/‘/’_/_‘

50%

40%

27,69 28.3%
o 25.1% ’ 25.0% 24.9%

30% 24.1% 24.2%
21.2% 20.4%
16.1%
20% 15.6% Tolse; 15.4% .
12.4% 10.9% 13.0% 12.9% 11.2%
10%

0%
Nov 15-16 May 16-17 Nov 16-17 May 17-18 Nov 17-18 May 18-19 Nov 18-19 May 19-20 Nov 19-20
Time period

Il Levels of activity : Inactive: less than 30 minutes a week [J] Levels of activity : Fairly active: 30-149 minutes per week

Ml | ~vels of activitv - Active: at least 150 minites a week

The PHE measure shows similar findings for those aged 19+, with the physical activity rate up to 71.4% in
2019/20 from 62.7% in 2018/19 and 66.6% in 2017/18 and the inactivity rate down to 20.2% in 2019/20
from 25.1% in 2018/19 and 21.4% in 2017/18.

It should be noted that all these figures are based on small samples at lower geographies and as such the
differences from year to year are not statistically significant.

There does not appear to have been any analysis published of whether differences between areas (e.g.
rural/urban classifications, population density or relatively affluence) may have contributed towards
differences in how physical activity or inactivity rates have changed.

Subject: Physical activity — older people

National data: A Public Health England study on the wider impacts of COVID-19 on physical activity,
deconditioning and falls among older people (over 65 year olds), reviewed data from Sport England’s Active
Lives Adult Survey and Projecting Older People Population Information datasets. Key findings were:
o 32% of older people were inactive (did either no activity or less than 30 minutes of moderate
activity per week) between March to May 2020. This has increased from 27% in the corresponding
period in 2019
e average duration of strength and balance activity decreased from 126 to 77 minutes per week in
March to May 2020 compared to the corresponding period in 2019
e inequalities in physical activity have persisted, older people in the most deprived group (defined by
Index of Multiple Deprivation) were more likely to be inactive than those in the least deprived group
in both 2019 and 2020
e older people experienced a considerable reduction in strength and balance activity between March
to May 2020, with the greatest change in the 70 to 74 age group with a 45% (males) and 49%
(females) decrease observed in activity

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 56 of 154

Page 102 of 210


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/physical-activity/data#page/4/gid/1938132899/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/301/are/E07000011/iid/93014/age/298/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1010501/HEMT_Wider_Impacts_Falls.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Without mitigation, their modelling predicts that:

e 110,000 more older people (an increase of 3.9%) are projected to have at least one fall per year as a
result of reduced strength and balance activity during the pandemic

e the total number of falls could increase by 124,000 for males (an increase of 6.3%) and 130,000 for
females (an increase of 4.4%)

o for each year that the lower levels of strength and balance activity observed during the pandemic
persist, there is projected to be an additional cost to the health and social care system as a result of
the change in predicted related falls of £211 million (incurred over a 2 and half year period)

Local data: Limited data is available on physical activity among older people at the county and district level.
Figures for those aged 55-74 and 75+ from the Active Lives survey are available, although they should be
treated with caution due to very small sample sizes for individual age groups.

Latest figures for November 2019-November 2020 suggest that physical inactivity rates for those aged 55-74
were 29% in Cambridgeshire as a whole and 26% in Huntingdonshire, while 46% of Cambridgeshire
residents aged 75+ and 53% of Huntingdonshire residents aged 75+ were inactive. Nationally 28.7% of 55—
74-year-olds and 50.2% of 75+ year olds were inactive.

By comparison, November 2018-November 2019 data showed similar levels of inactivity among
Cambridgeshire residents aged 55-74 (26%) and 75+ (48%), with Huntingdonshire data only published for
those aged 55-74 and showing a slightly higher level than the latest figure at 32%. Differences between the
two datasets and between areas are unlikely to be statistically significant.

Subject: Physical activity — children and young people

National data: National and regional level estimates from Sport England’s Active Lives Children and Young
People Survey are available up to the academic year 2019 to 2020. They show that in 2019 to 2020, 44.9% of
children and young people in England met the Chief Medical Officers’ (CMOs) guidelines of taking part in
sport and physical activity for an average of 60 minutes or more every day.

In 2019 to 2020, a statistically significant decrease in physical activity was reported compared with 2018 to
2019 (46.8%), but physical activity levels remain higher than 2017 to 2018 (43.3%). All regions, except the
North East, reported a decrease in physical activity levels compared with 2018 to 2019, although only the
East Midlands reported a statistically significant decrease.

Boys (47.1%) continue to be more likely to report achieving recommended physical activity levels than girls
(42.7%), although the gap narrowed by 3.2 percentage points (p.p.) in 2019 to 2020, with boys reporting a
more notable decrease from 2018 to 2019 (50.6%).

Significant differences in activity levels remain among ethnic groups, with those that identified as White
British still most likely to be physically active (47.2%), and those that identified as Black (35.5%) or Other
(38.5%) least likely to be active.

In 2019 to 2020, Black or Mixed ethnic groups reported a significant decrease in the percentage of physically
active children compared with 2018 to 2019, while the activity levels in other ethnic groups remained
similar.

The proportion of children achieving the recommended levels of physical activity differed across school year
groups, with those in year 3 to 6 less likely to be active (41.4%) than those in year 1 to 2 (45.7%) and year 7
to 11 (47.6%).

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 57 of 154

Page 103 of 210



https://www.sportengland.org/know-your-audience/data/active-lives/active-lives-data-tables
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/physical-activity-data-tool-march-2021-update/physical-activity-data-tool-statistical-commentary-march-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Compared with 2018 to 2019, the overall decrease in the percentage of children meeting the CMOs’

recommendations was driven by those in year 1 to 2 and year 3 to 6 while activity for those in year 7 to 11
has increased.

Local data: Sport England has not published local authority level estimates due to the impact of COVID-19
on data collection. Due to school closures, Sport England was unable to collect any data from late March
until mid-May, when they switched survey mode to at home completion for the summer term. To reduce
the burden on schools, and to help ensure a national sample was achieved, a reduced number of surveys
were issued during the summer term. This resulted in many local authorities not having sufficient responses
into the summer term to make results comparable with the previous survey years.

Subject: Mental health

National data: The Health Foundation’s COVID-19 impact inquiry report states that the mental health
impacts of the pandemic have been mixed. They say that, for many, initial declines in mental health during
periods of lockdown subsequently improved and that a “significant cohort” have experienced a reduction in
mental health, “posing a potential longer-term risk to the nation’s health”. Some of the data sources
referred to in the report are covered below.

Analysis from the ONS showed that around 21% of adults experienced some form of depression in early
2021 (27 January to 7 March), more than double that observed before the COVID-19 pandemic (10%).
Percentage of adults with depressive symptoms, Great Britain, July 2019

to March 2021

July 2019 to March 2020 June 2020 Movember 202 January to March 2021

I,
23

n

The Mental health and the COVID-19 pandemic chapter of the World Happiness Report 2021 includes
analysis based on responses to the UK Household Longitudinal Study, which suggests that by September
2020 there had been a sustained deterioration in mental health for a fifth of the UK population. By reviewing
responses from those participating in both April and September, they noted that a substantial fraction of the
population (22.5%) was “severely affected” in both waves, with this group experiencing a sustained period of
poor mental health relative to their previous levels. On the other hand, there was also evidence of
“improving trajectories”, with almost half of those who were badly affected in April “no longer 'badly’
affected” in September. Whilst a non-negligible fraction of the population (13.6%) had entered the badly
affected group, the overall effect was still a reduction in the size of the badly affected group by September.

A National Institute for Health Research and Medical Research Council-funded population-based cohort
study on the effects of the pandemic on primary care-recorded mental illness and self-harm episodes in the
UK is summarised here. Their analysis of health records from GP practices found that diagnoses of self-harm,

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 58 of 154

Page 104 of 210



https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/unequal-pandemic-fairer-recovery
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/coronavirusanddepressioninadultsgreatbritain/januarytomarch2021
https://worldhappiness.report/ed/2021/mental-health-and-the-covid-19-pandemic/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/33444560/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

depression and anxiety and first anti-depressant prescribing decreased substantially across the UK in April
2020. Compared with expected rates, the incidence of primary care-recorded depression had reduced by
43%, anxiety disorders by 47.8% and first antidepressant prescribing by 36.4% in English general practices.
Reductions in first diagnoses of depression and anxiety disorders were largest for adults of working age and
for patients registered at practices in more deprived areas. The incidence of self-harm was 37.6% lower than
expected in April 2020, and the reduction was greatest for women and those younger than 45 years old. In
April 2020, the rate of referral to mental health services was less than a quarter of the expected rate for the
time of year (75.3% reduction). The evidence suggests that access to mental health care declined, which
could have implications for individuals, health care services and for society as a whole. However, the same
report notes that by September 2020, rates of incident depression, anxiety disorder, and self-harm in
England were similar to expected levels. It should be noted that reductions in recorded cases may be linked
to missed opportunities for care (e.g. due to difficulties accessing GP surgeries) rather than a reduction in
healthcare needs, with another population-based study on the indirect acute effects of the COVID-19
pandemic on physical and mental health in the UK showing similar findings but referring to the need for
further research on the reasons for reductions in their interpretation notes.

Working with the University of Cambridge, Swansea University, the University of Strathclyde and Queen’s
University Belfast, the Mental Health Foundation has led an ongoing, UK-wide, repeated cross-sectional
study of how the pandemic is affecting people’s mental health. The latest wave of their study (June/July
2021) found that the proportion of people reporting that they feel worried about being able to cope with the
uncertainty of the pandemic has fallen (down to 37% from 53% in March 2020) and young people aged 18-
24 are coping better with the stress of the pandemic (62% coping well, up from 50% in February 2021).
However, since the first lockdown in March 2020, UK adults in general have slowly become less able to cope
with the stress of the pandemic, with the proportion of people reporting they were coping well falling slowly
and steadily, from 73% in April 2020 to 62% in June/July 2021. Those with a pre-existing mental health
condition were less likely than UK adults generally to be coping well (34%) and 31% of those with a long-
term physical health condition are still reporting that they are not coping well with the stress of the
pandemic. The graph below shows how levels of coping have changed over time.

Coping well with the stress of the COVID-19 pandemic

80%

75%

70%

50%
Wave 2 (2nd- Wave 3 (24th- Wave 4 (28th- Wave 3 (18th- Wawve 6 (30th Wave 7 (26ih- Wave & (26th- Wave 9 (21st-  Wave 10 Wave 11 (18h

3rd April) 26th Apnl) 29th May) 22nd June) July-3rd Aug)  258th Aug) 30th MNow) 23nrd Dec) (24th-26th June-Znd
Feb, 2021) July)
. Population s Pre-existing mental health diagnosis Long-term condifions  ==People aged 55+

Suicide in England in the COVID-19 pandemic: Early observational data from real time surveillance, a
research paper on the analysis of data from established systems of "real time surveillance" (RTS) of
suspected suicides, tested the hypothesis that the suicide rate rose after the first national lockdown began in
England. With the RTS covering 10 Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships across areas with a total

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 59 of 154

Page 105 of 210



https://www.thelancet.com/journals/landig/article/PIIS2589-7500(21)00017-0/fulltext
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/landig/article/PIIS2589-7500(21)00017-0/fulltext
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/our-work/research/coronavirus-mental-health-pandemic
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanepe/article/PIIS2666-7762(21)00087-9/fulltext

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

population of around 13 million (including Cambridgeshire and Peterborough), they did not find a rise in
suicide rates in England in the months after the first national lockdown began in 2020, despite evidence of
greater distress. The number of suicides in April-October 2020, after the first lockdown began, was 121.3 per
month, compared to 125.7 per month in January-March 2020. They found that incidence rate ratios did not
show a significant rise in individual months after lockdown began and were not raised during the 2-month
lockdown period April-May 2020 or the 5-month period after the easing of lockdown, June-October 2020.
Comparison of the suicide rates after lockdown began in 2020 for the same months in selected areas in 2019
showed no difference. However, caveats apply with data used being early figures that may change and the
use of RTS in this way being new and with further development needed before it can provide full national
data. They note that any effect of the pandemic may vary by population group or geographical area.

A July 2021 Parliamentary Office of Science and Technology research briefing on Mental health impacts of
the COVID-19 pandemic on adults also suggests it may be too early to know the effect on suicide rates,
stating that “There is a well-documented link between recession and suicide but this can take place over
years and thus requires a prolonged follow-up period”.

The same briefing note also looks at demand for, and pressures on, mental health services. Data from
several sources reports how the demand on services changed over the course of the pandemic, with fewer
people accessing services initially but this quickly returning closer to normal and at the same time pressure
on psychiatric beds increasing. The briefing note states that the most recent data (April 2021) shows “the
number of people contacting the NHS seeking help for mental health problems is now at a record high”.

The graph below plots the number of people in contact with NHS funded secondary mental health, learning
disabilities and autism services over time (data from Mental Health Services Monthly Statistics, rounded to
the nearest 10,000 people), showing that the number has continued to increase since April 2021 (note:
recent data is subject to revision when ‘end of year’ figures are published later). At the end of June 2021, the
number of people in contact with mental health services was 6.1% higher than at the end of March 2020.

People in contact with mental health services at end of month - England

1,700,000
1,600,000
1,500,000
1,400,000

1,300,000 /\__/

1,200,000

Number of people

1,100,000

1,000,000

N A S S SN SN S S S A NN SIS SN A A R A A
& & & @’5‘ VQJ‘ @7;\ N\ N vo"o &R & gOA Qe(’ & & R\
A 30 August 2021 blog post from NHS Providers - Millions waiting for care as COVID-19 lays bare the
challenges facing mental health services - states that around 1.6 million people are “officially waiting for
care”, with private estimates from the sector suggesting “around 8 million more are not meeting the
threshold to access the services they need to help them, even though they would benefit from treatment”.
They advise that services, including those for eating disorders and support for children and young people,
were “overstretched” before the pandemic and that Covid-19 has “given rise to new need and exacerbated
existing challenges, meaning that demand is significantly outstripping supply”.

Local data: While results from surveys and longitudinal studies are not available at the district or county
level (and would have very small sample sizes if they were broken down to smaller geographies), data on

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 60 of 154

Page 106 of 210



https://post.parliament.uk/research-briefings/post-pn-0648/
https://post.parliament.uk/research-briefings/post-pn-0648/
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-services-monthly-statistics
https://nhsproviders.org/news-blogs/news/millions-waiting-for-care-as-covid-19-lays-bare-the-challenges-facing-mental-health-services
https://nhsproviders.org/news-blogs/news/millions-waiting-for-care-as-covid-19-lays-bare-the-challenges-facing-mental-health-services

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

contact with mental health services in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group
area is published as part of the national dataset. This shows a similar pattern to the national figures, with an
immediate fall in contacts in March 2020 continuing until May 2020. Numbers then increased steadily until
December, with a further fall in contacts over January and February before numbers began increasing again.
At the end of June 2021, the number of people in contact with mental health services was 15.5% higher than
at the end of March 2020 (a much greater increase than the 6.1% rise nationally over the same period).
While the local CCG area still has a lower rate of people in contact with mental health services than average,
such a large increase seems likely to mean significant pressures on local mental health services.

People in contact with mental health services at end of month -
NHS Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG area
17,000
16,000
15,000
14,000
13,000

Number of people

12,000
11,000

10,000
OO DD DD DD DD DD S DD DD DD
Q‘Z/ \’bo <(Q\/0 @'b VQ @’b \\)(\ \0 VQQO (,)QQ o(‘ %o QQ’ \'bo ((Q\/o @’b VQ @'b \\)Q

Subject: Impact on other health conditions

National data: It is too early to know the full extent of the impact of the pandemic on other health
conditions/diseases such as cancer, heart disease or strokes, with changes to behaviours and access to
health services for both diagnosis and treatment potentially having a range of impacts as direct and indirect
determinants of health. Current data is limited but does include mortality data for 2020 for a range of
illnesses. The Wider Impacts of COVID-19 (phe.gov.uk) website from PHE provides the data without
accompanying analysis and findings but the graphs available currently suggest the provisional directly
standardised mortality rates per 100,000 population for the following conditions in 2020 were lower than
for the baseline period 2015-2019 for England (fewer deaths than expected):

e Cancer

e (Circulatory disease

e Digestive diseases

e Heart disease
e Respiratory disease
e Stroke

The graphs suggest the provisional directly standardised mortality rates per 100,000 population for the
following conditions in 2020 were higher than for the baseline period 2015-2019 for England (more deaths
than expected):

e Dementia and Alzheimer’s disease

e Mental and behavioural conditions

e Other causes of death (not including Covid-19)

These findings are provisional, and differences noted may not be statistically significant.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 61 of 154

Page 107 of 210



https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-services-monthly-statistics
https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

PHE’s Health Profile for England 2021 states that “changes in service provision and patterns of health
seeking behaviour has meant that there is a consistent pattern of reduced contact with health services over
the pandemic period”. New cancer diagnoses between April and December 2020 were 16% lower than in
the same months in 2019. Since March 2020, the percentage of people with dementia in receipt of a care
plan review declined each month to 39.4% in January 2021, compared with more than 70% in previous
years. They advise that reductions in contact “may result in missed opportunities to provide preventative
treatment and support, long-term health complications or an increase in deaths in the future”. In particular,
they say that the Rapid Cancer Registration Dataset provides a quick, indicative source of cancer data which
demonstrates that “measures to control the spread of COVID-19 in England have had a significant impact on
the number of new cancer diagnoses”. They advise that this “may result in more people being diagnosed at
later stages, when curative treatments are less likely to be effective” and that it is “possible that we may see
the impact of these reductions in new diagnoses through an increase in deaths in future years”.

PHE's report also states that rates of hospital admissions for falls and hip fractures among older adults aged

65 and over from April to September 2020 were below or similar to the average rates for 2018 and 2019 for
equivalent months. Rates from October to December 2020 were below the 2018 and 2019 levels. They state
that this is “likely to reflect the fact that fewer people were going out at the start of the second wave of the

pandemic”.

Local data: No current data available. Quality and Outcomes Framework, Achievement, prevalence and
exceptions data for 2020-21 is due to be released on 30 September 2021 so is expected to provide local and
national data relating to prevalence and ‘achievements’ expected of General Practices in 2020/21, with
regards to diseases including coronary heart disease, stroke/transient ischaemic attach, asthma, cancer,
diabetes mellitus and dementia. Cambridgeshire County Council are planning to report on indirect health
impacts of Covid-19 in the December release of their “COVID-19: Review of emerging evidence of Needs and
Impacts on Cambridgeshire & Peterborough”.

Subject: Behavioural risk factors (alcohol and smoking)

National data: PHE’s Health Profile for England 2021 advises that the impact of the pandemic on overall
smoking prevalence is not fully clear yet. Data from the ONS Opinions and Lifestyle Survey (OPN) indicates
that the proportion smoking between November 2020 and June 2021 was consistently lower than the
average for 2019, as shown in the graph below. However, data from the Smoking Toolkit Study suggests
smoking prevalence has remained stable, with some evidence of increases among young adults in the first
national lockdown and during 2021.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 62 of 154

Page 108 of 210


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-profile-for-england/hpfe_report.html#summary-13---impact-of-the-pandemic-on-health-in-adults
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/quality-and-outcomes-framework-achievement-prevalence-and-exceptions-data/2020-21
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/quality-and-outcomes-framework-achievement-prevalence-and-exceptions-data/2020-21
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-profile-for-england/hpfe_report.html#summary-16---inequalities-in-risk-factors
https://smokinginengland.info/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Trend in current smokers (OPN) in England

20

15

10

% of respondents

7,
OS’@;
090

4 week period ending

== Baseline 2019 M England

Source: PHE analysis of Opinions and Lifestyle Survey data from Office for National Statistics, 2021

Findings from a research report on a series of representative cross-sectional surveys of adults (Smoking and
Alcohol Toolkit Studies), collected monthly between August 2018 and July 2020 in England, also show that,
relative to changes during the same time period in 2018/19, lockdown was associated with significant
increases in smoking prevalence among 18—34-year-olds (+24.7% in 2019/20 versus 0.0% in 2018/19),
although not for older groups. There was little difference in smoking prevalence across the whole
population (+0.3 percentage points).

PHE’s Health Profile reports that “alcohol-specific mortality increased by around 20% between 2019 and
2020, driven chiefly by increases in mortality from alcoholic liver disease”. They advise that alcohol-specific
mortality rates had been increasing prior to the pandemic, but this represented a significant acceleration in
the upward trend and that the increase in alcoholic liver disease mortality during 2020 “has been linked to
increased alcohol consumption among heavy drinkers who were already at risk of liver failure”.

Data on alcohol consumption since March 2021 is reviewed in PHE’s Monitoring alcohol consumption and
harm during the COVID-19 pandemic report. Their findings include a significant increase in off-trade volume
sales of alcohol, with data from a consumer purchasing panel showing that between 2019 and 2020 (before
and during the pandemic), volume sales increased by 25.0% and that this increase was consistent and
sustained for most of 2020. They found that the total volume of duty-paid alcohol for the year of the
pandemic (2020 to 2021) was only 1.2% less than the year before the pandemic (2019 to 2020) despite the
closure of on-trade premises during national lockdowns.

The PHE report says that generally surveys and polls on alcohol consumption were low quality and reporting
of methods varied but, taken together, all survey data measuring self-reported alcohol consumption
suggests a polarisation in drinking. Most respondents reported drinking the same volume and the same
frequency as they did before the pandemic. Roughly similar proportions of respondents reported drinking
more or more frequently and drinking less or less frequently. Where surveys measured a respondent’s
drinking before the pandemic, they suggest that people who reported drinking more during the pandemic
than before tended to be heavier drinkers.

The research report reviewing Smoking and Alcohol Toolkit Studies results over time found lockdown was
associated with a significant increase in high-risk drinking prevalence among all socio-demographic groups
(+39.5% versus —7.8%), with particularly high increases among women and social grades C2DE. Alcohol
reduction attempts increased significantly among high-risk drinkers from social grades ABC1 but not C2DE.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 63 of 154

Page 109 of 210



https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1111/add.15656
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1002627/Alcohol_and_COVID_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1002627/Alcohol_and_COVID_report.pdf
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1111/add.15656

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

There were few significant changes in use of support for smoking cessation or alcohol reduction, although
samples were small.

Note: Publication of ONS data on adult smoking habits in the UK in 2020 is scheduled for November 2021.

Local data: Data on smoking prevalence and alcohol-related hospital admissions is not yet available for
2020/21. National survey data is not available at district or county level and would have very small samples
if available at that level.

Subject: Adult Social Care

National data: Limited data is currently available nationally. An overview of Adult Social Care Statistics in
England in 2020 reports that there is growing demand on local authorities for social care support, with
expenditure on social care continuing to rise. While the number of older adults receiving local authority
long-term support has decreased, short-term support offered has increased. Figures as at 30 September
2020 show a 1.4% reduction in the number of 18—-64-year-olds receiving long-term support and a 5.9%
reduction in the number of people aged 65+ receiving long-term support compared to 31 March 2019.

Local data: A report to Cambridgeshire County Council’s Adults Committee in January 2021 stated that
“Other than in April - August, where there was a dip in contacts to Adult Social Care, levels of contacts have
overall remained similar to pre-COVID-19 levels. However, the source of contacts has changed, with an
increased number coming through the Council’s customer services and the Adult Early Help team and a
smaller number coming via hospital discharge referrals”. This can be seen in the graph below.

s ~
CCC: Referral sources

3500

3000 —
S— -

I\ N
2500 “““a\ / \\ N

2000
1500
1000

500

> & > i~ S D o & o o o < o
e S o v v v v v v v v » v
S F T & & ‘!3;\ FOF ¥ F &

Community /Front Door /Contact centre /
Other Routes
Discharge from Hospital

Planned Entry (Tr ansition)
. vy

While this does not allow us to compare referral volumes for the March 2020 to September 2020 period
against volumes for the same period in 2019, the figures for October can be compared. These show that
overall in October 2019 there were 3,401 contacts, while October 2020 was similar at 3,382. However, the
number of community referrals increased by 12% compared to October 2019 and the number of hospital
referrals decreased by 43%.

The County Council also reported a back log of Continuing Health Care (CHC) assessments due to a “pause in
decision making during the first lockdown” and reductions in referrals from hospitals for both reablement

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 64 of 154

Page 110 of 210



https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-statistics-in-england-an-overview/2020
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-social-care-statistics-in-england-an-overview/2020
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=w6T3X0lpZkjxwrk8Pdc7tWzoZBnhJDl6lNzhY3wLDEi5O%2fmp3JVxpg%3d%3d&rUzwRPf%2bZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3d%3d=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2fLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3d%3d&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&kCx1AnS9%2fpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3d%3d=hFflUdN3100%3d&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2bAJvYtyA%3d%3d=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&FgPlIEJYlotS%2bYGoBi5olA%3d%3d=NHdURQburHA%3d&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3d&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3d

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

(55% of referrals since April 2020 have been from the community) and technology enabled care. With
regards to supporting people with long term care and support needs, they have reported that there has
been “areturn to a level of demand closer to the usual level we would expect, as opposed to the higher
proportion of crisis response driven work during the first lockdown”.

As seen nationally, the County Council is reporting that the number of people receiving long term packages
of care and support funded in whole or in part by the Council has fallen overall since May 2020. They advise
that the main reductions have been in residential care and nursing home care, and other community
packages, which includes day care. There has also been a slight decrease in home care packages from 2,272
in May 2020 to 2,227 in October 2020.

Huntingdonshire District Council has successfully contacted thousands of households with potentially
vulnerable residents during the pandemic. Our conversations with them have highlighted some issues with
accessing care services, particularly early in the pandemic when the issues mostly related to non-attendance
by carers who were self-isolating or shielding themselves. Some of these cases involved informal
arrangements organised by the residents themselves but there were also cases where residents receiving
support via formal care packages organised through the County Council found their care disrupted. While
we are aware of many cases where individual carers provided additional support to their clients during
lockdowns such as buying food or collecting medications, we also heard from vulnerable residents who
required our help in accessing the basics despite being in receipt of care packages and Adult Social Care
having regular contact with them. While Adult Social Care told us that they remained the lead agency
responsible for care support, any ‘Covid 19’ response needed should be dealt with by the district hub. This
meant there were multiple cases where, despite frequent home visits from carers, the District Council had
to make arrangements to supply food parcels or deliver medication.

Although demand for support with food and collecting medicines was mostly at the start of the first
lockdown, we have continued to receive new requests for help with care from those contacted throughout
the pandemic. While some of this relates to healthcare or mental health support rather than Adult Social
Care services, the District Council has been referring greater numbers of people to Adult Social Care and
flagging up safeguarding concerns regarding vulnerable residents more often than before the first
lockdown. This will have contributed partially to the increase in community/customer service referrals
noted in the County Council’s report.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 65 of 154

Page 111 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

About our district; Good Place, Good Work

The following sections of the Impact Assessment use local data to analyse whether economic and
environmental national trends are reflected in the Huntingdonshire district and whether there are unique
impacts for our local area that do not follow the national trends.

GOOD PLACE

Topic: Waste Services

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Household
waste (all types)

Collected household waste
has increased since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact as
although level of waste
fluctuated demand has
continued to be met)

Food waste

Food waste volumes
temporarily decreased at
the beginning of the
pandemic/ first lockdown

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(National data available)

1=LOW

(Negligible POSITIVE
impact as the change
noted was only short term)

restrictions

Subject: Household waste (all types)

National data: With 2020/21 collection data not due to be reported until November/December 2021, the
only national data currently available relates to Q1 (April to June 2020) only, is provisional and has not been
subject to the full quality assurance process that Defra carry out for their annual statistical release. The
Statistics on waste managed by local authorities in England for April to June 2020 report explains that the
period covered by these statistics was affected by the Covid-19 epidemic and the first national lockdown,
which had varied effects on local authorities but generally resulted in disruptions, cancellations of kerbside
collections of recycling and garden waste and widespread closures of Household Waste Recycling Centres.

The data available is therefore not reflective of the waste generated from all households and is not directly
comparable to data from previous years. Any trends shown for the period April to June 2020 are unlikely to
be indicative of the year as a whole as relaxing of the lockdown rules during the summer of 2020 and the
return to a full national lockdown during the winter months are likely to have different impacts.

Given these caveats, the decreases (3.3% for total ‘waste from households’, 10.1% for waste recycled, 14.3%
for ‘other organic’ waste) and increase (12.2% for food waste collected) reported compared to the same
period in 2019/20 should be treated with considerable caution. Quarterly recycling rates vary considerably
under normal circumstances, mainly due to tonnages of organics and the effect of the weather upon
growing conditions in any given year or season.

Local data: Huntingdonshire District Council’s data for Q1 2020/21 shows an 11% increase in collected
household waste per person compared to 2019/20, and a small reduction in the proportion of waste
recycled/reused/ composted (59.6% compared to 60.1% the previous year). The locally reported proportion

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 66 of 154

Page 112 of 210


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/985201/Statistics_on_waste_managed_by_local_authorities_in_England_Q1_2020_V3.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

of waste recycled/reused/composted for all of 2020/21 was 58%, below the Council’s target and the
previous year’s result (both 60%). Final figures reported by Defra may differ slightly.

Subject: Food waste

National data: Results from surveys undertaken by WRAP (latest results based on a sample of 4,172 UK
adults) indicate that, thanks in part to the food management behaviours adopted during lockdown, there
was a sharp decrease in reported levels of food waste during the first lockdown — from almost a quarter
(24.1%) of four key products (bread, chicken, milk, potatoes) in November 2019 to 13.7% in April 2020 - a
fall of 43%. Levels of food waste then rebounded to some degree but remained consistently below pre-
lockdown levels across 2020. However, the latest findings demonstrate that food waste is now back in line
with the levels recorded in 2018. It remains below the results for 2019 but is nonetheless indicative of a
rebound back to pre-pandemic levels.

Q. Thinking about the last time you bought [food type], approximately what percentage ended up
being uneaten and thrown away (whether in a compost bin, ordinary bin, council food waste
collection, or down the sink)?

% of key products (bread, potatoes, milk, chicken) wasted on
last occasion
30%
24.1%

0,
25% 21.2%

19.7%

Sov  184% 17.9% 1759  187%  179%

15%

13.7%

10%
5%

0%
May-18 Nov-18 May-19 Nov-19 Apr-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Nov-20 Jan-21 Jun-21

Natural England’s People and Nature Survey suggests that levels of people reducing food waste have
increased over the course of the pandemic, perhaps due to people reverting back to past behaviours as
indicated by the WRAP survey. The proportion of those surveyed answering that they had reduced the
amount of food their household throws away since the coronavirus restrictions began was 41% in May
2020, but this had reduced to only 36% in March 2021.

Local data: No data available. Food waste is collected with garden waste in Huntingdonshire, so it is not
possible to measure changes in volume from this. There are two relevant questions in Huntingdonshire
District Council’s Food Behaviours Survey, but this consultation has only just started, and the questions are
not directly comparable with either the WRAP survey or the Natural England survey.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 67 of 154

Page 113 of 210



https://wrap.org.uk/sites/default/files/2021-08/food-trends-report-august-2021.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/the-people-and-nature-survey-for-england-monthly-indicators-with-specific-weight-for-april-2020-march-2021-official-statistics

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Housing Demand

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Housing
repossessions

There has been a large fall
in mortgage and landlord
repossessions since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions. Note: this is a
result of Government
policy to suspend
possession actions, in all
but the most serious of
cases, during the
pandemic.

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

(Major impact in the
longer term as although
the Government policy was
beneficial to stop high
levels of repossessions,
once these measures are
withdrawn the impact is
likely to be significant)

Local authority
housing waiting
lists

Data is not currently
available to show a clear
national trend in waiting
lists since the beginning of
the pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact as it is
expected the renewals
process will remove non-
meaningful applications
and new build
programmes can meet the
required levels of social
housing for those in
highest need ie: Band A&B)

Homelessness

There has been a decline
in the number of
homelessness assessments
and the number owed a
prevention or relief duty
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

(Major impact in the
longer term as although
the Government policy was
beneficial to stop high
levels of homelessness,
once these measures are
withdrawn the impact is
likely to be significant)

House prices
(impact on
residents living
within the
district)

Average house prices has
increased since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(Major impact for local
residents who become
priced out of the local
market, even with below
average rises locally)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 114 of 210

Page 68 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

House prices
(impact on
people living
outside the
district)

Average house prices has
increased since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact due to
below average rises locally
and a lag in employers
revising working terms and
conditions to
accommodate
homeworking, thereby
making our rural district
more desirable for people
to move into)

Housing rental
market (impact
on residents
living within the
district)

Private rents have
increased since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(Major impact for local
residents who become
priced out of the local
market, even with below
average rises locally)

Private rents have

2 =LOW/MEDIUM

2 =LOW/MEDIUM

Housing rental increased since the (Only national data (Minimal impact due to

market (impact | beginning of the available) below average rises and a

on people living pandemic/ lockdown lag in employers revising

outside the restrictions working terms and

district) conditions to
accommodate
homeworking, thereby
making our rural district
more desirable for people
to move into)

There has been an 1=LOW 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Housing increase in the housing (No robust national data (Major impact for local

affordability
(house
purchases for

affordability ratio (homes
have become less
affordable) since the
beginning of the

available)

residents who become
priced out of the local
market)

existing ;
residents) pand.er(nc/ lockdown

restrictions

There has been an 1=LOW 2 = LOW/MEDIUM
Housing increase in the housing (No robust national data (Minimal impact due to a

affordability
(house
purchases for
people living
outside the
district)

affordability ratio (homes
have become less
affordable) since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

available)

lag in employers revising
working terms and
conditions to
accommodate
homeworking, thereby
making our rural district
more desirable for people
to move into)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 115 of 210

Page 69 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Housing supply

A significant fall in starts
and completions in April-
June 2020 followed by
recovery to similar or even
higher levels from July
2020 to March 2021

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact as
construction recovery has
been quick and limited
expected supply chain
impacts for developers.

Short temporary impact)

Subject: Housing repossessions

National data: The coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic has had profound effects on the UK economy, which, in
turn, have had unprecedented impacts on household finances, however, the impacts on homeowners were
mitigated by temporary measures put in place by the Government, Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and
mortgage lenders to help them manage mortgage repayments and avoid potential repossession action. This
included the Government suspending possession action in the Courts, apart from in the most serious of
cases, for the majority of the lockdown periods of the pandemic.

UK Finance has reported that total mortgage arrears remain close to historically low levels and their data
shows that the number of repossessions from April 2020 to March 2021 was less than 17% of the total
repossessed from April 2019 to March 2020. No involuntary possessions took place in this period, with
Government restrictions on evictions in place until 31 May 2021 in England. These findings align with the
Ministry of Justice’s data, as shown in the graphs below.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 70 of 154

Page 116 of 210


https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn04769/
https://www.ukfinance.org.uk/data-and-research/data/mortgages/arrears-and-possessions
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/mortgage-and-landlord-possession-statistics-april-to-june-2021/mortgage-and-landlord-possession-statistics-april-to-june-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Figure 1: Mortgage possession actions (actual and seasonally adjusted) in the
county courts of England and Wales, April to June 2016 to April to June 2021
(Source: Table 10a)

Claims Orders

value
\
{
value

value
|
i
.
value

Actual Seasonally Adjusted

UK Finance’s latest data for April to June 2021 shows that just 0.85% of homeowner mortgages and 0.3% of
buy-to-let mortgages were in arrears of over 2.5% of the balance. They report that lenders continue to
prioritise those requiring urgent resolution due to vulnerability or where it is of benefit to the customer and
therefore, they “do not expect significant increases in possessions immediately following the lifting of the
Possessions Moratorium and restrictions on evictions”. Possessions, as a last resort after tailored support is
exhausted and a thorough court-based process considering individual circumstances are expected to
increase slowly as the backlog of cases from 2020 unwind.

The Government also put protections in place for renters, including longer notice periods of six months and
banning bailiff enforcement of evictions for all but the most serious cases until 31 May 2021. These are
reflected in the following graphs.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 71 of 154

Page 117 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Figure 3: Landlord possession actions (actual and seasonally adjusted) in the
county courts of England and Wales, April to June 2016 to Aprilto June 2021
(Source: Table 10b)

Claims Orders

o O O o . aF el . G o O o 0 ol

el P Py v . i, e Pl s J
A ok e FAL ] 1 A L] N AL

Warrants S Repossessions

Actual Seasonally Adjusted

Source: Mortgage and landlord possession statistics: April to June 2021 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Data on households with rent arrears is not collected nationally from all landlords. The Household Resilience
Survey Wave 2, based on approx. 3,600 surveys nationally, estimates that 9% of private renters and 11% of
social renters were in arrears in November-December 2020. While the proportion of social renters in arrears
is the same as pre-pandemic levels, private rental arrears are higher than previously recorded (3% in
2019/20) and a further 8% of both social and private renters said it was very or fairly likely they would fall
behind with rent payments in the next 3 months. The majority of households with rental arrears were less
than 2 months behind.

While the “unprecedentedly low levels” of repossessions during the pandemic mean that an increase is
expected, there are conflicting views on the scale of increase expected. Numerous articles present views
that there may soon be large increases in repossessions and rental evictions as restrictions, payment
deferrals and other measures supporting people such as the furlough scheme come to an end. However,
such articles tend to be written by those with a vested interest, with most predictions at this stage more
guesses than evidence-based forecasts, and they are countered by views put forward by those not expecting
rapid change such as UK Finance.

Local data: Data from the Ministry of Justice is also available at the local authority level and can therefore
be directly compared with national data. Nationally, the number of repossessions fell by 97.6% in April 2020
and March 2021 compared to the period from April 2019 to March 2020. Data for the same periods for
Huntingdonshire shows there was a 98.1% fall in repossessions locally.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 72 of 154

Page 118 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/mortgage-and-landlord-possession-statistics-april-to-june-2021/mortgage-and-landlord-possession-statistics-april-to-june-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/household-resilience-study-wave-2
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/household-resilience-study-wave-2
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/mortgage-and-landlord-possession-statistics-april-to-june-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Repossessions over time

40
- B Accelerated_Landlord H Mortgage
2] . .
5 Private_Landlord Social_Landlord
230
()
a 25
a
o 20
—
G 15 I
S
810
= | i [
o LB i I II BERNRRRRRNERINRAY
NN < NN A NN A NN A NN A NN NN S NN NN N
00000JdJg000dJ000d000JTTTTITTTITT0TTTTITITT
N AN ANOO OO TN NN N WO O ONNNNOGDOOGOOOGDODOOO OO O O O o o
R e e e e O e T e O e e, A e, O, O O e O e O e A e, A e, O O e O e O e O e e, O O O e O e A e A e A e, O e JON o Y o N o A N Y A
O O O O O 0O 000000000000 000000000000 O0O0OOoOOoOOoOOoOo
N AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN AN AN NN AN AN NN NN

Calendar Quarter (Q1=January-March)
Source: Mortgage and Landlord Possession statistics: April to June 2021 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

No local data on the proportions of households with mortgage or rent arrears is available.

Subject: Local Authority housing waiting lists

National data: Official data is currently available up to 31 March 2020, prior to the main impacts of the
pandemic. Housing waiting list figures from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
cover all households on local authority waiting lists, however this is not the same as the number of
households waiting. Local authorities periodically review their lists to remove households who no longer
require housing, so the total number of households on waiting lists may overstate the number of
households who still require social housing at any one time. The frequency of reviews varies between local
authorities. Waiting list size may also be affected by other factors such as the potential for some
households to be on the waiting list of more than one local authority.

This pattern of reviews is reflected in the Huntingdonshire and rest of Cambridgeshire numbers shown on
the following graph. The general national trend over recent years has been relatively steady numbers on
waiting lists following falling numbers between 2012 and 2018. However, locally there has been significant
fluctuation, with numbers in 2020 almost halved compared to 2018 as a result of all households being
required to re-register when a full scale review was completed in 2018/19. Not all households re-
registered, leading to a reduction in the overall numbers on the register. This graph only covers the period
to March 2020 so does not currently show any impact from the pandemic, but March 2021 figures are
likely to indicate how numbers have been affected once they are published in November/December 2021.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 73 of 154

Page 119 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-rents-lettings-and-tenancies

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Number of Households on Local Authority Waiting Lists

2,000,000 18,000
e England

1,800,000 /J = Huntingdonshire 16,000 &
ke Rest of Cambs g_
1,600,000 14,000 8
) B!
C -+
11,400,000 >
c 12,000 &
41,200,000 @
E 10,000 3
91,000,000 by
5 8,000 =
% 800,000 =
° 6,000 =
600,000 <
€ 4,000 3
2 400,000 ’ &

=%

200,000 2,000 o
3

0 0 e

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Total numbers on housing waiting lists reflect those at all levels of priority for housing, rather than
focussing on those with the highest level of need. Full details of local lettings criteria can be found in
Huntingdonshire District Council’s Lettings Policy, but it should be noted that the national waiting list
figures include Band D households assessed as having a ‘low’ housing need and include those who are
“assessed as having sufficient financial resources to resolve their own housing need”.

Local data: The graph below tracks Huntingdonshire District Council’s active housing register case load for
Bands A (urgent need) and B (high need) only. The combined Band A & B caseload at 20/9/21 was 22%
higher than at 29/4/20 but the graph shows that numbers have fluctuated over the period as households
in those bands move into appropriate housing and cases are reviewed. While there has been a generally
increasing trend over the period shown, the numbers shown can overstate the number of households
eligible to be included in Bands A and B at any one time as they may not account for recent changes of
circumstance. Periodic reviews of the list can therefore lead to numbers changing as new information is
considered and households which no longer require housing are removed.

Active Housing Register case load (Band A & B)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 74 of 154

Page 120 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

With regards to new applications made to the register, we have so far not seen an increase in numbers
applying. There were 2,079 new applications in 2020/21 compared to 2,214 new applications in 2019/20.

There are many factors which may affect the numbers of residents registered in Bands A & B so significant
further work would be required to help us understand how much of the increase can be attributed to
impacts of the pandemic.

Subject: Homelessness

National data: As reported in the [atest data tables on homelessness, the number of initial assessments of
homelessness by local authorities across England was on an increasing trajectory prior to the pandemic,
with the number assessed at Q1 2020 (January to March) the highest recorded since the introduction of
the Homelessness Reduction Act (HRA) 2017.

Homelessness Initial Assessments and Number Owed a Prevention or Relief Duty

85,000

80,000

75,000

70,000

65,000

60,000

55,000

e |nitial Assessments Owed A Prevention or Relief Duty

50,000
o o 3 o o o 3 o o o 3 g
(o] o0 (o] [e)] ()] )] [e)] o o o o i
i i - i — i — o o o (] o
o o o o o o o o o o o o
o o~ (o] o~ (g\] o o~ o (o] o o~ o

As shown in the graph above, the number assessed fell significantly in Q2 2020 (April to June) and
remained relatively low through the rest of the 2020/21 municipal year. Similarly, numbers assessed as
being owed a prevention or relief duty also fell compared to the longer-term trend. The number owed a
duty in 2020/21 was 7.8% lower than in 2019/20 and 0.8% lower than in 2018/19.

The fall in homelessness cases is likely to be linked to actions taken in response to the pandemic. In
addition to actions to halt or delay housing repossessions in most cases, action has also been taken to
reduce the number of rough sleepers who may otherwise have presented as homeless. Rough sleeping
snapshot data (link to spreadsheet) shows the number of people sleeping rough (those bedding down in
open air locations and other places, including tents and makeshift shelters, but not including people in
hostels or shelters, sofa surfers or those in any campsites) as recorded by local authorities each Autumn
rose steadily in England from 2010 to 2017. Since then, the numbers fell slightly in 2018 and again in 2019
but then reduced significantly in the Autumn 2020 count (a fall of 37% from 4,266 to 2,688).

This is linked to the ‘Everyone In’ initiative response to the pandemic, where local authorities across the
country sought to ensure that people sleeping rough and in accommodation where it was difficult to self-
isolate (such as shelters and assessment centres) were safely accommodated to protect them, and the
wider public, from the risks of Covid-19. This was an enormous challenge for local authorities, who block-
booked hotel rooms, secured other en-suite accommodation (e.g. B&Bs, student accommodation, holiday
rentals etc) and worked with partners to ensure that those accommodated had the food, medical care and
support they required.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 75 of 154

Page 121 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-homelessness
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/965181/rough_sleeping_statistics_2020.xlsx

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: While the latest data tables on homelessness show that Huntingdonshire also saw a fall in
homelessness assessments and the number owed a duty at Q2 2020 (April to June 2020), the numbers
were not trending upwards prior to that so there is less difference between the full municipal year figures
for 2019/20 and 2020/21 than seen nationally (Huntingdonshire’s 2020/21 total was 3.9% lower than in
2019/20, while nationally the total fell by 7.8%).

Homelessness Initial Assessments and Number Owed a Prevention or Relief Duty

350

300

- /\/\ \/\/\

200

150

== |nitial Assessments Owed A Prevention or Relief Duty

100
o 3 3 3] o 3 3 3] o 3 3 S}
0 (o] 0 (o)} ()] [e)] ()] o o o o —
i — i — i i — [\ [\ N [\ (o]
o o o o o o o o o o o o
[o\] [a\] (V] o~ (o] o~ (@] o~ o~ (a\] o~ (o]

Rough sleeper numbers for Huntingdonshire tend to be low (up to a maximum of five at each annual
snapshot between 2010 and 2019) and they are based on estimates rather than counts so there can be
significant variance. However, it is notable that the latest figure showing eight rough sleepers estimated at
Autumn 2020 is the highest number recorded over the period since 2010. The increase from the totals
reported in recent years does not correlate with the change recorded nationally in 2020, although a
qguarter of other local authority areas also reported increases compared to 2019. Huntingdonshire District
Council did participate in the ‘Everyone In’ scheme, providing accommodation to a peak of 30 people who
were sleeping rough or in accommodation where it was difficult to self-isolate. The Department for
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (formerly Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government) is tracking outcomes for those helped by Everyone In, with results to be published in due
course.

Subject: House prices

National data: There are a multitude of house price indexes which vary by source of data, from sale prices
recorded by the Land Registry (with some exclusions such as “sales that were not for full market value”) to
individual bank/building society indexes or values of properties listed on property search websites. The
different methodologies make it difficult to select any one as the ‘best’ indicator of trends in house prices
as they all have their own merits. However, if we look at trends excluding the most recent monthly
fluctuations reported then the various indexes tend to show rising average prices over the long-term from
before the pandemic began and over the months since. The analysis in this section references Land
Registry data (the UK House Price Index) which records confirmed sales and sale prices (although it should
be noted that data for the most recent months may be subject to revisions as further sales are added) and
Hometrack data from the Housing Bulletins which are used across the Cambridgeshire sub-region as a
common source of information on house values. The Bulletins also include data on affordability and rent
costs.

A recent report from the Resolution Centre considers how Covid-19 has affected housing demand across
the UK, with analysis based on Land Registry data from the UK House Price Index. It looks at trends in
house prices by rural/urban location and house type so is useful for exploring how Covid may have

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 76 of 154

Page 122 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-homelessness
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/housing/local-housing-knowledge/our-housing-market/housing-market-bulletins/
https://www.resolutionfoundation.org/publications/housing-outlook-q2-2021/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

affected housing preferences or led to ‘urban flight’. They found some evidence of this in the UK with local
authorities with the fewest residents per square kilometre seeing prices rise by 10 per cent on average
over the year to February 2021, compared to 6 per cent in the most populous areas. They also reported
that cities across the UK saw slower growth in house prices than rural areas, suggesting a reduced
preference for urban living, and that ‘denser’ types of property have become less attractive over the
pandemic period with the average price of a flat growing by ‘just’ under 6 per cent, while houses of all
types increased by around 9 per cent.

The UK House Price Index data which the Resolution Centre’s analysis is based on shows that there was a
9.8% change in the average house price for England and a 10% change in the average house price for the
UK in the 12 months to March 2021.

The latest (June 2021) Housing Bulletin contains Hometrack and Land Registry data for the period up to
March 2021, with local data listed for the same period. Price data is averaged over the previous six months.
At the national level, it shows that the average price based on both sales and valuations rose by 8.8% in
England between March 2020 and March 2021. However, the average price based only on actual sales rose
by 13.6% in England over the same period. While there is usually some difference between these figures,
the latest difference is greater than usual (by comparison, the sales/valuations average price in England rose
by 3.5% in the year to March 2020 while the sales only average price in England rose by 3.8% in the same
period). This may reflect different types of homes being sold, linked to changes in housing preferences as
noted by the Resolution Centre.

Local data: The Housing Bulletin includes district level figures showing that the average price based on
both sales and valuations rose by 9.8% to £334,390 in Huntingdonshire between March 2020 and March
2021 and that the average price based only on actual sales rose by 8.5% to £321,680 locally over the same
period.

UK House Price Index data for March 2021 (based on three-month averages) also shows a lower rate of
increase in Huntingdonshire (a 12 month change of +5.9%) compared to the national average (9.8%). The
other local authority areas in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough also saw lower rates of increase than
average, with Fenland, Huntingdonshire, Peterborough and Cambridge all among the bottom 25%
nationally.

Local Authority Average Price at March 2021 12 Month Change to March 2021
Cambridge £458,971 +3.3%

East Cambridgeshire £304,985 +7%

Fenland £198,850 +6.1%
Huntingdonshire £273,948 +5.9%
Peterborough £204,717 +5.9%

South Cambridgeshire £405,507 +8.6%

Huntingdonshire’s rate of increase is below the national average for all house types, suggesting that the
below average change in house price is not solely due to a difference in demand for different types of
housing (e.g. flats) locally. The table below shows the rate of increase in price for each type of housing in
the 12 months to March 2021.

Area Detached Semi-detached Terraced Flat
England 11% 10.5% 11% 5.1%
Huntingdonshire 6.7% 5.7% 6.3% 2.4%

In addition to average prices, data showing the lower quartile house price (the price of the house sale that
falls three-quarters of the way down the list, such that 75% of transactions lie above and 25% lie below
that value) is also available. The latest data shows figures up to December 2020 (March 2021 data is due to

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 77 of 154

Page 123 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/uk-house-price-index-reports
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/hmb-49-june-2021.pdf
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/hmb-49-june-2021.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/uk-house-price-index-reports
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/lowerquartilehousepricefornationalandsubnationalgeographiesquarterlyrollingyearhpssadataset15

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

be published in September 2021). The December 2020 lower quartile price for Huntingdonshire was
£215,000, which is the same as reported for December 2019. By comparison, the national lower quartile
price was 6.2% higher at December 2020 than at December 2019. Looking at the lower quartile prices for
different types of house shows a similar picture, with a higher increase nationally than locally for detached
houses (3.8% vs 0.2%), semi-detached houses (4.5% vs 0%), terraced houses (4.3% vs -2.2%) and flats
(1.5% vs -3.2%). While lower quartile house price data in the Housing Bulletin based on both sales and
valuations does show an overall increase for Huntingdonshire at March 2021 compared to March 2020,
this increase of 4.8% is again lower than the national increase reported (6.7%).

The data available at district level shows relatively low rates of increase compared to the England average.
However, it is clear that the pandemic has had a significant impact on the housing market. UK House Price
Index data on sales completed in the six months to March 2021 shows that both Huntingdonshire and
England saw significantly higher levels of cash sales and lower proportions of new homes sold when
compared to the six months to March 2020. From October 2019 to March 2020, just 24% of homes locally
and 27% in England were cash sales with the remainder purchased with a mortgage. From October 2020 to
March 2021, the proportion of cash sales was 45% of all house sales for both England and
Huntingdonshire. New homes made up 16% of sales in Huntingdonshire and 13% of sales in England from
October 2019 to March 2020. For the period from October 2020 to March 2021, only 2% of sales in
Huntingdonshire and 3% of sales in England were new homes.

Subject: Housing rental market

National data: The Index of Private Housing Rental Prices (IPHRP) from the Office for National Statistics is
an experimental price index tracking the prices paid for renting property from private landlords in the UK.
The latest data (to July 2021) shows that, when London is excluded, the national average private rent price
increased by 2.0% in the 12 months to July 2021, up from an increase of 1.8% in June 2021. However, the
average increase for the East of England was slightly lower at 1.9%.

Supply and demand pressures, such as the report from Association of Residential Letting Agents in June
2021 that members reported a decrease in rental stock while the average number of new prospective
tenants registered per branch was the highest on record, can take time to feed through to the IPHRP,
which reflects price changes for all private rental properties rather than only newly advertised rental
properties.

While the IPHRP is an experimental statistic, it is based on over 450,000 private rental prices in England
annually and indicates strongly that private housing rental prices have continued to rise over the course of
the pandemic.

s Ll

Index of Private Housing Rental Prices indices, UK, January 2015 to July 202

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 78 of 154

Page 124 of 210


https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/bulletins/indexofprivatehousingrentalprices/july2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Index values (January 2015=100)

Jul 2015 Jul 2016 Jul 2017 Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Jul 2020 Jul 202

Source: Office for National Statistics - Index of Private Housing Rental Prices

The latest (June 2021) Housing Bulletin contains Hometrack data on median private rents by size of home
(number of bedrooms) for the period up to March 2021, with local data listed for the same period. Price
data is averaged over the previous twelve months. The latest data indicates that the median private rent
at March 2021 was 15.9% higher for a one-bedroom home than at March 2020, 22.2% higher for a two
bedroom home, 21.5% higher for a three bedroom home and 10.1% higher for a four bedroom home. The
quarterly figures suggest rents have increased over the course of the pandemic, at higher rates of increase
than over the prior 12 months.

Local data: IPHRP data is only available down to regional level but Hometrack data from the Housing
Bulletin can be used to see how private rents in Huntingdonshire have changed over time. The table below
compares the local and national changes by number of bedrooms:

Area 1 bed change 2 bed change 3 bed change 4 bed change
Huntingdonshire +1.4% +2.9% +2.9% +8.7%
England +15.9% +22.2% +21.5% +10.1%

As the data for England and Huntingdonshire should be directly comparable, this indicates that rises in
private rents in Huntingdonshire have been significantly lower than the national average for 1-, 2- and 3-
bedroom homes and lower than the national average for 4-bedroom homes.

Subject: Housing affordability (house purchases)

National data: In order to assess the affordability of housing, we not only need data on housing costs but
also on household income. The latest Office for National Statistics estimates of average household income
in the UK relate to the financial year 2019/20, the period leading up to the Covid-19 pandemic, with no
current release date set for 2020/21 data.

An alternative source of data on household income is CACI’s Paycheck product, which uses data from their
lifestyle database in conjunction with data from the Office for National Statistics’ Average Weekly Earnings
and Living Costs & Food Survey to build a model reflecting income from all sources, including earnings,
benefits and investments. CACI’'s Wealth of the Nation 2021 report provides estimates for the UK as a
whole and by region, as well as lists of the top and bottom local authority and postcode areas by mean
annual gross household income.

They report that the current average gross household income in the UK is £40,300, which is lower than the
2020 Paycheck release figure of £41,100. Prior to the pandemic average gross household income was

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 79 of 154

Page 125 of 210


https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/hmb-49-june-2021.pdf
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/hmb-49-june-2021.pdf
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/hmb-49-june-2021.pdf
https://pages.caci.co.uk/rs/752-EBZ-498/images/Wealth_Of_The_Nation_2021_CACI.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

increasing each year, suggesting that the pandemic has affected the recent trend. CACI advise that “the
data reflects that as lockdown restrictions were easing, many people were still on furlough, and/or had
reduced salaries”.

Both mean and median household income estimates are lower than in 2020 in all regions except London,
with a small increase of £300 in mean income. The South East remains the region with the highest mean
gross household income at £46,900 and Northern Ireland the lowest at £33,100. The East of England’s
2021 estimate was £44,400, which is £1,000 lower than the 2020 estimate.

With a 10% increase in the average UK house price in the 12 months to March 2021 and reduced average
gross household income in 2021 compared to 2020, we would expect to see the housing affordability ratio
fall. The UK average house price at March 2020 and 2021 from the UK House Price Index and the average
gross household income figures from CACI’s Paycheck allow us to calculate the following ratios:

Period Average UK house price | Average CACI Paycheck Housing affordability
in March gross household income | ratio

2020 £232,684 £41,100 5.7

2021 £255,913 £40,300 6.4

It should be noted that this data is included as an indication of the likely change only and not official
statistics.

Local data: While Huntingdonshire District Council does not have a subscription to access CACl’s Paycheck
data, the latest (June 2021) Housing Bulletin contains published affordability ratios at district level and
below which are calculated using CACI’s household income data. The ratios published show how many
“times” income the house prices in an area represent.

In addition to a median average ratio, the Bulletin also includes a lower quartile ratio of lower quartile
house price to lower quartile income. The report states that lower quartile ratios have worsened
everywhere except Peterborough and South Cambridgeshire and that median ratios have worsened
everywhere except Peterborough. However, the data in tables 10 and 11 (shown below) that these
conclusions are based on shows ratios fluctuating over time since March 2019 and for most districts the
latest ratios at March 2021 are not the highest recorded in the period.

Table 11 Median house price to income ratio (rounded)

= = O O = £ 1y o) =

g 5 8 § §&§ T § g8 3

s v ¢ s 8 % % gy ¢
Cambridge 105 105 105 105 9.9 9.9 9.9 100 103
East Cambs 7.4 7.6 7.6 7.7 7.4 75 7.6 76 77
Fenland 6.7 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.3 6.3 6.5 65 67
HDC 6.9 6.9 71 71 6.7 6.7 6.8 69 71
South Cambs 8.2 83 8.3 83 7.8 8.0 8.1 83 86

Former Forest 6.9 70 7.2 7.3 71 73 7.3 74 76

Heath
Former St
Edmundsbury 76 72 75 76 72 70 71 72 15
Peterborough 67 64 65 65 65 63| 65 65 65

East of England 8.2 8.1 8.1 8.1 7.9 7.9 80 80 &3

East Midlands 6.3 6.1 6.2 6.2 6.1 6.1 6.2 64 64

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 80 of 154

Page 126 of 210


https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/hmb-49-june-2021.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Cambridge 142 141 144 144 133 131 131 133 135
East Cambs 98 99 102 103 99 8% 99 100 103
Fenland 9.2 90 91 9.1 88 88 88 89 9di
HOC 93 95 95 98 92 80 91 9.2 94

South Cambs 108 114 113 113 106 106 108 11.0 110

FomerForest | 7 99 101 101 97 100 100 103 104

Heath

Fomner St 104 | 100 101 103, 97 94 95 97 102
Edmundsbury

Peterborough 93 89 91 91 88 88 88 88 88

Eastof England = 106 105 105 105 102 102 103 104 106

East Midlands 85 82 82 82 78 841 82 83 86

For Huntingdonshire (listed as ‘HDC’ in these tables), the median ratio of 7.1 at March 2021 is higher than
reported at any point in 2020 but is the same as has been reported for October 2019 and December 2019.
Similarly, the lower quartile ratio of 9.4 at March 2021 is higher than during 2020 but is lower than had
been reported from June 2019 to December 2019. Ratios are also below the regional ratios.

While this suggests that the affordability ratio has not increased in line with the likely national trend, the
data used is not official statistics and may not be directly comparable with UK figures. The data will also
not account for further increases in house prices beyond the period to March 2021.

Subject: Housing supply

National data: Indicators of new housing supply include data from building control inspectors, Energy
Performance Certificates lodged and Council Tax data from the Valuation Office Agency. Building control
data nationally indicates that there were significant reductions in both dwelling starts and completions in
Q2 2020 (April to June), when many industries including construction were impacted by the initial
lockdown restrictions. As restrictions eased and on-site social distancing measures were put in place,
dwelling construction appears to have recovered in Q3 2020 (July to Sept) and increased over Q4 2020-Q1
2021 (from October 2020 to March 2021). Despite the recovery, the overall number of dwelling
completions in England in 2020/21 was 11% lower than in 2019/20.

Dwellings Started, England

60,000
m2017/18 m2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

0

Q2 (Apr-Jun) Q3 (Jul-Sep) Q4 (Oct-Dec) Q1 (Jan-Mar)
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 81 of 154

Page 127 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/house-building-statistics#2021
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZjg4NWI1MjMtZTRkNC00MGM4LWFkZTItMjdlODc4YWEwOTdhIiwidCI6ImJmMzQ2ODEwLTljN2QtNDNkZS1hODcyLTI0YTJlZjM5OTVhOCJ9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZjg4NWI1MjMtZTRkNC00MGM4LWFkZTItMjdlODc4YWEwOTdhIiwidCI6ImJmMzQ2ODEwLTljN2QtNDNkZS1hODcyLTI0YTJlZjM5OTVhOCJ9

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Dwellings Completed, England
m2017/18 m2018/19 m2019/20 2020/21

2 (Apr-Jun) Q3 (Jul-Sep) 4 (Oct-Dec) Q1 (Jan-Mar)

60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000

10,000

o

Figures for Energy Performance Certificates (EPC) lodged for new dwellings are not directly comparable
with building control data, as the EPC data includes new builds, conversions and change of use, however
they shows a similar pattern of a significant reduction followed by recovery.

Domestic EPCs for New Dwellings, England
80,000

m2017/18 m2018/19 m2019/20 2020/21 m2021/22
60,000
40,000
20,000
0
Q2 (Apr-Jun) Q3 (Jul-Sep) Q4 (Oct-Dec) Q1 (Jan-Mar)

One further measure of changes in housing supply is the number of homes with a Council Tax valuation,
which we can use to calculate the net change in homes which have been given a Council Tax banding. As
with the EPC data, this data is not directly comparable with building control figures as it includes
conversions and change of use. Data showing how the stock of Council Tax banded properties has changed
nationally since March 2020 is not due to be published until 23 September 2021.

While national data on housing supply suggests immediate recovery following the impacts of restrictions at
the start of the first lockdown, the Office for National Statistics advises that anecdotal evidence from
businesses suggests that price increases and product shortages caused by supply chain issues have led to a
recent decline in construction output (for further details, see the Construction section under Good Work).
However, demand is still strong as shown by recent new orders, with quarterly total housing new orders
increasing by 2.9% in Quarter 2 (April to June) 2021, and, in a recent presentation on the state of the housing
market, the Head of Research at Zoopla advised that housebuilders have the longest lead in forward sales
in history.

Local data: Building control data at local authority level (link to spreadsheet, note: this data includes
numbers reported by all approved inspectors not just local authority building control inspectors) shows
starts and completions by quarter, although district level data quarterly data for house building is volatile
and not generally suitable for making quarter on quarter comparisons. District level data should be
considered either as part of larger geographic aggregations or over a longer time period. As such, the
patterns shown in the graphs below provide a better indication of how house supply was affected by the
pandemic than comparing percentage changes against the national figures. However, we can report that
the total number of dwelling completions in Huntingdonshire in 2020/21 was 23% lower than in 2019/20.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 82 of 154

Page 128 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/energy-performance-of-buildings-certificates
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/valuation-office-agency-council-tax-statistics
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/997715/LiveTable253a.xlsx

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Dwellings Started, Huntingdonshire

400
m2017/18 m2018/19 m2019/20 m2020/21
300
200
100
0
Q2 (Apr-Jun) Q3 (Jul-Sep) Q4 (Oct-Dec) Q1 (Jan-Mar)
400 Dwellings Completed, Huntingdonshire
m2017/18 m2018/19 m2019/20 m2020/21
300
200
100
0

Q2 (Apr-Jun) Q3 (Jul-Sep) Q4 (Oct-Dec) Q1 (Jan-Mar)

These graphs clearly indicate a significant reduction in both starts and completions in April to June 2020
was followed by recovery from Q3 onwards to similar levels as recorded in previous years, following the
same pattern as seen nationally. This pattern is also mirrored by EPC data for the district as shown in the
following graph.

Domestic EPCs for New Dwellings, Huntingdonshire
W2017/18 m®2018/19 m2019/20 ™ 2020/21 m2021/22

300
200
100

0

Q2 (Apr-Jun) Q3 (Jul-Sep) Q4 (Oct-Dec) Q1 (Jan-Mar)

400

While national data on Council Tax stock is not yet available for the period, Huntingdonshire District
Council has data showing how the net number of dwellings with a Council Tax valuation has changed
locally. This shows low variation in the rate of increase over the period from March 2019 to August 2021,
with no obvious reduction linked to the fall in starts, completions and EPCs lodged in April-June 2020. The
dotted line represents the overall trendline over the period shown.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 83 of 154

Page 129 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

80,000

79,500

79,000

78,500

78,000

77,500

77,000

Mar-19

Apr-19
May-19

Jun-19

Council Tax Stock Over Time, Huntingdonshire

Jul-19

Aug-19
Sep-19
Oct-19
Nov-19
Dec-19
Jan-20
Feb-20
Mar-20
Apr-20
May-20
Jun-20
Jul-20
Aug-20
Sep-20
Oct-20
Nov-20
Dec-20
Jan-21
Feb-21
Mar-21
Apr-21
May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21
Aug-21

Final data on the number of additional homes built in 2020/21 is due to be reported in November 2021,
with the 2021 Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) for Huntingdonshire to be published in December 2021.
The AMR (due the end of October) will also review the deliverability of Local Plan targets for the district,
although given the recovery suggested by the building control, EPC and Council Tax data, our ability to
meet our housing delivery target seems unlikely to have been significantly affected by what appear to
have been only temporary impacts of the pandemic on the construction industry locally.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 84 of 154
Page 130 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-net-supply-of-housing

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Environment

NATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
7 ) | @©
s J

There was a temporary 2 = LOW/MEDIUM 1=LOW

Climate change | reduction of global (Only national data (Negligible impact as trend
emissions of CO2 since the | available) was only short term now
beginning of the traffic levels have return to
pandemic/ lockdown pre-pandemic levels)
restrictions
Air quality improved 5 =HIGH 1=LOW

Air quality temporarily since the (Data available down to (Negligible impact as trend
beginning of the sub-district level if was only short term now
pandemic/ lockdown required) traffic levels have return to
restrictions pre-pandemic levels)

Subject: Climate change

National data: Initial estimated data that has been published by the Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy shows that the restrictions brought in as a result of Covid-19 significantly reduced
greenhouse gas and carbon dioxide emissions in the UK compared to previous years. This is still the case
when considering changes in external temperature. They estimate that Carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions in
the UK fell by 10.7% in 2020 compared to 2019 and total greenhouse gas emissions fell by 8.9%. Total
greenhouse gas emissions were 48.8% lower than recorded in 1990. This decrease is reportedly driven by
the reduction in road transport during the national lockdowns and reductions in business activity. CO2
emissions from transport fell nearly 20% in 2020, accounting for over half of the overall fall from 2019, and
in the business sector they fell by 8.7%. On the other hand, CO2 emissions from the residential sector
increased by 1.8% as more people stayed at home. The graph below shows the trend of decline in
emissions since the 1990’s as a result of less use of fuels such as coal. Final estimates of this data set are
not due to be released until February 2022 and there has been no reliable data published yet that
accounts for post national lockdown levels in 2021.

UK Greenhouse Gas Emissions (MtCO2e)

900
800 __\’\

700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

S0 00038853838 20323 LSS5 2 e

2222222 ZIRAIRRAIRRIARRIRRKRIRRKR]IREKRg

&

Figure 15: UK Greenhouse Gas Emissions Over Time
Source: Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 85 of 154

Page 131 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/provisional-uk-greenhouse-gas-emissions-national-statistics-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/provisional-uk-greenhouse-gas-emissions-national-statistics-2020

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: There is no data available at Local Authority level, however in October 2019 Cambridgeshire
County Council published a document about what actions they must take to reach net zero carbon
emissions by 2050. Greenhouse gas emissions in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough were 6.1 megatonnes
(Mt) CO2e in 2016, making up 1.6% of the UK’s total emissions. Emissions of CO2 in Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough fell 26% from 2005 to 2017, while nationwide emissions dropped 33%. The graph below
from the report shows historic emissions by district for the county as at 2017.

8000
7000

6000
m Peterbrough

m South Cambridgeshire

Huntingdonshire

kt CO,

= Fenland
m East Cambridgeshire

m Cambridge

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Figure 16: Historic CO2 Emissions (District Level) 2005-2017
Source: Cambridgeshire County Council, Net Zero Cambridgeshire, October 2019, Page 17

It should be noted that this does not cover the period which includes and demonstrates the impact of
Covid-19 and so is being provided to offer some context of the topic prior to relevant data being made
publicly available. The report states that emissions in all districts decreased during the 12-year period,
while the population of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough has increased. A number of factors have
contributed to these emissions reductions, including energy efficiency measures in building and homes,
more efficient production and transport, and the falling carbon intensity of the national grid.
Huntingdonshire data was analysed (although it is not present in the report) which showed over half of the
total emissions within Cambridgeshire and Peterborough come from Huntingdonshire and South
Cambridgeshire, which was concluded to be due to the major A roads present in both areas. Also,
Huntingdonshire (and South Cambridgeshire) had transport emissions per capita that were well above
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and the national average at that time.

The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA) commissioned a report on climate in
the area, which was published in March 2021. The report concluded that greenhouse gas emissions in the
Combined Authority region are high and emissions were found to be around 25% higher per person than
the UK average. The report suggests that many of the risks that the nation faces from the impact of
climate change are particularly acute in this region: flooding, high summer temperatures, water shortages,
and damage to the natural carbon stores in the deep peat of the Fens.

Data on CO2 emissions at local authority for 2020 is unlikely to be available until August 2022 (latest data
published in August 2021 covers the period to 2019 only).

Subject: Air quality

National data: The UK Research and Innovation Organisation, a non-departmental public body sponsored
by the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy reported in April 2021 that air quality

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 86 of 154

Page 132 of 210



https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=n50fNihP782F1JKAFVjeBMwN1gceCgmEfBXigJlSowUZI20hL9YDZA%3D%3D&rUzwRPf%2BZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3D%3D=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2FLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3D%3D&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&kCx1AnS9%2FpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2BAJvYtyA%3D%3D=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&FgPlIEJYlotS%2BYGoBi5olA%3D%3D=NHdURQburHA%3D&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3D
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/CCC_live/Document.ashx?czJKcaeAi5tUFL1DTL2UE4zNRBcoShgo=n50fNihP782F1JKAFVjeBMwN1gceCgmEfBXigJlSowUZI20hL9YDZA%3D%3D&rUzwRPf%2BZ3zd4E7Ikn8Lyw%3D%3D=pwRE6AGJFLDNlh225F5QMaQWCtPHwdhUfCZ%2FLUQzgA2uL5jNRG4jdQ%3D%3D&mCTIbCubSFfXsDGW9IXnlg%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&kCx1AnS9%2FpWZQ40DXFvdEw%3D%3D=hFflUdN3100%3D&uJovDxwdjMPoYv%2BAJvYtyA%3D%3D=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&FgPlIEJYlotS%2BYGoBi5olA%3D%3D=NHdURQburHA%3D&d9Qjj0ag1Pd993jsyOJqFvmyB7X0CSQK=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNR9xqBux0r1Q8Za60lavYmz=ctNJFf55vVA%3D&WGewmoAfeNQ16B2MHuCpMRKZMwaG1PaO=ctNJFf55vVA%3D
https://f.hubspotusercontent40.net/hubfs/6985942/CLIMATE%20COMMISSION%20REPORT_Final.pdf
https://data.gov.uk/dataset/723c243d-2f1a-4d27-8b61-cdb93e5b10ff/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019
https://www.ukri.org/our-work/tackling-the-impact-of-covid-19/researching-the-impact-of-coronavirus/impact-on-the-environment/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

improved in national cities during the start of the national lockdown in the UK. The article states that
nitrogen dioxide levels and small particle pollution (which can cause or irritate respiratory issues such as
asthma, amongst other illnesses) were significantly lower than usual. The data that evidences this theory
was produced by Scientists from the National Centre for Atmospheric Science who compared this year’s
air pollution levels to previous averages for the past five years.

The Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs published data on air quality statistics in the UK
from 1987 to 2020 in April 2021 and produced a section for each pollutant on the impact from the national
lockdowns as a result of Covid-19. They found that in 2020, nitrogen levels at the roadside were
consistently lower than the average of the previous 3 years. Between April and June (inclusive) they were
42% lower which was attributed to the reduction in vehicle traffic as a result of restrictions. From July
onwards, concentrations rose (as expected) until the end of the year. Concentrations of particulate matter
were 31% below the 2017-19 average before the national lockdown. Levels then fell an average of 17%
lower through to May 2020, this drop coincided with the first UK lockdown where some pollution activity
would have been reduced as a result of restrictions. The remainder of the year saw levels revert to similar
trends recorded in 2017-19.

Local data: In April 2020, the level of Nitrogen Dioxide were, on average, 33% lower compared with the
previous 3 years, across all 5 air quality monitoring stations in Cambridge City according to The Greater
Cambridge Partnership: Covid-19 Initial Impacts report. Levels then presented as unusually low during the
summer but increased as traffic returned. An update published by Cambridge City Council in the Air
Quality in Cambridge report in November 2020 states that all air quality measurement sites continued to
record a fall in air pollution compared with the average of the data for the previous 3 years.

The 2021 Air Quality Annual Status Report for the year 2020 produced by HDC states that restrictions
associated with Covid seem to have had a significant impact on the NO2 results in Huntingdonshire over
2020. In line with national trends this appears to be more pronounced in urban areas. In
Huntingdonshire’s case the relocation of the Al4 is also likely to have had an impact. Within the
Huntingdon Air Quality Management Area there has been around a 35% - 45% reduction in the annual
mean NO2 concentrations at roadside diffusion tube monitoring sites, with the average reduction
throughout the district being around 35%.

The graphs below show the trends in Huntingdonshire of the annual mean particle matter concentrations
(PM10 and PM2.5) in 2020 compared to previous years.

P, W, W W, W W W W,
40 g 30 g 40 g 40 g 40 g 40 g 40 g 30 g 40

13.9

-~

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

ug/m3

wg/m3

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Year
Year

Figure 17: Trends in Annual Mean PM10 and PM2.5 Concentrations in Huntingdonshire
Source: 2021 Air Quality Annual Status Report (ASR) for the year 2020, pages 47 & 49

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 87 of 154

Page 133 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/air-quality-statistics/summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/air-quality-statistics/ntrogen-dioxide
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/air-quality-statistics/concentrations-of-particulate-matter-pm10-and-pm25
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid19InitialBriefing.pdf
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Covid19InitialBriefing.pdf
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/media/8400/coronavirus-air-quality-trends.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/5504/2021-air-quality-annual-status-report-asr-for-the-year-2020.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/5504/2021-air-quality-annual-status-report-asr-for-the-year-2020.pdf

Topic: Public Open Spaces

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
N\ @

Visits to public parks and

pandemic/ lockdown

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

Use of public open spaces have (District level data (Major POSITIVE impact to
parks and increased since the available) support increased physical
spaces beginning of the activity and improved

mental health)

restrictions

Subject: Use of public parks and spaces

National data: Google have been producing mobility reports showing how frequently several types of place
have been visited during the lockdown and comparing this to baseline, which is the median value, for the
corresponding day of the week during the five-week period 03/01/20 to 06/02/20. The graph below shows a
snapshot of these changes for visits to parks to 1°t September 2021 in the United Kingdom. Whilst a big
increase in visits to parks is shown at a national level (+69%), it is expected to see a greater number of visits
to parks in warmer months than in January and February.

% Change of Visits To Parks in The UK

% Change From Baseline

-50

“Jan 2021 Feb 2021 Mar 2021 Apr 2021 May 2021 Jun 2021 Jul 2021 Sep 2021

Year
Figure 19: Percentage Change of Visits To Parks in The UK.
Source: ©Google LLC COVID-19 Community Mobility Reports

Aug 2021

Local data: The Google mobility report also provides data at Local Authority Level, using the same baseline
period as at national level. The graph below shows the percentage change in how visits and length of stay
changed (compared to baseline) in Parks to 22/08/2021 in Huntingdonshire and those seen within our
geographical neighbours?.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 88 of 154

Page 134 of 210


https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/
https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

% Change to Visits and Length of Stay in Parks

80%
70%
60% 69% 68%
50%
40% 49%
30%
20%
10%
0%
Fenland Huntingdonshire Cambridge South
Cambridgeshire

+ % Change Compared To Baseline

3Data relating to Peterborough and East Cambridgeshire have been excluded as they do not meet the
quality and privacy thresholds set by Google for every day featured in the chart.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 89 of 154

Page 135 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: High Streets

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Local shopping

There has been an increase
in demand for shopping
locally since the beginning

5 = HIGH
(Data available down to
sub-district level if

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact as the
district doesn’t have large

of the pandemic/ lockdown | required) chain stores that were

restrictions susceptible to closure and
mass redundancies)

The decline in vehicle 5 = HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

beginning of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions

available)

Parking traffic since the pandemic (Data available down to (Major impact as recovery
has reduced demand for sub-district level if is slower due to changes in
car parking since the required) consumer online habits and
beginning of the pandemic/ few commuters using car
lockdown restrictions parks for work travel)
Footfall in markets have 1=L0W 3 = MEDIUM

Markets fallen significantly since the | (No robust national data (Moderate impact due to

the support provided by the
district council and
Government initiatives eg:
Welcome Back Fund)

Subject: Local shopping

National data: National reports suggest that there has been an increase in demand for shopping locally, such
as within High Streets. In March 2021 Barclaycard published some analysis of card data (they process nearly
half of the nation’s credit and debit card transactions) and found that staying local and supporting
independent and local retailers has been particularly popular over the last year, a choice made by 64% of the
British public. Restrictions in international travel also saw a record number of staycations and daycations,
which aided the High Street and Retail Park footfall according to Springboard, a national retail tracker. An
article by Sky News (based on Springboard data) reported that although overall retail footfall is still below
pre-pandemic levels (18.6% lower in August 2021 than in August 2019) this was an improvement from July
when the difference was higher at 24.2%, high street footfall was 23.5% lower when comparing the same
period.

Google mobility reports also feature retail and recreation visit frequency during the lockdown and compares
this to baseline, which is the median value, for the corresponding day of the week during the five-week
period 03/01/20 to 06/02/20. The graph below shows a snapshot of these changes for visits to retail spaces

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 90 of 154

Page 136 of 210


https://home.barclaycard/press-releases/2021/03/Lockdown-legacies/
https://www.spring-board.info/news-coverage-a-round-up-of-industry-news-featuring-springboards-data-and-insights/
https://news.sky.com/story/staycation-boost-for-high-street-as-footfall-improves-in-august-12397186

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

such as restaurants, cafés, shopping centres, theme parks, museums, libraries and cinemas for 2021 in the
United Kingdom.

% Change of Visits To Retail and Recreation Sites in The UK

% Change From Baseline
IS

Jan 2021 Feb 2021 Mar 2021 Apr 2021 May 2021 Jun 2021 Jul 2021 Aug 2021 Sep 2021
Year

Figure 20: Percentage Change of Visits to Retail and Recreation Sites UK
Source: ©Google LLC COVID-19 Community Mobility Reports

Local data: Footfall data relating to High Streets in Huntingdon, St Neots and St Ives have been collected on a
weekly basis by Huntingdonshire District Council. The graphs below show footfall in these locations by week
number per year since April 2019 for Huntingdon and since April 2020 for St Neots and St Ives. It is possible
to determine that footfall in Huntingdon is generally lower than pre-pandemic levels (as seen in the national
trend) however it is higher than the figures in 2020 during the national lockdown. It is not possible to
understand the trend in St Ives and St Neots yet due to limited data being available.

Huntingdon Footfall Compared To Previous Years

@H 2019/20 Footfall @H 2020721 Footfal

St Ives Footfall Compared To Previous Years St Neots Footfall Compared To Previous Years
otfall @S| 2021/22 Footfal o5 Footfall @S

Since March 2021, Huntingdonshire District Council have partnered with an online retail platform 'Click It
Local', to enable independent shops in towns across the district to offer a range of products for customers
and have them delivered on the same or next day. Data from the 957 individual store orders (at 25" August
2021) shows an average overall order rate for the period April to August 2021 of 1.10 orders per store. This
average ranges from a low of 1.03 (in April and May 2021) to 1.48 (in June 2021), the current average (at 16"

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 91 of 154

Page 137 of 210



https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/news/click-it-local/
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/news/click-it-local/
https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

August 2021) was 1.20. The graph below shows the number of overall orders placed within the scheme in
the period April to August 2021. As the scheme was not in place during the pandemic, there is no data
available to establish if orders have increased since 2020. There is further information on the retail sector
within the Good Work section.

Click it Local Number of Orders

29
25 26 26 25
21 22
0

— — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
~ I o~ ~ I N I o~ ~ I o~ ~ I N I I o~ I N ~
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o
I I I I I N I I I I I N I N I I I I I I
< < < < ") ) " ) L O %) O O ~ N ~ ~ ) 0 )
o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o =} = o
o ~ I ) ) o N < — ~ < — %) LN ~ ) ) ~ o) ©
o — — ~ o — — N ™ =) — ~ ~ o — — ~ o o —

Figure 21: Number of Overall Orders Placed Via Click It Local Scheme (Huntingdonshire)
April 2021 to August 2021

The Google mobility report also provides data at Local Authority Level, using the same baseline period as at
national level. The graph below shows the percentage change in how visits and length of stay changed
(compared to baseline) in retail and recreation sites in 2021 overall in Cambridgeshire County and the
Huntingdonshire District.

% Change of Visits To Retail and Recreation Sites in Cambri hire & Huntingdonshire

Location @ Cambridgeshire @ Huntingdonshire District

0%

-10%

-20%

-30%

-40%

-50%

% Change From Baseline

-70%

-80%

Jan 2021 Feb 2021 Mar 2021 Apr 2021 May 2021 Jun 2021 Jul 2021 Aug 2021 Sep 2021

Year
Figure 22: Percentage Change of Visits to Retail and Recreation Sites (Huntingdonshire and Cambridgeshire)
Source: ©Google LLC COVID-19 Community Mobility Reports

HDC carried out three consultations with residents in June, September and December 2020 as part of the
Think Local campaign. Within the survey we asked some questions about online shopping and how
comfortable people felt about visiting the High Street.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 92 of 154

Page 138 of 210



https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

How would you describe your household’s online shopping habits since lockdown?
80%

74.1%
70%
60%
50.3%
50%
45.0%
o
o
]
T 40%
2
@
o
s 312%
30%
19.4%
0,
20% 17.0%
13.2%
10%
54% 53% 54%
36%
0% l
June September  December June September December June September December June September  December
I do not shap online | spent more | spent the same | spent less

Figure 23: Graph showing survey responses about describing a households online shopping habits
since national lockdowns
Source: Think Local Campaign, HDC

December saw the highest proportion of respondents state they spent more online (74% compared to 45%
by the June cohort) although the reasons why were not collected, it is likely that holiday spending influenced
this result. The proportion of respondents who stated they do not shop online stayed the same across all
three surveys at around 5%.

How comfortable do you feel about making a visit to your local town?

50%
44 1%
40%
36.6%

30%
0]
=) ,
= 256% 25 4% 25 4%
@
e
& 20.7%

o
20% 17.2% 17.7% 17.9%
15.2% 152%
12.5%
10% 8.2%
7 2%
4.6%
I 2.1% 21%
' 0.9%
0% I | I
June September December June September December June September December June September December June September D ber June Sep December
| feel very comfortable | feel moderately | feel moderately I feel very 1 will not be | don't know
comfertable uncomfortable uncomfortable visiting yet how | feel
Figure 24: Graph showing survey responses about how comfortable people feel making visits to local towns
Source: Think Local Campaign, HDC
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 93 of 154

Page 139 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

In June 2020, 43% of respondents stated they felt at least moderately comfortable about making a visit to
their local town, by September this increased to nearly 70% of respondents. However, responses to the
survey in December showed a lower proportion of respondents felt this way (49%).

Subject: Parking

National data: According to IBISworld (Industry & Market Research Analysts) the impact of reduced vehicle
traffic in the UK is expected to have a negative effect on the car parking industry. The increase of home
working and the boom in online retail shopping since the pandemic are likely to be contributing factors to
this. In a provisional statistical release on 3™ December 2020, the Department for Transport compared data
from the year ending September 2019 to the same period in 2020. They found that when comparing the
period, the impact of the coronavirus pandemic affected car traffic more than any other vehicle, a reduction
of 20.9% to 219.9 billion vehicle miles.

Google mobility reports also feature mobility trends for places of work visit frequency during the lockdown
and compares this to baseline, which is the median value, for the corresponding day of the week during the
five-week period 03/01/20 to 06/02/20. The graph below shows a snapshot of these changes for visits to
workplaces for 2021 in the United Kingdom.

% Change of Visits To Workplaces in The UK

% Change From Baseline

-90%
Jan 2021 Feb 2021 Mar 2021 Apr 2021 May 2021 Jun 2021 Jul 2021 Aug 2021 Sep 2021
Year

Figure 25: Percentage Change of Visits to Workplaces UK.
Source: ©Google LLC COVID-19 Community Mobility Reports

Local data: Parking charges in Huntingdonshire District Council owned car parks were suspended on 28"
March 2020 until Monday 215t September 2020. Therefore, there is no data available during this period as
tickets were not sold. Once car parks re-opened charges remained the same as they were pre-Covid and all
sites also have the option for customers to pay via their mobile phone for contactless payment.

When comparing Huntingdon, St Ives and St Neots pay and display car park ticket sales income in
Huntingdonshire District Council owned car parks, levels were lower in 2020/2021 than in 2019/20. The
graph also shows that the income from tickets purchased in 2021 is similar to the income in 2019/20, before

the Covid-19 pandemic.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 94 of 154

Page 140 of 210



https://www.ibisworld.com/united-kingdom/market-research-reports/car-parks-industry/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/940317/provisional-road-traffic-estimates-gb-oct-2019-to-sep-2020.pdf
https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

All Towns
@ Total 2019/20 P&D Income @ Total 2020721 P&D Income @ Total 2021/22 P&D Income
60K
40K
20K
0K

Figure 26: Pay and Display Ticket Sales Income, October 2021 (All HDC Car Parks)

The Google mobility report also provides data at Local Authority Level, using the same baseline period as at
national level. The graph below shows the percentage change in how visits and length of stay changed
(compared to baseline) in workplace visits in 2021 overall in Cambridgeshire County and the
Huntingdonshire District.

% Change of Visits To Workplaces in Cambridgeshire & Huntingdonshire

Location ® Cambridgeshire ® Huntingdonshire District
20%

N
]
R

% Change From Baseline
&
R

y
.If"ﬁp"d Al

-60%

-80%

Jan 2021 Feb 2021 Mar 2021 Apr 2021 May 2021 Jun 2021 Jul 2021 Aug 2021 Sep 2021
Year

Figure 27: Percentage Change of Visits to Workplaces (Huntingdonshire and Cambridgeshire)
Source: ©Google LLC COVID-19 Community Mobility Reports

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 95 of 154

Page 141 of 210



https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Markets

National data: There is very little data about street markets at a national level and the data that is noted
below in some cases are from very small samples, however they have been included to provide a reference
point for this topic. Research from the Institute of Place Management at Manchester Metropolitan
University (published by the High Street Task Force) suggests that markets can behave as anchors for
centres and increase the attractiveness of the place, which in turn can generate more footfall. This was
evidenced by data that showed high streets with an operating market significantly increased footfall on each
of the homogenous shopping days (Monday-Thursday) by between 15% to 27%, compared to footfall in
locations without markets based on research undertaken in 2015 by the Institute Of Place Management in
collaboration with others.

The Mission for Markets survey collected by NABMA (an organisation that looks after the interests of
market operators) and the NMTF (national trade association for market and street traders) from May to July
2018 advises that there were 1,173 markets in Britain and over 30,000 businesses traded on them. In 2017-
18, traders on markets and events collectively turned over £3.1 billion - an increase of £200 million year on
year since 2012. The survey was completed by just under 700 respondents made up of 235 market
operators, 207 market traders, 225 events traders, and 29 street traders. They found that 41% of market
operators reported a decrease in footfall, traders, and stall income. The average occupancy rate on
traditional retail markets was 77% and 93% of market days stayed the same or increased in frequency.

NABMA issued results from a further survey from its members on 8" May 2020, which was completed by 92
market operators, representing over 300 markets in the UK to evidence the hardship experienced in this
sector during the pandemic. At this point in time, their respondents said only around a third of markets
stayed open and 70% of traders reported a loss of income. This data was collected when the UK was still in a
period of national lockdown which may have affected footfall and the numbers of markets in operation.

Local data: As part of the Think Local campaign in September and December 2020 we asked respondents to
tell us the main reasons why they visit our towns. In both months, 17% of respondents stated this was
because it was market day. The most popular choice in both months was to shop for food.

What are the main reasons that you choose to visit our towns? Please tick all that apply

80%
76.0%

70%

60%  P90% 5B.0% gy b

50%
o
g
§ 40% 38.0%
E 35.0%
o

30%

26.0%
23.0%
21.0% 21.0%
0,
20% 17.0% 17.0%
10%
6.0%
40%
0%
September ~December September December September December September December September December September December September December
Food Shopping Other Shopping Local Goods Eating Out Meeting Friends / Leisure Event / Exhibition Market Day

Figure 28: Survey Responses About The Main Reasons To Visit Towns
Source: Think Local Campaign, HDC

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 96 of 154

Page 142 of 210



https://www.highstreetstaskforce.org.uk/resources/details/?id=b431c550-ed70-40b4-ba76-127f305066d5
https://v1.placemanagement.org/media/19883/markets-matter-final.pdf
https://www.mission4markets.uk/about/industry.html
https://nabma.com/
https://www.nmtf.co.uk/about-us/
https://www.nmtf.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Summary_Headlines_NMTF-COVID19_Impacts-UK_Markets_StreetTrading_Events-CS_May_2020.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

There is a lack of published data at local levels about markets, those managed by Huntingdonshire District
Council (held twice weekly in St Ives and Huntingdon) were impacted by the pandemic due to restrictions on
the types of goods allowed to be sold and moving locations to allow for social distancing to be maintained.

One of the weekly markets in Huntingdon was suspended for 18 months, reopening in September 2021 and
pitch fees have been postponed until October 2021.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 97 of 154

Page 143 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Crime and Justice

NATIONAL TREND CONFIDENCE RATING IMPACT RATING
7 ®
O
There has been a 5 = HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Crime and anti- | reduction in crime (Data available down to (Major impact as although
social behaviour | reported since the street level if required) the number of reported
offences/reports | beginning of the crimes has decreased the
pandemic/ lockdown type of crime has been more
restrictions impactful to people and for
longer term eg: reduction in
theft but increase in violence
— likely in the home)

Subject: Crime and anti-social behaviour offences/reports

National data: The Office for National Statistics reports that patterns of crime in the year ending March
2021 were significantly affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and government instructions to
limit social contact. Total police recorded crime, excluding fraud and computer misuse, during this period
decreased by 13% compared to the year ending March 2019. The largest decreases in recorded crime were
seen during the three-month period that coincided with the first national lockdown, with a 19% decrease in
April to June 2020 compared with April to June 2019.

Billy Gazard from the Office for National Statistics Centre for Crime and Justice said: “The coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic has had a significant impact on patterns of crime. There were large decreases in theft
offences, such as domestic burglary and theft from the person, as more people stayed at home and limited
their social contact.

At the same time, there were substantial increases in fraud and computer misuse offences such as hacking,
as fraudsters took advantage of behavioural changes during the pandemic, such as increased online
shopping.

The number of people who became victims of violent crime also fell, driven by decreases in violence where
the offender was a stranger. This likely reflects a decrease in violence taking place in public spaces during
national lockdown restrictions.”

It should be noted that the ONS’ analysis is based on both police recorded crime data, which can be affected
by changes in levels of reporting to the police or police recording practices, and the Telephone-operated
Crime Survey for England and Wales (TCSEW), which reports survey results from a sample of over-18s
interviewed across the year. TCSEW data isn’t available at district level.

Local data: Data.police.uk data for crimes reported to the police shows there were 11,910 crimes with a
Huntingdonshire location recorded for the year to March 2021, which was 4.8% lower than the 12,517
crimes recorded in the district in the year to March 2019. Data for the period from April to June 2020 was
9.9% lower than recorded for the period from April to June 2019, suggesting that the first lockdown
contributed to a larger decrease in crime, as seen nationally. The following graph shows how crimes
recorded each month have varied across 2019, 2020 and 2021 so far.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 98 of 154

Page 144 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2021
https://data.police.uk/data/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Monthly Police recorded crimes, Huntingdonshire
1400
1200
1000
800

600 2019 2020 2021

400

200

There also appears to have been a change in patterns of crime locally, with large reductions in theft offences
(bicycle theft down 47%, burglary down 44%, shoplifting down 54%, vehicle crime down 40%, robbery down
41%, theft from the person down 55% and ‘other theft’ down 41%) but increases in some other types
(including violence and sexual offences up 34%, public order offences up 44% and drugs offences up 160%).
Some of these differences may be linked to changes in reporting practices or police campaigns targeted at
specific offence types/offenders.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 99 of 154

Page 145 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Transport and Infrastructure

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

The number of taxi drivers

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

2 = LOW/MEDIUM

beginning of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions

Taxi and private | and licensed taxis has (District level data (Minimal impact as local
hire vehicle reduced since the available) numbers increased,
usage beginning of the pandemic/ possibly due to the rural
lockdown restrictions nature of our district. Short
term impact)
There has been a significant | 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Rail usage fall in passenger numbers (District level data (Major impact due to
and usage of rail stations available) changes in work habits
since the beginning of the leading to significant
pandemic/ lockdown reduction in commuting)
restrictions
There has been a reduction | 3 = MEDIUM 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Road usage — in road usage by motor (County level data (Major POSITIVE impact
motor vehicles | vehicles since the available) due to lockdown but trend

is reversing to pre-
pandemic levels)

Road usage —
cycling (travel)

There has been a reduction
in road usage by bicycles
for travel (work/ shopping)
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact due to
changes in work habits and
reduction in rail
commuting)

Road usage —
cycling
(recreation)

There has been in increase
in cycling for recreation
(sports/ leisure) since the
beginning of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(Major POSITIVE impact to
support increased physical
activity and improved
mental health)

There has been a decrease

2 = LOW/MEDIUM

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH

lockdown restrictions

Bus usage in passenger numbers and | (Only national data (Major impact due to
usage of buses since the available) changes in work habits and
beginning of the pandemic/ safety concerns about
lockdown restrictions traveling on public
transport)
The availability and quality | 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 3 = MEDIUM
Broadband of broadband services have | (District level data (Moderate POSITIVE impact
connections improved since the available) due to the increased
(residential) beginning of the pandemic/ demand for faster speeds

during lockdown (while
increased numbers worked,
schooled and shopped from
home) resulted in greater
demand.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 146 of 210

Page 100 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

Broadband
connections
(commercial)

The availability and quality
of broadband services have
improved since the
beginning of the pandemic/

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

1=1L0W

(Negligible impact due to
the relative high proportion
of manufacturing and SME

businesses who have lesser
broadband demands)

lockdown restrictions

Subject: Taxi and private hire vehicle usage

National data: The Department for Transport’s (DfT) report on Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Statistics, England: 2021 shows that the number of licensed vehicles in England has fallen by 15.9%
since 2020, from 298,600 at 31 March 2020 down to 251,100 at 31 March 2021. The number of
licensed drivers in England has fallen by 5.7% since 2020, from 364,700 to 343,800. As shown in the
graph below, the long-term trend prior to 2020 was rising numbers of licensed drivers and vehicles.

Thousands
400

Licensed Drivers

350

343.8
300

250

2511
200

/

184.5

Licensed Vehicles
150

100

50

0

2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015

2017

2019 2021

The DfT advises that the decreases in the numbers of licensed vehicles and driver licences “has
largely been attributed to the coronavirus pandemic”, with a greater rate of decrease for licensed
vehicles at least in part “because licence lengths for vehicles are generally shorter than those for
drivers”.

National Travel Survey data is not yet available for 2020 so there is no official data yet on the
impact of the pandemic on taxi journeys. However, the reduction in licensed vehicles and drivers
and the restrictions imposed on travel and activities during the pandemic would suggest that it is
highly likely that taxi and private hire vehicle usage has fallen over this period.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 101 of 154

Page 147 of 210


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/997793/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-statistics-2021.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/997793/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-statistics-2021.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: DfT data shows that the number of licensed vehicles in the East of England has fallen by
12.4% since 2020 and the number of licensed drivers in the East of England has fallen by 5%. In
Huntingdonshire, there has been a small (1.4%) increase in the number of licensed drivers between
2020 and 2021, up from 981 at 31 March 2020 to 995 at 31 March 2021. However, the district has
seen a fall in the number of vehicles licensed, with the 655 licensed at 31 March 2021 just over
15% lower than the 772 licensed at 31 March 2020. It should be noted that license numbers at 31
March 2020 in Huntingdonshire were lower than at 31 March 2019. There had already been a fall
from 1,049 licensed drivers and 839 licensed vehicles in 2019, despite numbers continuing to rise
nationally.

Subject: Rail usage

National data: Passenger rail use data from the Office of Rail and Road (ORR) shows that annual passenger
usage in Great Britain in 2020/21 was the lowest since records began in 1872. The 388 million rail passenger
journeys in the year equates to just 22.3% of 1,739 million journeys made in 2019-20, after several years
with annual totals of around 1.7-1.8 billion.

The graph below shows that numbers of passenger journeys first fell in Q4 2019-20, with the first national
lockdown beginning before the end of March 2020, and then fell rapidly to just 35 million journeys in the
first quarter of 2020-21. Numbers did increase in Q2 and Q3 but then fell again in Q4 (coinciding with most
of the early stage of the third national lockdown), although the 80 million journeys in Q4 was more than
double the total recorded in Q1.

Passenger journeys by financial quarter

aaaﬁﬁwbd’
‘\‘\"\. By

B g g
AT A T T 5
P R A gt A \""’ *.‘“"j *.‘“K\ *.‘“b ':\'“'h ':\'“'h -:\'“ ':\“ -:ﬁ 0“ 0"'“ *.“'D *.“'D *.

I l- l-
T T T TP g ﬁ ﬁ
-\I\. -\I\. -\I\. ,:\‘\ ,;\ [k .;\ (X .;\ |5 Q. k-

-;;‘3‘ a\wﬂ cﬂ‘ﬂ m"%a a a’-‘ a -a or -a’ Cu ot o o o, C a a’-‘ Lo

The ORR’s report links the fall in passenger journeys with restrictions in travel imposed to limit the spread of
Covid-19. They state that the initial “unprecedented fall in usage” was “attributed entirely to the measures
taken to limit the impact of the pandemic”.

Local data: Passenger journey numbers are not published for individual routes such as Huntingdon or St
Neots to London Kings Cross/St Pancras. However, data is published for train operating companies including
Govia Thameslink Railway, which includes the Thameslink rail franchises (as well as Great Northern,
Southern and Gatwick Express franchises) which provide services to/from the Huntingdon and St Neots
stations. Govia Thameslink Railway provides services to a large number of stations across many routes
mostly to/from/through London, with passenger journey numbers for the train operating company falling
from 348.85 million in 2019/20 to just 76.1 million in 2020/21 (just 22% of the 2019/20 total).

An alternative source of data on rail usage locally is ORR data on station entries/exits/interchanges. The
latest data currently available is for 2019/20, which covers the period before and immediately following the
government’s announcement of measures to limit the impact and transmission of the coronavirus (COVID-
19) pandemic in mid-March 2020. The ORR advise that “Rail passenger journeys decreased following

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 102 of 154

Page 148 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/taxi01-taxis-private-hire-vehilces-and-their-drivers
https://dataportal.orr.gov.uk/statistics/usage/passenger-rail-usage/
https://dataportal.orr.gov.uk/statistics/usage/estimates-of-station-usage

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

announcements advising against all unnecessary travel” and that “Although the impact of COVID-19 on
station usage only affected the last few weeks of 2019-20 it does explain the fall in usage at most stations in
Great Britain”.

To understand the likely impact of COVID-19 at a station level an ‘alternative’ entries and exits dataset for
the period March 2019 to February 2020 has been produced on a consistent basis with the main dataset
(April 2019 to March 2020). Looking at the differences between the main dataset and the alternative
dataset provides some insight into the impact of COVID-19 at a station level. On average, usage (entries and
exits) in the 2019-20 financial year (April 2019 to March 2020) was 3.5% less than in the year March 2019 to
February 2020.

Both Huntingdon and St Neots stations saw reductions in the total number of passenger entries and exits
(note: interchanges excluded due to small numbers — 35 estimated in Huntingdon and none in St Neots in
2019/20) 2019/20 compared to both 2018/19 and the alternative estimates for March 2019 to February
2020. Both stations have estimates 4.2% lower for 2019/20 compared to the alternative estimates, higher
than the 3.5% average for all stations in Great Britain.

Subject: Road usage — motor vehicles

National data: Provisional road traffic statistics from the Department for Transport (DfT) show that there
was an estimated 27% fall in all motor vehicle traffic in the year ending March 2021 compared to the year
ending March 2020. The DfT reports that this is “the largest fall since quarterly records started in 1994”.
Breaking the road traffic data down by vehicle and road types, the data indicates that:

e Car traffic decreased by 31.0% to 189.1 billion vehicle miles.

e Van and lorry traffic decreased by 14.2% and 6.8%, respectively.

e Traffic decreased across all main road types. Motorways, 'A' roads and minor roads decreased by

32.8%, 28.3% and 22.7%, respectively

Chart 1: Rolling Annual Indices of Road Traffic in Great Britain from 1994

140 -

120 -

100 -

== Final estimates

Index of All Motor Vehicle Traffic (1994 Q4 = 100)

80 - .. .
Provisional estimates

60 -
T R R o o L T o L e e o o ot T e e o e e o e o R I B e e
< uw w = o [=}] o - [} (3] < w O M~ 0 o o - o o < w w0 M~ [--] [=2] —
o O OO O O O 0O 0 0O 0O 0 0 0O 9O FC T T T T T - ™ ¥ = o
;o d» (=] (7] (=] [«)] o o O o o O O o o o o o (=] (=] (=] o o O o o o
- = ™ = T *+ ©o N &N &N SN N &N &SN &N NN AN NN SN N NN NN (]
< & <& < & <& < <& < < & < & & & & & & & & & < & & < S -
g 00000 CO0OCcCgCcCoOoOQCO0OOCCQOCOocgCcoOocoOoo0ogcocgocgoggocooc o

o

The report confirms that the data is “affected by the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic in the UK”.

In addition to quarterly reports, the DfT also publishes daily transport use statistics on a weekly basis. This is
based on data collected from around 275 automatic traffic count sites across Great Britain, as an indication

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 103 of 154

Page 149 of 210



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/999828/provisional-road-traffic-estimates-gb-apr-2020-to-mar-2021.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

of traffic change rather than actual traffic volumes. The data provided is indexed to the first week of
February and the comparison is to the same day of the week (i.e. 100 means that traffic is the same as the
equivalent day in the first week of February). Over the course of the year, normal traffic can vary by +/—
20%. The data for car use as shown in the graph below suggests that daily car transport use has returned to
near baseline levels in recent months. While the DfT advise that lower levels of validation have been applied
compared to normal statistical outputs in order to achieve a daily estimate of traffic change, they state that
the data series is being verified against other sources and similar trends have been seen. The blue dots
shown represent a moving 7-day average, with the regular peaks and troughs shown in recent data relating
to weekends and weekdays respectively.

Daily Car Transport Use Since March 2020, compared to February 2020 baseline
120%

100% 4 i ; ey

80%

60% ? ! .

40%

20%

0%

o S S o A A N NN NN NN N N

OO S S S Sy B B S, T A, A R R G R P A A

ORI U IR CUR O U U I G CHIR IR A C A R R O
O\ AN IR A SN RN I A A SN N G SN RN SN OO S A
NS A \ SR NGRS LA LAY LA LA SO \ S ST A S S A A A A\

Local data: The latest local road traffic data published by Cambridgeshire County Council is for 2019:
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/roads-and-pathways/road-traffic-
data. The Cambridgeshire County Council/Peterborough City Council “COVID-19: Review of emerging
evidence of Needs and Impacts on Cambridgeshire & Peterborough” includes some data on vehicle
movements from smart sensors but these are only located in the cities of Cambridge and Peterborough.

Annual data on motor vehicle traffic (vehicle miles) by upper tier local authority is available from the DfT’s
National Road Traffic Survey and this is shown on the graph below. The recent trends nationally and for
Cambridgeshire are similar, with a 21% fall in England in 2020 compared to 2019 and a 20% fall in
Cambridgeshire over the same time period.

— Yearly vehicle miles travelled over time &
@ 3
9 g
= 350,000 6,000 a
E (0)¢]
£ 300,000 5000 — 3
g 054
= 250,000 4000 =3
> 200,000 S 3
g 3,000 & =
o 150,000 a
= 100,000 _ _ 2,000 =
S e England == Cambridgeshire g
T 50,000 1,000 5
) 0 0 3
c N N OO0 DO d AN MO FET N OMNNOODO A AN NN O 0 O O
L DO O O OO O OO OO OO0 000 O ™ ™ o -

A OO OO OO OO OO O OO OO0 00000000 OoOOoOOoOo

™ AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN N

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 104 of 154

Page 150 of 210


https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/roads-and-pathways/road-traffic-data
https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/residents/travel-roads-and-parking/roads-and-pathways/road-traffic-data
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/
https://cambridgeshireinsight.org.uk/coronavirus/impacts/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/road-traffic-statistics-tra#traffic-by-local-authority-tra89

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Car vehicle miles fell by 25% in Cambridgeshire (-24% nationally) and light commercial vehicle miles fell by
6% (-9% nationally), while there was a small increase in heavy goods vehicle miles in Cambridgeshire (+1%)
despite a reduction nationally (-5%). There were similar reductions in vehicle miles travelled in the county
on trunk roads (-19%) and non-trunk roads (-20%).

No data on vehicle miles travelled in Huntingdonshire is available and data on individual roads relates to
road speeds/journey times rather than to miles travelled or the number of journeys.

Subject: Road usage — cycling

National data: National Road Traffic Statistics data indicates there was a significant increase in cycling road
use in 2020, with over 5 billion miles travelled by bicycle during the year compared to 3.5 billion in 2019 (a
46% increase).

Yearly vehicle miles travelled over time - cycling

— /

Billion Vehicle Miles
O R N W B U1 O

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

In addition to annual data, the DfT’s daily transport use statistics also reports on journeys by bicycle. The
data for bicycle use as shown in the graph below suggests that daily cycle travel has returned to near
baseline levels in recent months, with journeys over the 2021 spring/summer period lower than in 2020.

Daily Cycle Transport Use, compared to first week of March 2020 baseline

400%
350%
300%
250% L
200%
150% ; ..,.o‘-...-.,
100% (%ge%e et S et N A O St TR
50% ’

0%

O T S R R R O O ST S AR, ) R QR SRS S| A
F T
NI SN SRR SR SO NS LA \ AR LA NS AR\ SR LA LA NS AR LA LA\ S 14

°
Gea ®0® ¢
L

¢ SRR

The DfT advise that this is a best-efforts estimate of national cycling utilising multiple data sources and is
considered fit for purpose for reporting large changes in trends in usage. The methodology will be updated if
or when additional information becomes available. Analysis applies to England only due to the available
geographies in the individual data sets. They note that daily data is volatile based on both the relationship
cycling has with the weather and volatility in the underlying data sources and methodology. Some of the
increases noted will reflect the seasonal pattern of cycling as comparisons are to a base week in March 2020.
Miles travelled by bicycle tend to peak in July and are at their lowest in December.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 105 of 154

Page 151 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/road-traffic-statistics-tra#pedal-cycle-traffic-tra04
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

The latest Active Lives Survey data on people cycling for travel and cycling for leisure and sport at least twice
in the last 28 days suggests that while cycling for leisure and sport increased compared to previous periods,
cycling for travel decreased. There was a 10% fall in the number of people cycling for travel in November
2019-2020 compared to November 2018-2019 but a 20% increase in the number cycling for leisure and
sport. It is likely that the decrease in cycling for travel is at least partly linked to increases in working from
home and it should be noted that cycling for leisure and sport includes exercise bikes. Both types of cycling
will also include off-road travel.

8.000,000
7,263,800
7,000,000 6,473,800 _
o N 6,352,700 ¢ 470,000 6,258,500 6,267,600
A o €,096,100 N 6,047,600 -
6,000,000 —h— o ——
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,195,200 3,180,100 3,171,200 3,115,900 3.072.900 3,139,800 3.041.500 » 883700
3,000,000 ¢ . . A ° a ° R 2,720,900
L
2,000,000
1,000,000
0
Nov 15-16  May 16-17  Nov16-17  May 17-18  Nov17-18  May 18-19  Nov18-19  May 19-20  Nov 19-20

Time period
B Cycling for leisure and sport | Cycling for travel

* Participation in the last 28 days : At least twice in the last 28 days

Local data: Official Walking and Cycling Statistics for 2020 at the local authority level were due to be
published in August 2021 but are currently still not available. The latest figures for 2019 won’t show the
impact of any recent changes linked to the pandemic. It should also be noted that their data is based on two
surveys — the National Travel Survey and Active Lives Survey.

However, Active Lives Survey data is available at the district level so results for both cycling for travel and
cycling for leisure and sport at least twice in the last 28 days are shown in the graph below. The low sample
sizes at lower geographies mean greater variance in results so changes may not be statistically significant.
While the small changes in cycling for travel are unlikely to be significant, there has been a large increase in
the number cycling for leisure and sport in the latest period for November 2019-2020. The 33,300 people
cycling for leisure and sport is 72% higher than the result for the November 2018-2019 period and 28%
higher than the next highest result, which was 26,100 in November 2017-2018.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 106 of 154

Page 152 of 210



https://activelives.sportengland.org/Result?queryId=52414
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/walking-and-cycling-statistics
https://activelives.sportengland.org/Result?queryId=52416

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

40,000
35 000 33,300
30,000 /
25,500 26,100
.- 24,400 /
25 000 ‘ A 21,50 /
20,500 /
19,200 a 19,400 i
20,000 g B ~——
15,000
- 13,600
15,000 12,600 12.000 A 12,700 12,900
, A
] 9,600 P ® hd
10,000 7,300 8.400 A
®
5,000
0
Nov 15-16 May 16-17 Nov 16-17 May 17-18 Nov 17-18 May 18-19 Nov 18-19 May 19-20 Nov 19-20

Time period
[l Cycling for leisure and sport | Cycling for travel

* Participation in the last 28 days : At least twice in the last 28 days

As with the national data, it should be noted that the Active Lives Survey only covers the first eight months
since the first national lockdown started.

Subject: Bus usage

National data: The most recent annual Bus Statistics publication covered the year ending March 2020. The
2019/20 annual data showed a fall of 5.5% in local bus passenger journeys, which “can largely be attributed
to the effects of passenger journeys from COVID-19 in the last quarter of 2019/20”. While the national
lockdown only began on 23rd March and covered a small proportion of the year, bus companies reported
they started seeing declines in journeys in the preceding weeks. Bus mileage in England decreased by 3.1%
when compared with 2018/19.

While a report for the year ending March 2021 is not due to be published until October 2021, the most
recent quarterly publication covering January to March 2021 has included some annual data for 2020/21.
This showed a decline in annual passenger journeys of 62% across England when compared to 2019/20, with
a 66% fall for non-metropolitan areas in England.

The graph below shows the number of passenger journeys on local bus services in English non-metropolitan
areas (seasonally adjusted) by quarter. This shows that while there was an increase in bus journeys in Q2
2020/21 (July to September) following the first national lockdown, the number of journeys has remained
significantly lower than before the pandemic. The number of journeys in Q4 2020/21 was 61.4% lower than
in Q4 2019/20 and 66.6% lower than in Q4 2018/19.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 107 of 154

Page 153 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/bus-statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/quarterly-bus-statistics-january-to-march-2021/quarterly-bus-statistics-january-to-march-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Passenger journeys on local bus services - English non-metropolitan areas,
seasonally adjusted
400

350

300 w//\—’M

N
(%2
o

Y
; >

0

Millions
N
o
o

=
[
o

SN S o N S S e S o o) S N S o S o e S e o S N S o S oy e S S N S N S o o S ooy oy S
3033000300033 033003300030003003J003300035003|0033350333303333333/5033
2012/13 | 2013/14 = 2014/15 = 2015/16

oo
[eeReoNe}

2004/05 | 2005/06 | 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10 & 2010/11 | 2011/12 2016/17 | 2017/18 = 2018/19 = 2019/20 = 2020/21

The DfT’s daily transport use statistics also reports on journeys by bus. The data for bus use outside London

shown in the graph below suggests that daily travel by bus has increased in recent months but remains well
below the March 2020 benchmark.

Daily Bus Transport Use (outside London) Since March 2020,

compared to January 2020 baseline
120%
100% -,
80%
60% .o oY, | o' .‘O‘O.......ot.oo....'

..

40%
20%
0%

o °
. ."o'o
]

.. ....I.O.

%
L ) 1 ]
tec00ged®?®

NI T T T SR SR S SR S S R VRSN
DD PR DD PR PP PP YYD
F T F ST T T TS
\0”" RIS SRR S D NN S W \'C" & \o'” \o"’ & AR
NSO\ LA SO NS AR SO NSO S G \ SR N AT NS AR \ A LA LA SO LA M LA\ ¢

Sy D
P

Local data: Local data for 2020/21 is expected to be released in October 2021. The latest figures for
Cambridgeshire show there was a reduction in passenger journeys on local bus services in the county

between 2018/19 and 2019/20, in line with the national change. There was a 3% fall from 19.93 million
journeys to 19.33 million journeys.

Subject: Broadband connections

National data:

Ofcom’s Online Nation 2021 report provides insight into internet activities and behaviours adopted by UK
residents during the pandemic, with an increased demand for connectivity due to online communication,
entertainment, culture, retail, work and education during the pandemic. The average daily time spent online

in the UK by adults aged over 18 was 3 hours and 37 minutes over the last year, which is higher than levels
documented in Germany, France and Spain.

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) have been publishing weekly results during the pandemic from a
cross sectional sample survey of between approximately 4000 and 4500 individuals, called the Opinions and

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 108 of 154

Page 154 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/bus01-local-bus-passenger-journeys
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/about-ofcom/latest/media/media-releases/2021/a-year-lived-online
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/householdcharacteristics/homeinternetandsocialmediausage/datasets/internetaccesshouseholdsandindividualsreferencetables

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Lifestyle Survey (OPN). According to this survey, in August 2020 the estimates showed that 96% of
households in Great Britain had access to the internet (between January and February of that year) an
increase of six percentage points from 2017. The data set also stated that in households where there is at
least one adult aged over 65, the number of internet connections increased by seven percentage points
from 2019 to 80%, however households in this category still had the lowest proportion of connections
overall.

A further report published by Statista in December 2020 (using data from unknown sources) suggest that
there were over 27m fixed broadband connections in the UK in 2020.

Ofcom (the UK communication services regulator) publishes data via their Connected Nations Report which
focusses on broadband and mobile network coverage in the UK. The key findings from the latest update as
of May 2021 (published in September 2021) shows the following country wide picture:

The number of homes able to get gigabit capable broadband is up to over 11.6 million homes (40% of all UK
homes), up from 10.8 million (37%) since December 2020.

% of UK Residential Homes With Access to Gigabit Capable Services
50%

o%

2020 September 2021 January 2021 May

Figure 29: Percentage of UK Residential Homes with Access to Gigabit Capable Services
Source: Ofcom

Full fibre coverage continues to increase, up to 24% from 21% between January 2021 and May 2021 an
increase of 3 percentage points, with just under seven million homes now covered.

% of UK Residential Homes With Access to Full Fibre Coverage
50%

40%
30%
24%
21%
20%
18%
14%
12%
10%

) g% . .

0%

2019 May 2019 September 2020 January 2020 May 2020 September 2021 January 2021 May

Figure 30: Percentage of UK Residential Homes with Access to Full Fibre Coverage.
Source: Ofcom

Superfast and ultrafast broadband coverage continues to grow across the UK, with superfast broadband
coverage remaining at 96%, but ultrafast broadband rising to 62% (from 61% in January 2021).

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 109 of 154

Page 155 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/householdcharacteristics/homeinternetandsocialmediausage/datasets/internetaccesshouseholdsandindividualsreferencetables
https://www.statista.com/topics/3655/broadband-in-the-uk/
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0013/224212/connected-nations-summer-2021.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

% of UK Residential Homes With Superfast and Ultrafast Coverage

95% 95% 95% 95% 96% 96%
61%
59%
57%
55%
52% 53%

2019 May 2019 September 2020 January 2020 May 2020 September 2021 January 2021 May

100%

96%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

® Superfast Coverage @ Ulirafast Coverage
Figure 31: Percentage of UK Residential Homes with Access to Superfast and Ultrafast Coverage.
Source: Ofcom

Mobile coverage remains stable as plans develop to start rolling out coverage to new areas through the
Shared Rural Network scheme.

% of UK Residential Homes With Mobile Coverage

&

100%
a0
60

97% 97% 97% 97% 98% 98% 98%
0% I I I I I I I

40
20
2019 May 2019 September 2020 January 2020 May 2020 September 2021 January 2021 May

B

#

&

Figure 32: Percentage of UK Residential Homes with Access to Mobile Coverage
Source: Ofcom

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 110 of 154

Page 156 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: The Ofcom interactive report Summer 2021 states that most of Huntingdonshire (96% of
commercial and resident properties combined) received more than or equal to 30Mbit/s coverage of
broadband. The graph below shows the percentage of residential properties that have access to the noted

download speeds in Huntingdonshire and our neighbouring local authorities since 2020.
I»N

Download Speed Access - Residential Properties

100% -

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

i o>

& N N N & & N N N N
O O O O SV SV O O O O
£ £ & N S S N N N N
N N S S N2 N2 S S S S
4 N & & S & > 5 & &
N N O O < < Q 9 O O
O O & & & & & S
A N
N N & Q N =
[oa [oa 0@ \)é [oa &
A & D 8 S &
& & 0\5 o\)
S S

W 300+ m100-299 = 30-99Mbs 1 <30Mbs

The graph below shows the percentage of commercial properties that have access to the noted download
speeds in Huntingdonshire and our neighbouring local authorities.

Download Speed Access - Commercial Properties

100%

oo s u u s 2
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

N &

'»&Q S '»6\9 ANl % 0 & 2 '»6\9 '\,@’N '»&Q '1,@’\/
< < < < Q Q < < < <
© ¢ & & S S & & & &
N N N N D R N R R
& B & & N N 3 5 & ©
N N © © & & O 9 © ©
N N O O 9 9 © O
o8 o8 S S [oa &
N D QL &
Q,V‘ Q,V‘ 00 O\)
< S
® 300+ M100-299 m30-99Mbs m <30Mbs
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 111 of 154

Page 157 of 210


https://www.ofcom.org.uk/research-and-data/multi-sector-research/infrastructure-research/connected-nations-update-summer-2021/interactive-report

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

The average download speed in the UK at May 2019 was 58 Mbit/s, by June 2020 this increased to
72Mbit/s. Huntingdonshire download speeds were similar in 2019 to the national average (at 59%) but saw
less of an increase than the rest of the UK by June the following year, rising to 70Mbit/s.

Over 70% of premises have an active broadband connection but only 10% of the district overall is Gigabit
capable or has Full Fibre coverage. There are lower levels of residential Full Fibre broadband coverage in
Huntingdonshire when compared to our neighbouring authorities, but this has increased by more than
double since 2019. Coverage levels have remained fairly static for Commercial properties since 2019.

% of Commercial Properties Per Authority With Full Fibre Coverage
50%

50

40%
a0

30 30%

20
20%

14%

10%

1%

Cambrid
East Cambs
Huntingdonshire
South Cambs
Cambridge
East Cambs
Huntingdenshire
South Cambs
East Cambs
Huntingdonshire
South Cambs

September September May
2019 2020 2021

Figure 34: Percentage of Commercial Properties Per Authority with Full Fibre Coverage. Source: Ofcom

97.3% of premises in the district are covered by the network overlap of decent fixed broadband, good
indoor 4G mobile and Wireless Internet Service Providers and according to OFCOM there are only 8
premises that are not covered by any network in Huntingdonshire.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 112 of 154

Page 158 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

GOOD WORK

The Good Work section considers available data up until September 2021.
The assessment pre-cedes the end of furlough and multiple business data updates from the Office for
National Statistics (ONS).
Emerging themes such as COVID versus Brexit and frictions in the skills and employment arenas lack the
necessary data to make informed assertions at this time. It is estimated that by Quarter 1, March 2022,

data will be available to identify any significant business impacts on our district.

Topic: Economic Growth

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Record national annual

2 =LOW/MEDIUM

3 = MEDIUM

business grants

beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions.

required)

Economic contraction in economic (Only national data (Moderate impact as
productivity productivity, with latest available) record UK contraction of
data showing GDP output economic productivity
has improved significantly resulted in the largest
but remains below pre- recession on record and
pandemic levels negatively affected sectors
and businesses in 2020 but
there has been a strong
rebound since Q3 July to
September 2020)
Record levels of financial 5 =HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Economic support provided for (Data available down to (Major POSITIVE impact of
support through | businesses since the sub-district level if the Government’s business

grant funding schemes
which has supported
businesses in
Huntingdonshire. Ongoing
business support will
monitor the impact)

Key business
sectors - Retail

Contraction in retail sector
output since the beginning
of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions.

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact due to
mixed performance within
retail sector; online sales
appear to have
outperformed non-food
stores)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 159 of 210

Page 113 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Key business
sectors -
Construction

Contraction in
construction sector output
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions.

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact as
although sizeable initial
impact on the sector, trend
appears temporary and is
recovering to pre-
pandemic level. Need to
monitor for changes in
impact due to supply/
labour shortages.)

Key business
sectors —
Manufacturing

Contraction in
manufacturing sector
output since the beginning
of the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions.

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national/regional
data available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact on
manufacturing output and
data shows partial
recovery, although output
remains below pre-
pandemic levels)

Business activity

Business activity (total
number of businesses) has
continued to increase
since the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact due to
net growth in number of
active businesses
nationally, with this trend

Wages

restrictions. likely to be followed in
Huntingdonshire)
Wages initially fell but 2 = LOW/MEDIUM 3 = MEDIUM

have since increased
beyond pre-pandemic
levels.

(Only national data
available)

(Moderate impact based
on national trend only due
to the timeframes of
available local data. Need
to review later on when
more robust data is
available and after the
conclusion of furlough)

Subject: Economic productivity

National data: Economic productivity concerns levels of output with growth in productivity supporting
higher revenues, wage growth and living standards. Gross domestic product (GDP) is the total value of all
goods and services produced in the economy and therefore is an indicator of the size and health of the
economy. The COVID-19 pandemic led to record declines in GDP of advanced economies in 2020, according
to the ONS. In 2020, The International Monetary Fund posited that the unprecedented retraction of GDP
during the pandemic is resultant of infections reducing labour supply, restrictions curtailing mobility and
workplace closures disrupting supply chains in addition to, typical, contagion effects.

As reported by the ONS, the 9.8% contraction in GDP in 2020 was the largest annual fall on record. The most
recently revised guarterly GDP levels demonstrate that GDP output for Q1 2021 was 8.8% below where it
was pre-pandemic at Quarter 4 (Oct to Dec) 2019 (ONS, 2021). Indeed, UK GDP quarterly estimates

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 160 of 210

Page 114 of 154



https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossdomesticproductgdp/bulletins/quarterlynationalaccounts/octobertodecember2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossdomesticproductgdp/bulletins/quarterlynationalaccounts/januarytomarch2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossdomesticproductgdp/bulletins/gdpfirstquarterlyestimateuk/latest

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

demonstrate that GDP is estimated to have increased by 4.8%, compared to a 1.6% contraction in the

previous quarter (ONS, 2021).

_Index, 201904 =100

2008 Q 2009 Q3 2011 Q 2012 Q3

Figure 1: Real GDP fell by a revised 1.6% in Quarter 1 2021 and is now 8.8%
lower than its pre-pandemic level

UK, Quarter 1 {Jan to Mar) 2008 to Quarter 1 {Jan to Mar) 2021

Source: Office for Mational Statistics - GDP quarterly national accounts

2014 Q 2015 Q3 2017 Q 2018 Q3 2020 Q

Despite encouraging GDP growth forecasts, business investment remains a drag on the longer-term
sustainability of economic productivity as COVID-19 was expected to lower investment by -12% in 2021 Q2
and -10% in 2021 Q3 (Bank of England, 2021); furthermore, enduring at 5% below its pre-Covid level at the

end of 2022 (CBI, 2021).

Local data: The ICAEW (Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales) published its Q3 report
stating Business confidence in the East of England has risen to +40.1 in Q3 2021, the highest level seen in
the region since the survey began, although slightly below the UK average. The swift distribution of vaccines

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 115 of 154

Page 161 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

and the gradual easing of coronavirus restrictions have helped lift business confidence.

L

[ %
(W3]

P OOy oe oo oo oo o oo o oo
0* oy .\Q \"\. v \"_}, e B L \’) iy -0 \;. .\"_' RS- \"r* .\i* - I I "I:‘\' -
A W R T o, T A7 AT AT N R L, T GF A07 07 07 07 0T 0T 0 S S0 ol
L L L L L I.r' L L k I.r' L L L' L L L' L L 4 e - L
UK East of England

= data unavailable for Q3 2020

The Q3 East of England region key findings are:

e After a challenging year, businesses expect a marked pick-up in both domestic sales and exports growth.
Although growth in the former will slightly trail the UK average.

e Job losses have been limited over the past year due to the furlough scheme. And in the year ahead,
employment should rise considerably.

e Related to that, salary rises are expected to return to more familiar pre-pandemic rates, while
businesses are becoming increasingly concerned by staff turnover and the availability of non-
management skills.

e Regulatory requirements and transport problems are also becoming more prominent challenges.

e Both input and selling prices are expected to rise over the next 12 months, after being very muted
during the pandemic.

e Against a backdrop of rising demand, growth in capital investment spending should improve. Emerging
capacity constraints will be a driving factor here.

Although GDP or GVA figures since COVID restrictions are not available at local authority level, the most
recently available productivity figures for Huntingdonshire demonstrated that manufacturing added £649m
in gross value added (GVA) to the Huntingdonshire economy (ONS, 2019). GVA is a measure of the increase
in the value of the economy due to the production of goods and services. It is measured at current basic
prices, which include the effect of inflation, excluding taxes (less subsidies) on products (for example, Value
Added Tax). The other major GVA contributors to the Huntingdonshire economy were real estate activities,
wholesale and retail trade, agriculture and utilities and construction.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 116 of 154

Page 162 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

GVA by industry in Huntingdonshire 2018

P'{hlic ) Human health
Wholesale and administration| ..4 social
retail trade; Construction | and defence | work activities

: repair of motor
Manufacturing vehicles

Administrative
and support
service activities| Education

Information and
communication

Professional,
Agriculture, mining, | scientific and
electricity, gas, technical
Real estate activities | water and waste activities

GVA Contribution by industry 2018 £Millions

Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles
Transportation and storage

Real estate sctivities

Public administration and defence

Professional, seientific and technical acthvitias
Orther service activities

Mia pufacturing

Infarmation and communication

Hurnan health and sacial work activitias

Financial and insurance activities

Education

Construction

Arts, entertainment and recreation

Agriculture, mining electricity, gas, water and waste
Administrative and support service activities
Activities of houssholds

Accommodation and food service activities

m East of England

B Cambwidge

W Hurntingdonshire

lrwwull"”

0.00% 5.00% 10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00% 30000%

Subject: Economic support through business grants

National data: According to a research briefing compiled by Parliament and released in September 2021
https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8938/CBP-8938.pdf the UK Government has
delivered over £21 Billion of unprecedented financial support by means of business grants to companies
across the UK across seven different schemes.
The schemes utilised by government were the:

e Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant,

e Small Business Grant.

e The Local Authority Discretionary Grant Scheme
e The Local Restrictions Support Grant
e  Christmas Support Scheme
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 117 of 154

Page 163 of 210


https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8938/CBP-8938.pdf

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

e Additional Restrictions Support Grant
e Restart Grants

Local data: As of August 2021, Huntingdonshire District Council had paid the following to local businesses:

Business Grants Paid March 2020-27t" August 2021

Number of Number of Businesses Value of Grants
Grant Scheme .

Grants supported Paid
Small Business Grant / RHL Grant 2,366 2,366 £29,480,000
LRSG 5,378 1,026 £12,024,341
Discretionary Grant 219 219 £1,628,500
Restart Grants 2,702 991 £7,253,393
ARG 283 99 £655,050
ARGE 1,126 505 £3,704,600
Enhanced ARG 150 75 £762,565
Totals 12,224 5,281 £55,508,449

Subject: Key business sectors - Retail

National data: In relation to the GVA contributions by sector for Huntingdonshire in 2018, the level of data
availability and the sectors of heightened interest (ONS reports) during the pandemic, a number of key
business sectors are examined. The ONS (2021) reports that there have been GDP contractions in services
and production output whilst construction output grew over the first quarter of 2021. The largest
contributors to this fall were from the education, wholesale and retail trade, and accommodation and food
services industries, in particular at the beginning of the quarter in response to the tightening of COVID-19
restrictions (ONS, 2021).

Despite the large returning numbers of people to pubs and restaurants following the end of restrictions,
many high street businesses like cafes and shops did not perform as well (Centre for Cities, 2021). The ONS
(2021) reports that regardless of the 2.5% retail sales fall between June and July 2021, retail sales were 5.8%
higher than their pre- COVID-19, February 2020, levels.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 118 of 154

Page 164 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossdomesticproductgdp/bulletins/quarterlynationalaccounts/januarytomarch2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/retailindustry/bulletins/retailsales/july2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Figure 1: Retail sales volumes fell by 2.5% in July 2021, when
compared with June 2021, but were 5.8% higher than in February
2020, before the impact of coronavirus

Volume sales, seasonally adjusted, Great Britain, July 2018 to July 2021

naex £2Ui1s =

120 v

100

80

60

40

20

Oct-18 Oct-19 Oct-20

Jul-18 Jan-19  Apr-19  Jul-19 Jan-20  Apr-20  Jul-20 Jan-21

Apr-21

Jul-21

restrictions beginning March 2020.

The proportion of online retail sales increased to 27.9% in July 2021 from 27.1% in June 2021 and remained
substantially higher than the proportion of online retail spending in February 2020 of 19.8% (ONS, 2021).
Other non-food stores reported the largest monthly fall of 10.1% in July 2021 (ONS, 2021). The seasonally
adjusted non-food stores volume sales for Great Britain between July 2019 and July 2021 (ONS, 2021)
demonstrates the temporal increase in variation of sales comparatively between pre-and-post COVID-19

Department stores Other non-food stores Clothing stores
Household goods stores
Index 2018 = 100
140
120
—_
100
80
60
40
20
0
Jul-19  Sep-19 Nov-19 Jan-20 Mar-20 May-20 Jul-20  Sep-20 Nov-20 Jan-21 Mar-21 May-21

Jul-21

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 165 of 210

Page 119 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Within the broadly defined retail sector performance has been mixed since non-store retail sales volumes
increased in July 2021 and have been comparably more stable since COVID-19 restrictions than non-food
stores.

Figure 4: Non-store retail sales volumes increased by 0.5% in July

2021, when compared with June 2021

Volume sales, seasonally adjusted, Great Britain, July 2019 to July 2021
200 naex ZuUis = 1uu

180

Jul-19  Sep-19 Nov-19 Jan-20 Mar-20 May-20 Jul-20  Sep-20 Nowv-20 Jan-21 Mar-21 May-21  Jul-21

Local data: Since COVID restrictions, economic productivity by sector is not available at local authority level.
ONS national accounts demonstrate that certain sectors, such as construction, have performed better than
other sectors. Further ONS sectoral analysis shows that within the broad sector classifications there has
been mixed performance with online retailers outperforming non-food store retailers (ONS, 2021).

Online retail development Huntingdonshire's local and independent retailers

As part of Huntingdonshire District Council’s approach to building more resilience into the local economy for
local and independent retailers, the Council sourced, procured and implemented a brand-new initiative
called Click It Local. The service launched in Huntingdonshire in March 2021 and will be subsidised until
March 2022 as part of the Council's usage of Additional Restriction Grant Money.

Click It Local enables local and independent retailers in Huntingdonshire to sell more goods but online
instead of physically. This creates further opportunities for retailers who have never sold online previously
or for those who wish to use this additional channel to generate more sales. Residents of the district place
their orders and receive goods from their chosen local retailers on a same or next day basis.

You can see the performance of Click it local (to September 2021) in the table below:
Overview - Orders and Revenue

Total Individual Items Revenue Average Order Average Spend
Orders Purchased Values per store
1,334 1,474 £52,091 £39.05 £35.34

Live Store profiles = 80 Stores

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 120 of 154

Page 166 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Key business sectors - Construction

National data: The construction industry was reported, by the ONS, to have outperformed other sectors.
Construction output in Great Britain fell by 1.6% in volume terms in July 2021, with the level of output now
below its pre- COVID-19 February 2020 level. The immediate impact of the pandemic is featured by the
sharp fall at April 2020.

Index 2018=100

Jul-1%  Jun- May-12  Apr-13  Mar-14  Feb-15  Jan-16  Dec-16 MNow-17  Oct-18  5ep-19  Aug-20  Jul-2

The monthly all work index for Great Britain (chained volume measure and seasonally adjusted)

Output recovered to levels above the February 2020 level in March and April 2021 but have subsequently
declined. The ONS reports that both new work and repair and maintenance contributed to the monthly
decline in July 2021. The ONS advises that the decrease in private housing output in volume terms is mainly
coming from upward pressure on prices within the industry, and that this is backed up by anecdotal
evidence collected from businesses on the Monthly Business Survey for Construction and Allied Trades
explaining that price increases are being caused by delays in the availability of certain construction products
(most notably steel, concrete, timber and glass), because of supply chain shortages. However, it should be
noted demand is still strong as shown by the recent new orders in the construction industry data, which saw
quarterly total housing new orders increase by 2.9% in Quarter 2 (April to June) 2021.

Regarding construction prices for goods, services and materials bought by the whole sector compared with
normal expectations, at 18" July 2021, 50% of businesses were reporting price increases by more than
normal expectations (Business Insights and Conditions Survey). This has grown steadily over recent months
from 32% in early May 2021.

The UK construction industry is being hit by unprecedented shortages of raw materials and labour, the costs
of which are also rising at rates far in excess of anything previously recorded in over two decades of PMI*
survey history (*Purchasing Managers' Index™ (PMI™) data are compiled by IHS Markit for more than 40
economies worldwide).

UK PMI data showed construction activity slowing sharply in August. The headline IHS Markit/CIPS PMI
slumped form 58.7 in July to 55.2, its lowest since February. While the index remained above 50.0 to
indicate ongoing growth in total construction activity, the current reading compares with an historical
average of 53.8. Given the amount of stimulus and relatively early stage in the recovery, to be slowing so
close to the long-term trend is disappointing.

Part of the slowdown can be linked to weaker growth of new orders for construction work, with the survey's
New Orders Index slowing for a third consecutive month to register a further cooling of demand growth
from May's record high.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 121 of 154

Page 167 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/constructionindustry/bulletins/constructionoutputingreatbritain/july2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

However, the New Orders Index remains far higher than the Total Activity Index, reading at 59.4 in August
2021. Thus, activity has slowed much more sharply than demand for new work, meaning there must be
other factors at play in explaining the sharp output slowdown.

The slowdown can also be partly attributed to ongoing and near-record shortages of raw materials, as
measured by suppliers' delivery times, which have in turn led to unprecedented price hikes for building
materials in recent months.

Adding to materials shortages are problems finding subcontractors. Subcontractors account for a vast
amount of construction work, with the major building firms tending to hire specialists to cover most forms
of specialist tasks, from carpenters and electricians to groundwork or foundation specialists and roofers. The
availability of these subcontractors deteriorated on average at a record rate excluding last year's initial
pandemic-related shutdown.

Just as raw material shortages are driving prices higher, the deterioration in subcontractor availability is
pushing average rates charged by subcontractors higher. In August 2021, the rate of wage increase was far
in excess of anything recorded previously in almost a quarter of a century of PMI survey data.

A CBI report to government in September 2021 reported labour shortages seen across different skill levels in
the construction sector, and the UK economy include scaffolders, bricklayers, carpenters, welders and
electrical engineers amongst others which is adversely impacting the UK’s recovery.

It is clear that a combination of Covid-19 restrictions, Brexit delays and shipping hold-ups are contributing to
the reported delays in this sector’s recovery.

Local data: No detailed local data is available at the time of writing. However, the housing supply section in
this report (discussed with both the Housing Needs and Resources Manager and Strategic Housing Manager)
provides some insight into impacts on residential construction, with local data on home starts and
completions indicating an initial fall followed by a swift recovery in homes being built in Huntingdonshire.

Subject: Key business sectors - Manufacturing

National data: UK manufacturers' sales by product shows the total value of UK manufacturers' product sales
was £358.7 billion in 2020, a fall of 10.8% compared with £402.2 billion in 2019 (ONS). Sales declined in
nearly all manufacturing divisions, with sales within the manufacturing of motor vehicles, trailers and semi-
trailers division declining the most, falling £13.1 billion (24.9%) to £39.5 billion in 2020.

Two divisions saw sales increase in 2020. The manufacture of pharmaceuticals increased by £1.1 billion (8%)
to a total of £14.9 billion while the manufacture of paper and paper products increased by £10 million
(0.1%) to £10.8 billion. The largest increase in product sales was from Medicaments for therapeutic or
prophylactic uses, up by £969 million (14.9%) to £7.5 billion in 2020. Other selected products showing large
value increases in 2020 included toilet paper (up 17.9% to £1.3 billion), bread (up 11.1% to £3.2 billion) and
fresh or chilled cuts of beef/veal (up 6.3% to £4.5 billion).

Seasonally adjusted figures uncover monthly movements in the volume of UK production, which includes
manufacturing, mining and quarrying, energy supply, and water and waste management. Production rose by
1.2% between June 2021 and July 2021 meaning output was 2.1% below its February 2020 level. The
coronavirus pandemic has generally had a negative impact on production output, although each sector has
been affected differently since manufacturing remained flat over the month at 0% growth. Though,
manufacturing output remains 2.3% below its February 2020 level.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 122 of 154

Page 168 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/manufacturingandproductionindustry/bulletins/ukmanufacturerssalesbyproductprodcom/2020results

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Index Of Production: C-19 Manufacturing (excl Mfr of coke &
refined petroleum products) CVMSA

120

100 o= —

o \/'

60

40

20

9NV LT0C
120 £10¢
23a LT0¢
934 810¢
4dVv 810¢
NN 8T0C
9NV 8T0C
120 8T0¢
03d 810¢
934 6T0¢
4dV 6T0¢C
NNreToc
9NV 610¢
120 6T0¢C
23d 6T0¢
934 0¢0¢
4dV 0¢0¢
NNrococ
9NV 0¢0¢
120 020t
23a 0¢0c
934 1¢0¢
4dV T¢0¢
NN 120¢

Make UK’s Q3 2021 Manufacturing Outlook report, in partnership with BDO, highlights the sector’s return to
growth following many months of turmoil. Last quarter manufacturers reported output levels expanding at
record rates, thanks mainly to growth in domestic orders. However, export orders have also continued to
improve since the start of the year as manufacturers from the UK side better adapt to new trading
conditions. Yet, some risks remain as manufacturers from the EU side are only beginning to understand the
weight of the changes in the UK-EU relationship.

The third quarter’s figures have shown remarkable improvement across all our primary metrics, with 8 out
of 10 rising to record heights. The latest data confirms that the bounce back which started early this year
has maintained speed till now with only supply-chain disruptions highlighted as the main barrier holding
manufacturers back. Still, we are yet to achieve any new growth as on average manufacturers are still
clawing back lost output from 2020. An output balance of 42% this quarter indicates that the largest ever
share of manufacturers have increased their output levels, relative to those that have reported a decrease.
This continual expansion in output is mirrored by the continual growth in order books both domestically and
internationally.

Both the UK order and export order balances have expanded to record levels this quarter, reporting at 48%
and 37% respectively. The UK order balance has grown in positive territory for the last three quarters now,
meaning the domestic market may well be establishing itself as a reliable source of demand for UK
manufacturers. This is likely driven partly by the increased frictions between UK-EU trade leading to some
manufacturers seeking new relationships with suppliers at home. However, exports are also improving with
the orders balance here jumping from 22% to 37% this quarter.

INDICATOR BALANCE CHANGE
Confidence 7.7 L Business confidence reaches a new peak
Output 42 T Output balance highest on record
UK orders 48° + UK orders balance highest on record
Export orders 37% ™ Export orders recovering quickly
Employment 23 ™ Jobs con etog bu slower rate
Investment 37% {3 Investment intentions highest on record
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 123 of 154

Page 169 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

The biggest issue to dominate UK manufacturer’s agenda in recent months are supply-chain related issues,
which in turn are leading to rising cost pressures and increased selling prices. Both UK and Export prices
reported at a record high balance of 49% and 43% respectively, with expectations prices would rise further
in Q4. For the first half of this year manufacturers were passing on costs only partially, as evidenced by
negative balances scores for margins. However, this quarter it appears margins are increasing again
indicating that manufacturers are passing on higher costs at greater rates down the supply-chain.

With the Job Retention Scheme (JRS) closing this month, there remains concerns that redundancies will
increase in various segments of the economy. However, the recent boom in activity suggests the impact of
these job losses will be relatively mute on the overall economy. The employment and investment intentions
balance have now expanded for two quarters in a row, with the latter reporting a particularly high figure
highlighting the impact greater certainty had on manufacturers confidence in investing.

Local data: Data from the Prodcom survey on manufacturer’s sales and the Index of Production is not
published for any geographies below the UK level. BRES data on employees by industry in 2020 and the
number of businesses at March 2021 is also not available at the time of writing.

Subject: Business activity

National data: The number of business deaths (closures) or the ratio of business deaths to births (creations)
are indicators of the health of the economy, with higher or increasing business deaths possibly indicative of
unfavourable business conditions as overall business growth retracts. The Inter-Departmental Business
Register (IDBR) maintains records of UK business demography. The latest release of annual data on births
and deaths covers data to March 2020, which showed that the number of businesses was growing, as
graphed below (ONS, 2020).

Figure 1: The number of VAT and/or PAYE businesses in the UK
increased by 1.2% from March 2019

Number of VAT and/or PAYE based businesses, UK, 2015 to 2020

3,000,000 Lount o1 pusinesses

2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000

0

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

In response to the economic impact of the pandemic, the ONS are producing rapid and experimental
quarterly data on business births and deaths. The data in this release is not entirely consistent with the
annual business demography publication, which is a more accurate reflection of births and deaths, but the
quarterly data is broadly in line and provides new evidence using new methods. Business closures are those
removed from the Inter-Departmental Business Register (IDBR). A business is removed from the IDBR if its
turnover and employment are zero for several periods, or the Office for National Statistics (ONS) is notified

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 124 of 154

Page 170 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/bulletins/ukbusinessactivitysizeandlocation/latest
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/bulletins/ukbusinessactivitysizeandlocation/latest
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/bulletins/businessdemographyquarterlyexperimentalstatisticsuk/apriltojune2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

that the business has ceased trading through an administrative source. Business creations, often referred to
as business births, are enterprises added to the Inter-Departmental Business Register (IDBR). Enterprises are
added to the IDBR when a new business is identified from administrative sources, usually the VAT or PAYE
systems.

Business closures in the last two quarters, Q1 2021 (January to March 2021) and Q2 (April to June 2021),
were the highest since the start of 2017, and followed the highest Q4 (October to December) recording.
However, low levels preceded in the first two full quarters of the pandemic, Q2 2020 and Q3 2020 as the
ONS reported that business closures did not appear to have yet increased as a result of the pandemic and
that this was “because of the time it takes for a business to close, delays in the reporting process and
government support for businesses”.

Mumber of businesses removed from the IDBR, quarterly, UK, Quarter 1 2017 to Quarter 2 2021

Count

|_'\|‘]

® 07 @®:zoiz @209 @ 2020 2021

Business creations have generally remained high since the pandemic began. While the first full quarter since
lockdown restrictions were introduced in Q2 2020 (April to June 2020) saw a fall in new businesses,
numbers since then have been similar to, or higher than, the totals seen in the same quarters since Q1 2017.
The ONS has previously reported that the relatively strong numbers of business creations are “contrary to
expectations that business creation would be lower due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic”. It noted
that “Businesses which have been created since the pandemic tend to be smaller in terms of employment
than those created prior to the pandemic.”

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 125 of 154

Page 171 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Mumber of businesses added to the IDER, quarterly, UK, Quarter 1 2017 to Quarter 2 2021

Count

an Q2

@017 @®zoiz @z @ 2020 2021

Overall, there was a net increase of 31,640 businesses between April 2020 and June 2021 since only Q4
2020 and Q2 2021 had more business closures than creations. Though some industries increased in business
numbers whilst others had reductions. It is possible that declines in the Professional, scientific and technical
activities and Information and communication sectors may be partly linked to changes to taxation rules on
contracting, with the ONS previously reporting that “There is some evidence that a larger number of single
employee companies were closed in Quarter 1 2020, and it is possible that this is due to those businesses
getting ready for changes to taxation rules on contracting”. The ONS states that the strong growth in retail is
“likely to be due to an increase in online retailers, since there has been a large increase in online retail sales
during the pandemic”.

Net change (births minus deaths) by industry, April 2020-June 2021

Retail

Transportation and storage
Construction

Accommodation and food services
Wholesale

Real estate

Finance and insurance

Motor trades

Health and social care

Production

Education

Agriculture, forestry and fishing

Arts, entertainment, recreation and other services
Business administration and support services

Information and communication

Professional, scientific and technical activities

-30000 -20000 -10000 0 10000 20000 30000

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 126 of 154

Page 172 of 210



https://blog.ons.gov.uk/2020/06/29/shopping-may-never-be-the-same-again/
https://blog.ons.gov.uk/2020/06/29/shopping-may-never-be-the-same-again/

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: There is no local data for business births and deaths relating to IDBR data beyond 2019. At the
time of writing, data on the number of businesses at March 2021 and numbers of births, deaths and active
enterprises for the calendar year 2020 are due to be published in October and November 2021 respectively.

Previous annual data at the local authority level illustrated that the business birth rate in Huntingdonshire
exceeded the county rate in 2018 and 2019. When excluding Peterborough, Huntingdonshire had the
highest birth rate in 2018 and was second highest in 2019.

Birth Rates

18.0%

16.0%

14.0%

12.0%

10.0%

8.0%

6.0%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1@ Cambridgeshire County Cambridge East Cambridgeshire Fenland
XY T Huntingdonshire —— South Cambridgeshire e @en Peterborough

Business death rates in Huntingdonshire have typically been similar to the county rate over the past five
years (to 2019).

Death Rates

14.0%

o,
13.0% :
12.0% e
i,
11.0% —_— e, °
........ _..'
10.0% SN A RETTIXCITILE
) L TTTTTYP M_,eﬂ""""‘“'. LI AL et eaaneree ERFE ]
HALEIETFITTeTen T L Tttt gaearnetttt?
9.0% RNt Y
8.0%
7.0%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
cedee Cambridgeshire County Cambridge East Cambridgeshire Fenland
@ Huntingdonshire XY IX South Cambridgeshire e @en Peterborough

Subject: Wages

National data: The Office for National Statistics produces experimental monthly data on Earnings and
employment from Pay As You Earn Real Time Information. This covers people paid through the Pay As You
Earn (PAYE) system where their pay is reported through the Real Time Information (RTI) system. As
employees who are furloughed as part of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) programme should
still have their payments reported through this system, they should feature in these data and contribute
toward the employment and pay statistics for the relevant periods. Statistics in this release are based on
people who are employed in at least one job paid through PAYE.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 127 of 154

Page 173 of 210



https://cy.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/bulletins/earningsandemploymentfrompayasyouearnrealtimeinformationuk/september2021
https://cy.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/bulletins/earningsandemploymentfrompayasyouearnrealtimeinformationuk/september2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Following a general trend of increasing pay growth between mid-2015 and mid-2018, this data shows that
pay growth tended to fluctuate around 3.6% until 2020, when pay growth became negative as the pandemic
and related economic and policy responses started. From June 2020, median pay growth has been positive,
and is now above pre-coronavirus (February 2020) levels. The graph below shows median pay per month
and how the recent estimates compare with pre-pandemic levels.

Median pay per month, seasonally adjusted, UK, July 2014 to August 2021

£ per month

Aug 2014 Aug 2015 Aug 2016 Aug 2017 Aug 2018 Aug 2019 Aug 2020 Aug 202

Median pay Flash estimate

The latest data includes final data to July 2021 and early estimates for August 2021. The August figures are
based on around 85% of information being available so are considered of lower quality and may be subject
to revision in next month’s release when between 98% to 99% of data will be available. These early
estimates indicate that median monthly pay increased to £1,980 in August 2021, up by 5.3% compared with
August 2020 and by 6.5% when compared with February 2020. The July 2021 estimates also put median
monthly pay at £1,980, up 6.6% on July 2020.

Official National Statistics data on earnings in 2021 is not yet available. While provisional 2020 earnings data
has been published, the ONS has advised that these estimates were subject to more uncertainty than usual
due to the challenges faced in collecting the data under government-imposed public health restrictions.
With those figures relating to April 2020, when an estimated 8.8 million employees were furloughed, the
2020 data has not been reported here as in isolation this may give a misleading impression of how wages
have changed since the start of the pandemic/lockdown restrictions.

Local data: While local data on average wages for employees is not available yet, the Economic
Development team has been tracking jobs vacancy data for the area. It should be noted that this relates to
new vacancies advertised only and so does not indicate how wages for existing employees may have
changed. While recent news headlines suggest rapidly rising wages, the articles are often also based on jobs
advertised or individual sectors rather than reflecting real wage changes for all employees. Data on recent
pay deals (including a public sector pay freeze, the 3% uplift for NHS staff and XpertHR’s headline basic pay
award showing a median pay settlement for the three months ending 31 August 2021 of 2%) suggests there
may be large differences between increases in wages for new vacancies and wage rises for existing
employees.

Adzuna provides jobs vacancy related data, average salary and number of vacancies, at County and Town
location level. For the most recent period of 12 months (previous data not available), this indicates that
salaries offered in Cambridgeshire rose between October 2020 and January 2021 and remained around
£35,000/year to April 2021. The average salary advertised then fell to October/November levels of around

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 128 of 154

Page 174 of 210



https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8037/
https://www.nhsemployers.org/news/nhs-pay-award-202122-announcement
https://www.xperthr.co.uk/indicators/pay-awards/16100/#headline-pay-award
https://www.xperthr.co.uk/indicators/pay-awards/16100/#headline-pay-award
https://www.adzuna.co.uk/jobs/salaries

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

£33,500 in May 2021, remaining at that level until falling again in September 2021. As past data is not
available, this cannot be compared with pre-pandemic levels or average salaries advertised from March to
September 2020, but the graph shows salaries offered in Cambridgeshire following the national trend.

Average salaries over time

£40K

£35K

£30K

£25K

£20K
[=] [=] o — - - — — — — — —
~ ~ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™
e > J2) c o = = > c = o o
8 [5) Jal T (] «© o © = 3 S 3
z [ - w = < = = < (%]

-®- National Average %= St. Ives, Huntingdon - Cambridgeshire, Eastern England
Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire  =%= Ramsey, Huntingdon  -@= St. Neots, Cambridgeshire

=]
@
@
o

As would be expected given smaller numbers of vacancies being advertised at a more local level, there has
been variability in the average salary reported by Adzuna each month across all the Huntingdonshire Towns.
Since October 2020, Ramsey’s average salary has seemingly been the most variable, month-on-month,
which is likely to be due to lower vacancy numbers in Ramsey. The other Town locations of St. Neots, St.
Ives and Huntingdon appear to have been more stable, broadly following a rise and fall pattern similar to
that shown in the national and countywide averages, albeit with lower average salaries offered.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 129 of 154

Page 175 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Topic: Employment

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Job vacancies

The number of job
vacancies advertised
initially fell but have
since increased beyond
pre-pandemic levels to
a record high.

5 =HIGH

(Data available down to
sub-district level if
required)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact as
after an initial sizeable
fall, vacancy levels have
risen to record levels. CBI
labour market insights
however cite labour
shortages impacting the
economy. Need to review
later on when more new
data is available,
although furlough is not
expected to fill labour
supply gaps and
shortages are already
impacting business

furloughed. Numbers
furloughed reduced
over time, with latest
figures indicating the
number furloughed one
month before the
scheme end was just
15% of the peak level.

operations)
Over the course of the 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
Coronavirus Job scheme (ended 30 (District level data (Major POSITIVE impact
Retention Scheme (aka September 2021), more | available) due to protected jobs,
Furlough) than 40% of eligible delayed redundancies
employments were and reduced benefits

payments for people who
would otherwise be out
of work)

Redundancy

Increase in
redundancies since the
beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions, although
levels have since
returned to pre-
pandemic levels.

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Only national data
available)

2 = LOW/MEDIUM
(Minimal impact due to
the mitigations offered to
businesses to avoid staff
redundancy eg: furlough
and business grants.
Impact score based on
national trend likely to be
followed in
Huntingdonshire)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 176 of 210

Page 130 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

NATIONAL TREND

@

CONFIDENCE RATING

IMPACT RATING

©

Unemployment

There has been an
increase in
unemployment since
the beginning of the
pandemic/ lockdown
restrictions. Although
the level has fallen, and
numbers of payrolled
employees has returned
to pre-pandemic levels,
numbers receiving
unemployment benefits
remains higher than at
any point of the 2008-
09 financial crisis with
most current recipients
claiming for over a year.

5 = HIGH

(Data available down to
sub-district level if
required)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact as the
unemployment rate did
not rise as high as in the
previous economic
downturn and has
started to fall, although
the number of people in
receipt of unemployment
benefits remains above
pre-pandemic levels)

Self-employment

The number of self-
employed people
working has decreased
since the beginning of
the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions.

4 = MEDIUM/HIGH
(District level data
available)

3 = MEDIUM

(Moderate impact as
data conflicting and will
be sector specific trends.
Need to identify if this is
a temporary or continued
trend and in which

direction)
Significant levels of 4 = MEDIUM/HIGH 3 = MEDIUM
Support for self- financial support (District level data (Moderate POSITIVE

employed residents

provided for businesses
since the beginning of
the pandemic/
lockdown restrictions.

available)

impact due to protected
jobs and reduced benefits
payments)

Subject: Job vacancies

National data: COVID-19 restrictions appear to have variedly impacted employment levels across locations,
industry sectors and according to demographic groups. The UK’s unemployment rate is expected to peak at
5.5% in Q3 2021, then the unemployment rate will fall back, at 4.2% ending 2022 (CBI, 2021). The ONS
(2021) reports that over the course of the COVID-19 pandemic, payrolled employee growth rates in all
regions followed a similar pattern, that was, rapidly declining and becoming negative from April 2020 but
beginning to improve in more recent months. For the three months ending June 2021, the highest
employment rate estimate in the UK was in the East of England (78.1%) and the lowest was in Northern

Ireland (71.1%) (ONS, 2021).

Estimates from the ONS Vacancy Survey data for England show a fall of more than 50% in jobs advertised in
the three months to June 2020 compared to the number of jobs advertised in the three months to March
2020. The initial fall in vacancies has since reversed, with the rate of recovery increasing since March 2021
and recently rising to a record high. The ONS reports that in the June to August 2021 period, the estimated

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 131 of 154

Page 177 of 210


https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/jobsandvacanciesintheuk/september2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

number of vacancies was at its highest level since records began, with all industries growing on the quarter.
In the same period there were 3.4 vacancies for every 100 employee jobs, also a record high.

Number of vacancies in the UK, seasonally adjusted

1200
1000
200 /
400
200

0

%0'9 S q/&Q Ky %Q'»Q ,9'19 P L P L q/@“’ m&N 0 %&” %@\’ %Q'»\' '1,&\,
/@fa" PO (\o‘\ *\3 IS \(_)@Q & &S & x@ & x@* «\\)‘\ {\3 N
¢ @R Y P E WS

Aggregated data from Adzuna, based on online job adverts from several thousand sources, can be used as
an indication of job vacancy rates. Recent Adzuna data highlights variation in hiring at the regional level. The
East of England shows a marked increase in the number of jobs adverts by month between January 2021
and May 2021, an indication that firms are increasing their recruitment activities, although the trend has
seemingly levelled off since. The East of England appears to also be tracking the UK overall, but is lagging
several other regions.

East of England -

UKregions === UK === Your selected region

100 = average job adverts in February 2020

150

100

50

Apr-20 Jul-20 Oct-20 Jan-21 Apr-21 Jul-21

Source: Adzuna

Local data: While ONS Vacancy Survey data is not available at local level, the Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Combined Authority (CPCA) has published data on vacancies from Metro Dynamics analysis of
data from Burning Glass. For the CPCA area, the graph below shows an immediate fall in vacancies of more
than 50% between March 2020 and April 2020, followed by recovery as numbers increased to pre-pandemic
levels by autumn 2020. The data currently published only goes to April 2021 so there could be further
increases since then in line with national data, but this will only be known once further data is published.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 132 of 154

Page 178 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/economicoutputandproductivity/output/datasets/onlinejobadvertestimates
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYzQ2OGFhMTMtOGIyNi00MzIxLTg1ZmEtNzRhMDI0NWJiNWU3IiwidCI6Ijc3NmY3NzRhLTZlNmMtNGRiNC05ZTJlLTlhYmYwOGY2YThhYyJ9
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYzQ2OGFhMTMtOGIyNi00MzIxLTg1ZmEtNzRhMDI0NWJiNWU3IiwidCI6Ijc3NmY3NzRhLTZlNmMtNGRiNC05ZTJlLTlhYmYwOGY2YThhYyJ9

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

The April 2020 figure was the lowest figure reported by the CPCA since their published data starts in January
2012.

4K
Jul 2020 Jan 2021

The CPCA also publishes data at district level. The number of jobs vacancies recorded for Huntingdonshire
over time shows a reduction in vacancies between March 2020 and April 2020 (from 309 vacancies to 185).
As with the CPCA level data, vacancies in Huntingdonshire have recovered since April 2020, although there
appears to be more volatility at this level. The latest figure at April 2021 of 493 is nearly 60% higher than at
March 2020 and the second highest figure reported since January 2012. The April 2020 figure is not the
lowest reported, with figures around the end of the calendar year frequently lower than this.

Online Job Advertisements by district

District ®Cambridge @East Cambridgeshire @ Fenland @ Huntingdonshire @ Peterborough @ South Cambridgeshire
3,000

- o
o g
S S

=]

Total number of vacancies

500
; ,-K,.AM_,,-_, AN ST e~ A O s el N SSENAATND T =~

" 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

It should be noted that vacancies by district, industry and skill type have a filter applied (within the source
dataset) that ensures only direct job postings from employers are included, while postings from agencies
and other sources are excluded. The total vacancies for the CPCA area do not include this filter and covers
postings from all sources. This explains why the CPCA total estimates are higher than the estimates split by
district, industry or skill type.

In addition, Adzuna provides jobs vacancy related data, average salary and number of vacancies, at Town
location level. For the most recent period of 12 months (previous data not available), Adzuna data uncovers
that for all the Town locations of Huntingdon, Ramsey, St. Ives and St. Neots the number of vacancies by
month since May 2021 was on an upward trend up to and including August 2021. Thereafter, in September
2021, the number of jobs vacancies regressed across all the locations.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 133 of 154

Page 179 of 210



https://www.adzuna.co.uk/jobs/salaries

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Vacancies over time
5K
4K
3K
2K
1K
0 -m =lm - H -m N | S | [ ] II |I |I ‘I |I
o o o — — — — — — — — —
N N N ™ o™ o™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™
"a' > Q c 0 — b > c = o a
s 2 & s ¢ 2 2 & 3 S5 2 8
I Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire [l Ramsey, Huntingdon
St. Neots, Cambridgeshire [l St. Ives, Huntingdon
powered by adzuna

Subject: Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (aka Furlough)

National data: HMRC data on the scheme showed 11.6 million UK employments had been furloughed to 16
August 2021. This equates to just over 40% of all eligible employments. While the cumulative count of the
total number of employments furloughed is likely to still be rising after the scheme’s end on 30 September
2021, with final claims due by 14 October 2021 and any amendments required by 28 October 2021, the
number on furlough at any time has fluctuated over time as the scheme’s rules have changed and
businesses have reacted to changes in lockdown restrictions. As shown in the graph below, the second and
third national lockdowns both appeared to trigger rises in the number of people furloughed. As restrictions
eased, numbers on furlough reduced, with the provisional figures for August 2021 suggesting that just over

1.3 million employments were furloughed. This is a reduction of 85% on the peak level of nearly 8.9 million
in early May 2020.

UK employments on furlough over time
10,000,000

9,000,000
8,000,000
7,000,000

6,000,000

Mumber furloughe d at date

3,000,000

2,000,000
1,000,000

0
March-20 April-20 May-20 June-20 July-20 August-20 September- October-20 November- December- January-21 February-21 March-21 April-21 May-21 June-21 July-21 August-21
20 20 20

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 134 of 154

Page 180 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/hmrc-coronavirus-covid-19-statistics#coronavirus-job-retention-scheme

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

HMRC’s data also includes details of those furloughed by age and gender. While there has been some
difference in take-up of the furlough scheme by gender, the gap between male and female take-up has been
relatively small. Females were more likely to be furloughed than males throughout most of the period the
scheme ran for, with the gap peaking at 1.5 percentage points in August 2020 and March 2021, although
males have been more likely to be furloughed than females since May 2021.

However, the difference in take-up rates by age group has been more significant. For the majority of the
scheme’s history, the youngest age groups (Under 18 and 18-24) and the oldest age group (65+) have had
higher take-up than the age groups between 25 and 64. The following graph plots the take-up rates of each
age group from 1 July 2020 to 31 August 2021 (provisional). It shows that prior to 1 June 2021, the Under 18
age group had a consistently higher take-up rate than any other age group. Rates for this age group were
regularly at least 10 percentage points higher than for any other age band. However, it should be noted that
the total numbers furloughed in the youngest and oldest age groups remained relatively low over the
course of the scheme as the higher take-up rates reflect relatively low numbers of eligible employments in
these age groups. These age groups tend to have significantly lower employment and economic activity
levels as those under 18 are more likely to be in education or training than other age groups and those aged
65 or over are more likely than average to be retired or otherwise not in employment or seeking work.
Despite that, we can say that those in eligible employments in those age groups were significantly more
likely to be furloughed than those aged 25-64.

UK furlough take-up time series by age
45%

e Under 18 18to 24 25 to 34 3510 44 e A5 to 54 55 to 64 65 and over

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

Furlough Take-Up at Date

5%

0%

o o o o o o o o o o o o o o

(= = =3 = =3 [= = (= =3 =Y =3 =3 =3 =3

o — - -

=2 jc> N% 9 Ng NQ ] o < -Jc> < c c :g

< ') o T o o < o o = o ] = Q S = 05

N c oo o N © N ® < = a = < ) N R
@ ] o o o L S > N N @

o 2 Og 3 3 > o N o b3

o @ o o < S N o S I )

o > 3 o ) < > ] N ] e ]
o o) N o iy = = o
N = o = = S ~ N ]
o N N o = N

o = ~

Local data: As seen nationally, Huntingdonshire has seen a large proportion of employments furloughed
during the course of the scheme. The latest non-provisional estimate for the cumulative total count to 16"
August shows there have been 30,700 employments furloughed in the district overall. This is equivalent to
37% of all eligible employments which is slightly below the UK and England averages (both 40.4%).

The district has also seen numbers furloughed change over time in a similar pattern to that seen nationally,
with numbers rising as new lockdowns have been introduced and reducing as restrictions have eased. Data
on numbers furloughed at any point in time is only available at district level from 31 July 2020 onwards as
time series counts for local authority areas have not been published. However, numbers over the period
from then to 31 August 2021 (provisional) are shown following the national trend in the graph below.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 135 of 154

Page 181 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Furloughed Employments Over Time

6,000,000

14,000
K, e Huntingd onshire
5,000,000 12,000
10,000
4,000,000
] 8,000
=
o 3,000,000 =
:
[ 5000 3
E g
Z 2,000,000 a
£ apon0  ©
w c
= T
= z
1,000,000 Ea
2,000 o

EE/TESR
20806
TZ0E(TE
[Z0E 82
TZ0E(TE
TZ0E/TE Y
TZ0E/TE
[E0E/ESS
TZ0E/TE

0208/ TES

O 02/ TE ST
02 /0ES/TT
OE0E/TESET

The following graph shows the percentage of eligible employments furloughed over time (take up rate).
Again, this shows a similar pattern to changes over time across the UK, but this graph also highlights the
lower take-up rate locally across the whole time period. The latest provisional data indicates that 3,000
employments remained furloughed at 31 August 2021, equivalent to 3.6%. This is one percentage point
lower than the UK total percentage of employments furloughed at this data.

% of Employments Furloughed Over Time

e %5 m— HLINTE %

=]
[
P

UK Em ployments Furloughed
@

m
n
payanojn sjua who|dwg aysuop Sugung

TE0ESTEST
[E0E /82 /E
TE0E/T
L2020 %
[0/ TE
[Z0e /eSS
TE0E/T

EE/TER
E0E/0ESE
202 TESOT
0202 /0E/TT
0/ TESLT

00/ TES

Data has been published regularly on take-up by gender at local authority level and this has shown that
females in Huntingdonshire were more likely to be furloughed than males from July 2020 (earliest data
available) to May 2021. The gap in take-up rates by gender peaked at just over 2 percentage points in July
2020 but reduced over time and the rates for both genders have been close in the most recent months.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 136 of 154

Page 182 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Limited data is available on take-up by age at local authority level. The split of furloughed employments by
age band has only been made available for Huntingdonshire as at June, July and August 2021 so far, with
this data showing falling numbers each month in every age band as total numbers on furlough decreased.
While no data on eligible employments by age band to calculate take-up rates has been published at the
district level, it is probably that the 65+ age band had the highest take-up rate during this period as this age
band represented 7-8% of all employments furloughed and that is likely to be higher than the proportion of
eligible employments held by people in this age band (data on employment by age band from the Annual
Population Survey for the period April 2019-March 2020 indicates 4.7% of those employed were aged 65+).

Furloughed employments in Huntingdonshire by age band
600

HUnder25 m25t029 m30to34 m35t039 m40to 44 m45to49 m50to 54 m55to59 W60 to 64 W65 and over

Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21

500

400

30

o

20

Furloughed employments
o

10

o

Subject: Redundancy

National data: Labour Force Survey data on redundancies consists of employees who were made redundant
or who took voluntary redundancy in the three months prior to the interview date. These are actual rather
than planned redundancies. The ONS's Redundancy levels and rates estimates, sourced from the Labour
Force Survey, indicates that the rate of redundancies recorded since the beginning of the pandemic has
exceeded the highest rate reached during the 2008 to 2009 financial crisis, peaking in September-November
2020. It is possible that this was linked to the original planned end of the furlough scheme on 31°* October
2020 as the extension was only announced that day and some businesses made decisions about
redundancies prior to and around that time without knowing the scheme was to be extended. There were
also increases in August, September and October 2020 in the level of employer contributions required for
those on furlough.

However, the latest redundancy rate to July 2021 is similar to pre-pandemic levels, as shown in the graph
below. These rates represent the ratio of redundancies to the number of employees in the previous quarter
in each sector.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 137 of 154

Page 183 of 210


https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peoplenotinwork/redundancies/datasets/redundancieslevelsandratesseasonallyadjustedred01sa
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/furlough-scheme-extended-and-further-economic-support-announced
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/employmentintheuk/september2021#redundancies

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Figure 8: The redundancy rate has returned to pre-pandemic levels

UK redundancy rate, (people aged 16 years and over), not seasonally adjusted, between May to July 2006 and May
to July 2021

Per thousand

(5]

May to Jul 2005 May to Jul 2013 May to Jul 2017 May to Jul 2021

The graph below gives a clearer comparison of how redundancy rates have changed in the months since the
first lockdown began in March 2020 compared to rates seen during the financial crisis starting in 2008.

Redundancy rates from start of economic downturn, 2008-2009 & 2020-2021

16.0
- ——2008 102009  ==—=2020 to 2021
(0]
3 10
o
§ 120
©
c
2
& 100
(o]
-
=]
= 80
o
S 60
2 e
>
e
S 40
5 —
c
>
S 20
[a's
0.0

Start 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Months since start of economic downturn

Further data on redundancy by age and industry is also available. With different sectors seeing varying
impacts and rates of recovery from the impacts of the pandemic, the following graph splits the overall
redundancy rate by industry over time. While this graph contains too much information to review the
impacts on any individual industry, it does indicate that redundancy rates in all industries had broadly fallen
back to pre-pandemic levels by summer 2021.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 138 of 154

Page 184 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peoplenotinwork/redundancies/datalist?filter=datasets

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Redundancy Rates by Industry, over time

Rate per thousand
I
=)

MNow-Jan Dec-Feb JanrMar Feb-Apr Mar-May Apr-Jun May-Jul Junrfug  Jul-Sep  Aug-Oct Sep-Nov Oct-Dec Nov-lan Dec-Feb lan-Mar Feb-Apr Mar-May Apr-lun May-Jul

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
il redundancies = ppriculture, fEhing, energy & water Manufacturing
Construction e W hiolesale, retail & repair of motor vehicles s Transport & storage
— }\commodation & food services e [0 MiEtioN & communication e Finzncial, nsurance & real estate activities
— Professional, scientific & technical ectivities Administrative & support services e PUbic admin & defence; social security
e E dUIC ETON Human heaith & social work activities Other services

The next graph focussing on a few selected industries which saw greater increases in redundancy rates than
average. Overall redundancy rates peaked in September-November 2020, but Construction saw an earlier
peak and faster recovery. Manufacturing followed the same pattern as the overall rate, peaking at the same
time as the average but at higher levels. The Accommodation and Food Services, Administrative and Support
Services and Other Services industries are included here as the sectors with the highest redundancy rates at
their peaks.

Redundancy rates over time, selected industries only

/L .

Rate per thousand

— e e ——
MNow-Jan Dec-Feb Jan-Mar Feb-Apr Mar-May Apr-lun  May-Jul Jun-fug  Jul-Sep Aug-Oct Sep-Nov Oct-Dec Mow-lan Dec-Feb Jan-Mar Feb-Apr Mar-May Apr-Jun May-Jul
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2011 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

Manufacturing Construction — Arcommodation & food services — fdministr &ive & support services Other SEMVices s fillredundancies

The graphs show the impact on those working in a sector, while the table below presents the number of
redundancies by industry during the highest overall peak period (September-November 2020) to show how
much impact each industry had on the overall number of redundancies at the time. It should be noted that
the overall total number of redundancies includes people whose workplace was outside the UK and those
not stating the industry they were made redundant from so the percentages shown do not equal 100%.

Industry Number of redundancies % of redundancies
Wholesale, retail & repair of motor vehicles 67,160 16.7%
Manufacturing 59,660 14.9%
Administrative & support services 41,145 10.2%

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 139 of 154

Page 185 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Other services 36,827 9.2%
Accommodation & food services 34,207 8.5%
Professional, scientific & technical activities 31,521 7.8%
Information & communication 28,555 7.1%
Construction 21,059 5.2%
Transport & storage 20,768 5.2%
Human health & social work activities 14,102 3.5%
Education 13,348 3.3%
Financial, insurance & real estate activities 13,182 3.3%
Agriculture, fishing, energy & water 8,416 2.1%
Public admin & defence; social security 7,642 1.9%

Redundancy rates by age group are presented in the following graph. This shows that the youngest (16—24-
year-old) age group has had high rates of redundancy over a longer period than other age groups
experienced, with an increase in redundancy starting earlier than seen in the other age groups at February-
April 2020. As with the industry redundancy rates, the graph indicates that redundancy rates for all age
groups had broadly recovered to pre-pandemic levels by summer 2021.

Redundancy rates by age group (not seasonally adjusted)

Rate per thousand

A & il A x) ] o Al ] ] o B "a ' e '
_‘ty B s “S'\'L S L G Y ) v v ] . ey & 8 £ A g X §
L e 3 4, e 1 & < \
NS @ @b "_Q\ \E‘t' L (,\“-\ \\o e :_?\‘ o o0 oF \4‘ \\}. & & & B B ,Q\\
; % 5 5 3 % o & ; : g 3
\}P Qa,u \,,_,'O < ‘:_\c\ V'(‘ & & s B ) o o o v o Q@;‘ & W \3_\

The graphs show the impact on those in each age group, while the table below presents the number of
redundancies by age group during the highest overall peak period (September-November 2020) to show
how much impact each age group had on the overall number of redundancies at the time.

Age group Number of redundancies | % of redundancies
16-24 42,746 10.6%
25-34 114,854 28.6%
35-49 120,723 30.1%
50+ 123,288 30.7%

While the data covered so far relates to redundancies which have occurred in the recent past, information
on planned redundancies can be used to look ahead. Data published in response to a Freedom of
Information request and Management information on Advanced Notification of Redundancy Scheme from
the Insolvency Service is shown in the next graph. This shows large increases since April 2020 in both the
number of HR1 forms* notifying proposed dismissals and the total number of dismissals proposed for

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 140 of 154

Page 186 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/insolvency-service-foi-responses-october-to-december-2020/response-95-freedom-of-information-act-2000
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/insolvency-service-foi-responses-october-to-december-2020/response-95-freedom-of-information-act-2000
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/publication-of-data-on-advanced-notification-of-redundancy-scheme/management-information-on-advanced-notification-of-redundancy-scheme

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

companies proposing to dismiss 20 or more employees at a single establishment. The number of HR1 forms
received each month between May and October 2020 was higher than at any point since January 2006,
while the total number of dismissals proposed for an individual month did not quite reach March 2018 levels
but was higher than in the same month in 2019 from May to December 2020. However, both forms and
proposed dismissals have fallen to levels at or below pre-pandemic level from April 2020 onwards.

Advance Notice of Redundancy Scheme (HR1 form data)

180,000 2000
Proposed Dismissals e FOrms
,, 160,000 1800
©
2 140,000 1600
€ c
& 1400 3
T 120,000 o
® 2
9 1200 g
O 100,000 =
Q T
o 1000 =
2 80,000 -
5 800 9
T 50,000 3
2 600 ~
D
S o
= 40,000 400 ©.
<
()
20,000 200 2
0 0
0 0 0 (o] 0 0 (o)} (o)} (o)} [e)] [e)] [e)] o o o o o o —l — — —
A T L A T SN v A A VL S T S N S P
EEF:53E5:3§38EE2558§5°3

* Under the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992, employers are required to notify
the Secretary of State, using a Form HR1, where they are proposing to dismiss 20 or more employees at a
single establishment. A separate form is required for each establishment where it is proposed that 20 or
more employees will be dismissed, meaning that an employer may be required to file multiple HR1 forms
where redundancies are proposed at multiple establishments. The requirement to notify the Secretary of
State includes notification of proposed dismissals due to insolvency, restructuring of a solvent/continuing
business, changes to terms and conditions, proposed relocation of employees etc. It should also be noted
that a proposal to make a given number of dismissals does not necessarily result in all or any of the
proposed dismissals occurring.

Local data: No local data on redundancies is available. The following section includes local data on
unemployment, with changes likely to reflect the impact of redundancies on local residents. This will include
redundancies which would not feature in data on HR1 forms because their employers’ proposals to dismiss
staff have involved fewer than 20 employees at a single establishment.

Subject: Unemployment

National data: While redundancies since the start of the pandemic have exceeded levels seen as a result of
the 2008 to 2009 financial crisis, unemployment has not. Labour Force Survey estimates show the
unemployment rate for those aged 16 and over has increased significantly since March 2020, peaking at

5.2% in October-December 2020, this is considerably lower than the 8.5% rate recorded in September-
November 2011.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 141 of 154

Page 187 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/datasets/employmentunemploymentandeconomicinactivitybyagegroupseasonallyadjusteda05sa

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

UK unemployment level and rate (aged 16+), seasonally adjusted

3,000 9.0
0,
— Unemployment level Unemployment rate (%) 8.0
< 2,500 c
= 70 5
©
7] o
32,000 6.0 3
ke
< =
= 50 o
< 1,500 ~§
o 40 3
&) =
— 1,000 3.0 ~
o =
€ 20 3
(7] ' o)
Y 500
) 1.0 '
2
0.0
W 0 O DO O O O «+d +d = N N N NN OO < < DN NN O W O MNNMNIMNOGOODOWODO OO O O O «
O 0 0 0 0O o o d o o o4 A4 A4 d 4 34 4 A4 4 34 A4 d4 4 A4 A4 4 4 4 A4 A4 A d A4 4 4 NN NN
O O O O O O 0O O O 0O O O 0O 0O O O 0O 0O OO0 0O 0O 0O 00O 0O 0O 0O OO0 O O o0 o o o o o o o
[ S o B o B o N A o N A o A o N I o SR o A o VAN oS A o N & A o J o A o AR o N AN o N M o NI o A o J o A o A o N A o N A o N S o S o A o N AN o N A o S AN o NN & A o A o N A o N AN o N A oV o N oY)
cC ¥ O c 8 o0 c ¥ O c 8 o0 c +¥ o0 c +H8 o0 c +#¥ o0 c s o0 c 8 o0 c ¥ a0 c ¥ o0 c = a0 c 3 a9 c
S 8 v 58058 ov35 825 R 5895205895805 o589 5L vs5 K0S
EiNe} 3 0 EiNe} 3 0 e} 3 0 e} 2 o e} 2 o 3 0 2 o 3 0 2
L h S L b L b L b bt bt bt bt bt bstbstbstbs s
S o S o S o S o > o S o S o S o S o S o S o S o S o
T o0<so0o<gso0dgo0sogodgosogs ool

The latest unemployment rate at May-July 2021 is 4.6%. Prior to the pandemic, the rate was last that high in
January-March 2017. The latest rate is 0.6 percentage points higher than it was at January-March 2020.

The number of people employed can also be tracked over time, using Payrolled Employee data from Pay As
You Earn Real Time Information published by the ONS. This data shows that the number of payrolled

employees in the UK had returned to January 2020 levels by August 2021 (29m employees at August 2021).
Employee numbers by industry over this period have been indexed against the January 2020 baseline in the

graphs below. Graphs have only been produced for selected industries where patterns over this period
show the largest differences to the overall trend.

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

® All UK Employees ® Accommodation and food service activities ® Arts, entertainment and recreation
110

=
=
L

100

-~

1=}
i

Index score (January 2020 baseline)

80

=
w

o o1 o 0 iMay ™M 0luly 01 o1 o1 01 o1 o1 01 01 iMay ™M 0luly
January Febru.. March  April 2020 June 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. Mowe..

Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 June 2021  August

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Month

The Accommodation and Food Service Activities and Arts, Entertainment and Recreation industries have

seen the greatest decrease in employment since the first lockdown, with employment down by over 17%

and 20% respectively at March 2021. Employment in these sectors remains down at August 2021, by 5.8%

for Accommodation and Food Service Activities and by 10.1% for Arts, Entertainment and Recreation.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 142 of 154

Page 188 of 210



https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/bulletins/earningsandemploymentfrompayasyouearnrealtimeinformationuk/september2021/relateddata
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/bulletins/earningsandemploymentfrompayasyouearnrealtimeinformationuk/september2021/relateddata

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

® Al UK Employees @ Administrative and support services
110

-
=
o

@

=N

= 100

o

] ______'—”’_/—.

K1

[=]

o gg

a 95

™~

[y

]

2 an

3

2

o 85

b

b

=

£ 80

75
o o1 o 01 MiMay 01 0uy 01 o1 o o1 01 o1 o1 o1 01 OiMay 01 O0lJuly O1
January Febru.. March  April 2020 June 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. Mowe.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 Jume 2021 August
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Month

Administrative and Support Services saw an initial decrease in employment at a faster rate than the all-
industry average but has since seen numbers rise steadily from September 2021. At August 2021, there
were almost 2.5m payrolled employees in this industry — up 4.6% compared to January 2020.

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

® All UK Employees ®Construction
110

o

£

® 100 w

w

o 4—,_’,___,____/—'

=]

=]

o gg

a 95

o4

[y

]

E 90

®

o B85

@

b

=

c B0

75
o1 o1 o1 01 MiMay 01 Oluy O o1 01 o1 o1 []] o1 o1 01 OiMay 01 Oy O
January Febru.. March  April 2020 Jumne 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. Move.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 Jume 2021 August
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Month

The Construction industry saw below average falls in employment and had recovered to January 2020 levels
by December 2020. The August 2021 figure is up 1.2% compared to January 2020 at nearly 1.3m.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 143 of 154

Page 189 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

110

)

100

r=]

L

80

Index score (January 2020 baseline)

L

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

@ All UK Employees ®Health and social work

ol o1 o1 01 MiMay 01 01July 01 o1 01 o1 o1 [1]] o1 o1 01 iMay 01 O0lhly O
January Febru.. March  April 2020 Jume 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. Mowve.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 Jume 2021  August
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2041 20M1 2021 2021
Month

The Health and Social Work did not see payrolled employees fall below the January 2020 baseline at any
point and has seen steady growth from August 2020 onwards. At August 2021, there were over 4m
payrolled employees in the industry, up by 5.1% compared to the number at January 2020.

110

Index score (January 2020 baseline)

B0

(]

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

® All UK Employees ® Manufacturing

_--—____-———___—___— _______————____
o1 o1 o 01 iMay 01 0luly 01 o1 1] o o1 o1 o o1 01 0iMay 01 01y 01
January Febru.. March Aprl 2020 Jume 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. MNove.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 Jume 2021 August
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Month

The Manufacturing sector initially followed the overall trend but saw a greater rate of falling employment
between July 2020 and February 2021. The rate of recovery since then has been slower than the overall
average, leaving the number of payrolled employees at August 2021 3.6% lower than at January 2020.

RETUR

N TO CONTENT PAGE Page 144 of 154

Page 190 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

® All UK Employees ®Transportation and storage
110

Index score (January 2020 baseline)

80

=~
LA

o o1 m 01 OiMay 01 0y 01 o o1 01 o o1 01 o1 01 iMay 01 O0lhuly O
January Febru.. March April 2020 Jume 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. Mowve.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 June 2021  August
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Menth

Employment in the Transportation and Storage industry did not initially fall as fast as total employment and
had an early recovery as numbers increased between May and December 2020. However, employment in
this sector has fallen steadily since then while overall employment has headed in the opposite direction. At
August 2021, the number of payrolled employments in Transportation and Storage was 2.7% lower than at
January 2020. Recent news articles about lorry driver shortages suggest a range of factors are involved.

Payrolled Employees Over Time, indexed against January 2020 baseline

® All UK Employees ®Wholesale and retail; repair of motor vehicles
110

-
=
]

100 ——M ‘/_‘__,_—-

B5

Index score {January 2020 baselinel

80

75
0 o1 m 01 MMay O™ 01 July 01 01 o1 o1 o1 (] o1 om 01 MMay ™ 01 July 01
Januwary Febru.. March  Aprl 2020 June 2020 August Septe.. Octo.. Mowe.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  Apri 2021 Jume 2021 August
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 201 2021

Month

The Wholesale and Retail; Repair of Motor Vehicles industry also saw lower rates of falling employment
than average initially. However, employment in this sector continued falling steadily until January 2021 and
has since recovered at a slower pace than average. At August 2021, the 4.4m payrolled employees in this
industry remained 2.1% lower than at January 2020.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 145 of 154

Page 191 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: Local district level estimates of unemployment are model-based estimates, calculated from a
model based on the Annual Population Survey with Jobseeker's Allowance as an auxiliary variable.
Huntingdonshire estimates are shown in the graph below. It should be noted that the latest figures available

relate to the period up to March 2021 only so would not show any recent reductions, as seen in the UK
figures.

Huntingdonshire model-based unemployment level and rate (aged 16+)
6,000

7.0
Number === Rate c
=
60 ®
5,000 g
- <3
o 50 2
© 4,000 FJS
o
£ 40 =
Q o)
5 3,000 &
30 2
=
2,000
2.0
1,000 1.0
0 0.0

5]
8
£
o
g

5]
8
g

The Huntingdonshire rate at April 2020-March 2021 is 3.8%, which is 1.1 percentage points lower than the
UK average at March 2021. However, the UK rate is a quarterly estimate based directly on survey results
rather than a model so not directly comparable. It can be compared with the pre-pandemic Huntingdonshire
rate for April 2019-March 2020, which was 1.1 percentage points lower at 2.7%. The Huntingdonshire rate
was higher than the latest figure throughout the period from December 2008 and September 2014.

As an alternative to the model-based estimates, the Department for Work and Pension’s claimant count
data reports on actual numbers of Universal Credit and Job Seekers Allowance claimants every month —
specifically those claiming benefit principally for the reason of being unemployed. While this does not
include people who might consider themselves unemployed but are not in receipt of the relevant benefits
(including those ineligible to claim for any reason), this data is comparable between areas and over time.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 146 of 154

Page 192 of 210



https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/datasets/umb
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/datasets/ucjsa

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Claimant count (unemployment)

2,500,000 5,000
e ENgland e Huntingdonshire 4,500
2,000,000 4,000
3,500
% 1,500,000 3,000
|_
©
2 2,500
o
(oY)
S 1,000,000 2,000
1,500
500,000 1,000
500
0 0
T £ 2> Y 1m0 [e] > 5y 2> Y DO o >y e Z2>rvwm e o (o] >y s zZ2rvwomes
S S g F eSS e85 955888 ¢8:F5¢8528:¢883¢8¢¢%
§P82F 2585858582858 .84¢8°%8 2825884828 =82%
233835882 8¢y5383838232¢8¢:243838353238¢e8,53838388%
B2 3 N2 IN8S8BE6R L "2 N8R LELTE YIRS SE N
=) ~ N =] ~ S ® g S o =] N (SR = ~ =] N (SR ~ =]
5 =) N o o J © o = o ~ S o = o J © o NOo
1S3 8 k2 [ o 8 - = pard S o =Y - g =
& ¢ @ © ) = & ¢ @ © S

Despite recent reductions in the claimant count total locally, the latest figure at August 2021 (3,245) is

higher than seen at any point of the previous economic downturn and remains well above pre-pandemic
levels (1,640 at March 2020).

In addition to claimant numbers, the graph below shows claimant count rates (based on the proportion of
people aged 16-64 who are claiming benefit principally for the reason of being unemployed). This clearly
shows that the Huntingdonshire rate has remained well below the national average but indicates that
unemployment locally has followed a very similar pattern to that seen across England. The local rate of 3%
at August 2021 is 2.3 percentage points lower than the national average.

7.0
Claimant count (unemployment) rate (16-64)

6.0

e Huntingdonshire = e England

Claimant Count Rate (%)

R - R - R - o o o
2 c 22 R P29 23 cZFL R P P99 28 cZ2FRIFTFZIQ222s 2T
S 5 9 = o 9 o S 5 9 = o 9 o > 3 9 = o 9 o S 3 9 =
5 T T < o o 5 T T < o o 5 T T < o o 5 T T <
S o5 =4 3 8 <0 3fchwm 5 ==3 <0 3fchwm 5 ==3 8 <0 3fcna 5 ==3
RN M2 S B3INRT S YN M TS O3INRT S YN M 2 S O3INRT S YN o258
253833 ¢8 o @ 223 53838 o @ 223533838 o @ 23538338
S o 2 9T 83 N o S o S P T 25N 2T S P oS s N v = T =2 N
N o Q=< o0 I oo N o 5 < roQguoonN o R < o0 G o33N o N T < -
o * 3 U N = =} o Y s ©0 2N = e o * 3 U N = = [SER I = CR N}
= =} S = =} o= = =} = =
o N o N o ® & © N o N W o P N o N = 00 o P N o
IS o =} o © S Noe o » [} Noe o © ) N
< N ~
S g8 & S S Q R =g = Q o =y = S
B K <} © =Y L & 7 Cl © =]

|ejo] aJiysuopdununy

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 147 of 154

Page 193 of 210




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

While numbers of people in receipt of unemployment benefits have fallen since the peak in 2020, the level
at August 2021 was nearly double the level recorded locally in March 2020. Focussing on Universal Credit
claimants who are required to search, plan or prepare for work (note: this excludes those in receipt of
Jobseekers Allowance), a significant proportion of those receiving unemployment benefits at the latest
count had been receiving them for over a year. In March 2020, just over 500 residents had been claiming for
durations of at least a year. At August 2021, this had increased nearly five-fold to almost 2,500 residents.
The graph below indicates that many of this group were new claimants early in the pandemic, with large
numbers of people starting new claims around April-May 2020 switching between the ‘up to 3 months’ and
‘3 months up to 6 months’ categories around July-August 2020. Then large numbers moved up to the ‘6
months up to 1 year’ category around October-November 2020 and then into the ‘1 year and up to 2 years’
category from April 2021. More than two-thirds of current claimants at August 2021 had been claiming for
at least a year.

Unemployment benefit recipients (UC only) over time, by duration of claim

5,000

m Upto 3 months m 3 months up to & months m & months up to 1 year
m 1yearand upto 2 years m 2 years and up to 3 years w3 years and up to 4 years

L 4500 W 4 years and up To 5 years W 5 years and over
=
=
2 4,000
1)
o
o
o
= 3,500
2
c
o}
=
=
S 3,000
@
o
&
o
£ 2,500
=
=]
o
o 2,000
8
c
z
(=%
5 1,500
o
=
-]
o
5 1,000
T
I
g
Z 500
=]

0

& .. ) ) e
1,0"“ & ’b@' &
x\ & e v\ e, & & o e.
‘\9 'a“‘ W w"‘% \*>° 39‘; <6° & (\«“z @“’z Q&’ @1’ o W ~:~"‘° 5 S—\A" -C"
& R L= & & o & & & A ¥ \&ﬁ
& S o W

Subject: Self-employment

National data: According to Statista there were over 4million people self-employed in the UK in July 2021
and this number had been increasing at a steady rate for the last 20 years. However due to the impact of
Covid-19, they suggest that self-employment levels have fallen to the lowest since the mid 2000’s. The
graph below which includes data from the Annual Population Survey for the period April 2020 - March 2021
shows there were 3.41million self-employed people in England and over 380,00 in the Eastern Region. As
you can see there is a significant national drop of just over 400,00 fewer people compared to the previous
year, numbers within the East of England have also declined but not to the same extent seen nationally.
Source: Labour Market Profile - Nomis - Official Labour Market Statistics (homisweb.co.uk)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 148 of 154

Page 194 of 210



https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk/
https://stat-xplore.dwp.gov.uk/
https://www.statista.com/statistics/318234/united-kingdom-self-employed/
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157208/report.aspx?town=huntingdonshire/home/subreports/cc_compared/subreports/cca_time_series/subreports/pop_time_series/report.aspx?

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Number of Self Employed People Aged 16-64 in England and East Of England

4.0M S8EM 40M
377M 379M 3.80M

3.5M

3.0M 3om

2.5M

2.5M

2.0M

2.0M

1.5M

1.0M

1.0M

0.5M

0.5M

0.0M 0.0M

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Year

e England eEast Of England

Figure 35: Number of People Self Employed (16-64) In England and East of England. Source: Nomis

Local data: According to the Annual Population Survey, at March 2021 there were 11,200 self-employed
people within Huntingdonshire (10.3% of people aged 16-64 who were employed) which is a decrease of
nearly 9% compared to the previous year. This is slightly higher than the decrease seen overall within
Cambridgeshire (7.36%) but lower than the national trend in England of -11.5% when comparing data to the
year before. Although there is a decrease in the most recent figures for Huntingdonshire, the figures are still
above the number of self-employed people in previous years (up from 8000 in March 2019 to 11200 in
March 2021).

Source: Labour Market Profile - Nomis - Official Labour Market Statistics (nomisweb.co.uk)

Number of Self Employed People Aged 16-64

14.6K

124K 12.3K

12K T1.6K
112K

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Year

# Peterborough @ Cambridge ® Huntingdonshire @ Fenland e South Cambs e East Cambs
Figure 36: Number of Self-Employed People (16-64) Local Geographical Area by Authority. Source: Nomis

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 149 of 154

Page 195 of 210



https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157208/report.aspx?town=huntingdonshire/home/subreports/cc_compared/subreports/cca_time_series/subreports/pop_time_series/report.aspx?

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Subject: Support for self-employed residents

National data: High numbers of self-employed workers, or of small businesses, may influence some regions
resiliency when compared to others as they likely face sharper declines in sales than larger companies, with
broader customer bases (ICAEW, 2020). Oxford Economics (2020) found that the Eastern region had a
vulnerability index score of 0.3 regarding the numbers of self-employed workers (0 represents the UK). This
was because self-employed workers would not earn wages whilst self-isolating or contracting the virus,
causing an immediate consumption hit (Oxford Economics, 2020)- Economic Development Analyst

The Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) provides support for self-employed individuals whose
business has been affected by Coronavirus (COVID-19). There have been five grants issued by central
government to eligible claimants and as at 15" August 2021, £27.1 bn pounds has been paid out to nearly 3
million individuals in the UK. The fifth and final grant covered May to September 2021 and was determined
in part by the amount a claimant’s turnover had reduced in the financial year 2020/21. LG Inform calculate
the take-up rate for England overall at August 2021 (fifth grant) to be 33%, based on the total number of
claims to date over potentially eligible population.

The sector with the highest number of potentially eligible individuals and the highest proportion of claims is
the construction industry. By 15 August, construction workers had made 284,000 claims for the fifth SEISS
grant, totalling £729 million. Construction is the largest sector among the self-employed population with 1.2
million individuals assessed for eligibility. HMRC only publish data on the take up rate by sector at national
level and not at local levels.

SEISS UK Take-Up Rate by Sector Description

40%

30%

Take-Up Rate

Q
=

2 & o & o i
N 3 -S‘” B & ra \\ i i Ao e N
& :,\“ g@ @‘ S i <\°° @‘ p“ £ & o\* e g\\
2? T
i N i o o \ g
& o Ca o‘l‘ <“ o & af & ‘o“ & \f‘\
& (< & & Cd 0“*“ Cd @(\600 oF o« @ . A ?‘Z@@ o
nl o & 2 & .
s) 2 @ &' o & & o (@
& @ g & g o Ea & X o
& &F 2 -y g A o o
‘s‘é\\ = & ¢ e M@ & v
3 7}@“ «\d" & a7 o % <¢
& £ & o \A\ﬁ@ a®
& o & @~
& o o o o
el z
v o

Figure 37: SEISS Take-Up Rate By Sector. Source: Nomis

HMRC data relating to the number of claims for the 5% SEISS grant by geography shows the SEISS population
and number of claims made by country and region. The East of England was ranked third largest for the
number of assessed potentially eligible population.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 150 of 154

Page 196 of 210



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-september-2021/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-september-2021
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=15495&mod-period=1&mod-area=E92000001&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup&mod-group=AllRegions_England
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-september-2021/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-september-2021

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

SEISS Population and Number of Claims for the 5th Grant Made to 15th August 2021 by Country and Region.

(Ranked by Size of Assessed for Eligibility Population)

London

South East 498
757
East of England
512
451
West Midlands
379
South West
494

55

Yorkshire and the Humber
347

48

East Midlands
320

48

Scotland
324
29
Wales 139
215
23
137
17
Northern Ireland 95
1562
0 200 400 600 800

Figure 38: SEISS No Of Claims of 5th Grant Made (to 08/21) by Country and Region. Source: Nomis

@ Total no. of claims made (000s)
e Total potentially eligible population (000s)
® Assessed for potential eligibility (000s)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE

Page 197 of 210

Page 151 of 154




COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Local data: LG Inform publish SEISS data at Local Authority Level and to July 2021 the total number of Self-
employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) claims in Huntingdonshire were 22,400 (taking into account all
rounds of grant issues). These were made by self-employed people who were potentially eligible to claim,
which is slightly higher than the mean number of claims for all local authority districts in the Eastern Region.
The total number of claims submitted in Huntingdonshire was higher than those by the self-employed
community located within our geographical neighbours (Fenland, South Cambridgeshire, East
Cambridgeshire and Cambridge).

Total Number of SEISS Claims in The East (July 2021)

20K

15K
0K

Total Number of SEISS Claims

=]

v
=

* @& o8 o o® & o2 @® 1 oo® o @ ® o G o g “ \ e‘l s o \o 6Q 5 o°
Q,'b"\b gjo“\ g«,ﬂ L,‘.\e .JP‘ é@'; %30 o'é‘ «e“b a"“"&& o T\\:wa 6‘30% Qe* e ,Dé\“‘_\u‘\dpd“qg)& &F %953‘ \ds ‘\290 ‘5@ o ‘\ ' .@“ \ae & ‘o es e}‘@ﬂ & \5
o g e 6@8" o o Fo® e T o \~““°
'\
& o \)@(J o & W @.,\

,1\)‘x

(;\c@

Location

® Total Number of SEISS Claims e Eastern Mean (20,262)

Figure 39: Total Number SEISS Claims In Eastern Region. Source: LG Inform

The were 6,800 individuals claiming SEISS (for all rounds of grants issued) in Huntingdonshire at July 2021,
receiving a total of £66,700,00.00 shared between eligible claimants.

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 152 of 154

Page 198 of 210



https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=15495&mod-area=E92000001&mod-group=AllRegions_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup

COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Total Number of Individuals Claiming SEISS in The East (July 2021)

v.“e

9.9K

10K

BK

4K

No Of Individuals Claiming SEISS

0K

R Sl & o o
93‘@ :,\b 4\*" ‘e 0@ ,}u‘ Q\@e g o 6“" o ‘g‘é 4 ag\o \@&‘ \gtf \Qz O‘;\\‘ q,,\b QO\C‘ o \)@(\d“ &RO @ \D‘ 0@ @Q ‘,‘\o‘ S Q@Q‘a@dﬁ o R
& & v \“ ‘;4\‘\ <& o,,°° e(\ & e ‘ﬂy\ o W _\« ng\ o %e(\ PO
‘(“ & ‘(“
= @ @ o o ~?‘é e &
& o W &
o <0
&
uo

Location
Figure 40: Total Number of Individuals Claiming SEISS in Eastern region. Source: LG Inform

The SEISS 5" round of grant claims in Huntingdonshire to August 2021 were made by 27% of self-employed
people who were potentially eligible to claim, which is lower when compared to the rate for England at 33%.
The mean rate of these grant claims made in the East of England overall was 30%. Huntingdonshire ranked

3" highest when comparing our geographical authority neighbours, behind Cambridge City and Fenland
District Council.

Percentage take-up rate of SEISS claims (5th grant) in August 2021 for All local authority districts in the East

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

S @ (@ O (@ & o O T SR SN SO SR R L \‘S‘\@\@'co\‘*\@‘o%gc\éﬂ‘\xa\(\ N
S S SN 0“‘\604\4\0&@\,\@\&0,;\09@@0\& oove,vxbévé@ \966‘4‘69 g
@ q— gd‘ N e\ &' SN S 5 A ) V- S
iq“ o NG @e@%‘a" 6“”1 ﬁ‘\‘a@"?’ e Oc\d‘ o ;‘ « ﬂ: A ze-{?:\e :{\\ (\&0 :‘;e,:\\\ &% \S‘?:‘ e 6«\0"-"69\ ‘é‘{\ 5 {0 PR \h‘
o & RIS @cé.po P
\\ 5\;{"‘06"0 <
0y
‘{_\(‘
® August 2021 —Mean
Figure 41: Percentage Take-Up rate of SEISS Claims (5th Grant to 08/21) Eastern region. Source: LG Inform
RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 153 of 154

Page 199 of 210



COVID-19 Impact Assessment for Huntingdonshire District (2021)

Huntingdonshire has mainly followed the national trend, but at a lower rate for the percentage of people
that have claimed SEISS grants (per round) since the scheme opened in May 2020. The data has not been
published monthly by HMRC but at different intervals. It should be noted that eligibility was changed for the
fourth and fifth rounds to take into account 2019/20 tax returns and therefore became open to those who
became self employed in the same tax year, meaning more people qualified to apply. The graph below
shows the total take-up (%) per grant since the scheme began in Huntingdonshire and in England.

SEISS Total Take-Up Rate (Claims Submitted Per Round)

80%

75% 76%

60%

459%
40%

20%

Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 May 2021
e Huntingdonshire @ England

Figure 42: SEISS Total Take up Rate (Claims Submitted Per Round) in Huntingdonshire and England.
Source: Coronavirus: Self Employment Income Support Scheme

The House of Commons Library published a research briefing paper called Coronavirus: Self Employment
Income Support Scheme in October 2021, which documents the various dates associated with each round.

The table below outlines the round that each entry on the graph refers to.

. Huntingdonshire England
Claims Up To SEISS Grant Round Take-Up Rate % Take-Up Rate %
31/05/2020 1 69% 70%
30/06/2020 1 73% 75%
31/07/2020 1 74% 76%
31/08/2020 2 57%* 60%*
30/09/2020 2 63% 67%
31/10/2020 2 65% 69%
31/12/2020 3 52% 58%
31/01/2021 3 61% 65%
09/05/2021 4 45% 50%
06/06/2021 4 52% 58%

*This calculation referred to the number of claims to date (not per round)

RETURN TO CONTENT PAGE Page 154 of 154

Page 200 of 210



https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8879/
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8879/

0TZ 40 T0Z abed

Performance and Growth

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2021/22

In Progress
Topic Membership & Scope Lead Officer Progress
Transport Strategy Councillor I D Gardener Corporate Director | Study has not commenced.
Councillor P L R Gaskin Place
Councillor M S Grice
One vacancy
Asset Management Councillor I D Gardener Jackie 1st February 2021 — Members met with
Strategy Councillor D A Giles Goldby/Justin the Interim Commercial Estates Manager
Andrews and provided input and feedback into the
Strategy.
Next Step
The Strategy will be presented to
Overview and Scrutiny in Autumn 2021.
Market Towns Councillor B S Chapman TBC 16th November 2021 — Members met to

Councillor S J Corney
Councillor D B Dew
Councillor A Roberts
Councillor T D Sanderson

complete scoping document.

Next Step

Future meetings are being scheduled
along with a presentation from the
Corporate Director — People.

9 wa)| epuaby



0TZ 40 20z abed

Customers and Partnerships

In Progress
Topic Membership & Scope Lead Officer Progress
Digital Strategy Councillor D M Tysoe Tony Evans Next Step
Councillor R J West The Digital Strategy will follow the
completion of the Core Service Strategy.
Climate Change Strategy | Councillor T D Alban Neil Sloper 18th October 2020 — The Democratic

Councillor Mrs S R Wilson
One Vacancy

Services Officer (Scrutiny) attended the
Centre for Public Scrutiny and Local

Government  Association  Scrutinising
Climate Action Webinar on 18th
September.
Next Step

The remit for strategy development has
not been established.

Markets

Strategic Review of

Councillor B S Banks

Councillor S J Corney

Councillor Ms A Dickinson
Councillor Mrs A Diaz

(also the Executive Councillor for
Operations and Environment,
Councillor Mrs M L Beuttell)

To conduct a Strategic Review of
HDC Markets and produce a Vision
statement and a Strategy.

George McDowell

5th  November 2020 - The Panel
received a report and suggested scoping
document for the Strategic Review of
Markets. Members agreed to endorse the
approach and aims as set out in the
scoping document and appointed five
0O&S Members to join the Executive
Councillor for Operations and
Environment in conducting the Strategic
Review.

18th February 2021 - The review
commenced and Members discussed the
survey.




0TZ J0 £0¢ abed

23rd March 2021 — Members reviewed
the survey and provided feedback.

22" June 2021 — Members reviewed the
results of the survey and provided
feedback.

20™ July 2021 — Members agreed that a
survey of market traders would be
undertaken over the summer.

Next Step — The report will be presented
to the Panel in February 2022.

Waste Strategy

Councillor Ms A Dickinson
Councillor D A Giles
Councillor Mrs S Smith
Councillor Mrs S R Wilson

Neil Sloper

Study has not commenced.

Update (provided on 24th November
2020) — The delivery of HDC’'s Waste
Strategy is linked to two other strategies.
The first is DEFRA’'s Resources and
Waste Strategy. This strategy determines
any changes to waste collection practices
and the options available for the collection
of household waste. This has been
delayed until spring 2021.

The second is the RECAP
(Cambridgeshire and  Peterborough
Waste Partnership) Waste Strategy,
which is the parent strategy to HDC’s
Waste Strategy. The partnership has
conducted modelling work with DEFRA to




0TZ 40 02 abed

look at the impacts and alternatives of
different approaches to waste and
recycling collection models but is unable
to continue the work untii DEFRA’s
strategy is clear.

The delay in the delivery of DEFRA’s
Strategy has had a knock-on effect for the
expected date of RECAP’s Strategy,
meaning that the delivery of HDC'’s
Strategy has been delayed until January
2022.

Lifelong Health — Part
Two

Councillor S J Criswell
Councillor Mrs A Dickinson
Councillor K P Gulson
Councillor Mrs S Smith
Councillor Mrs S R Wilson
One vacancy

e Identify ways of developing
better health outcomes for
residents.

¢ Identify the benefits of a whole
system approach for the
Council.

Oliver Morley

12th September 2019 - The Panel
received the final report of Part One and
agreed to continue the study under the
guise of ‘Part Two’.

14th October 2019 — The Task and
Finish Group met with Liz Robin, Public
Health.

10th December 2019 - Following the
presentation of the Part One report to
Cabinet and the meeting with the Director
of Public Health, the Task and Finish
Group met to refocus the scope of the
study. The study will now focus primarily
on collaboration with Parish & Town
Councils and community groups in order
to improve residents’ physical activity and
well-being.




0TZ J0 G0¢ abed

13th January 2020 — The Task and
Finish Group received a presentation
from Active Lifestyles and assessed the
interaction the service has with Parish &
Town Councils and community groups.

28th January 2020 — Alyce Barber,
Community Development Officer,
attended and informed Members of her
work with projects that helps build social
contact, builds support networks and
addresses mental health issues.
Members will also discuss the evidence
that links an individual’s mental health
with physical health.

12th February 2020 — The Task and
Finish Group received and discussed a
number of case studies.

26th November 2020 — The Group met
and conducted an evidence review.
Members recognised that the health
issues discussed were around before the
pandemic, however they have been
affected by it. Despite this, it was decided
that any health plan for the District should
look beyond the pandemic and be a post
Covid-19 plan. The Group decided that
the recommendations should be focused
on the following themes: access to




0TZ 40 90¢ abed

healthy food, mental well-being and
physical health.

Next Step — A final report is in the
process of being drafted.

Health

Councillor M Haines
Councillor Mrs M Kadewere
Councillor T D Sanderson
Councillor Mrs S Smith
Councillor Mrs S Wilson

TBC

17th November 2021 — Members met to
complete scoping document.

Next Step

Future meetings are being scheduled
along with a presentation from the
Corporate Director — People.




0TZ J0 /0¢ abed

Completed

Topic

Membership & Scope

Lead Officer

Progress

Flooding Review

Councillor Mrs S J Conboy
Councillor S J Corney
Councillor I D Gardener
Councillor D M Tysoe
Councillor R J West

Compile and review evidence
(quantitative and qualitative) relating
to the December 2020 flooding
events, to:

1) Understand what happened.

2) Review the response.
Consider future
prevention/mitigation.

Corporate Director
Place

28th January 2021 - The Task and
Finish Group met and began the review.

25th February 2021 — Quinton Carroll,
Hilary Ellis, Sue Grace and Emyr Price of
Cambridgeshire County Council attended
the meeting and answered Members’
guestions.

11th March 2021 — Paul Burrows and
Phillipa Hulme of the Environment
Agency attended the meeting and
answered Members’ questions.

July 2021
The final report was presented to the
Panel and Cabinet.

October 2021
Cabinet feedback was presented to the
Panel.




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	Minutes

	3 NOTICE OF KEY EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
	4 Litter Minimisation Strategy
	4. Litter Minimisation Strategy Report

	5 COVID 19 District Impact Assessment
	5. COVID 19 District Impact Assessment

	6 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

